
OR I G I NAL 
APPLICATION FORM FOR AUTHORI’i f TO 

PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE LOCAL 
EXCHANGE SERVICE WITHIN THE STATE 

OF FLORIDA 

1. This is an application for 4 (check one): 

(XX) Original authority (new company) 
(?(> 0 e-37 --y 

( ) Approval of transfer (to another certificated company) 
Example. a certificated company purchases an existing 
company and desires to retain the oriuinal certificate 
authority. 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate 
(to a non-certificated company) 
Example. a non-certificated company purchases an existinq 
comDanv and desires to retain the certificate of authoritv rather than 
apply for a new certificate. 

) Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company) 
Example. a company purchases 51% of a certificated company. 
The Commission must approve the new controllinu entity. 

( 

2. Name of applicant: 

Net2000 Communications Services, Inc. 

(hereafter “Applicant or “Net2000) 

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a): 

Same 

4. Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, 
state and zip code): 

2180 Fox Mill Rd. 
Herndon, VA 20171 

5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state and 
zip code): 

Applicant does not have a Florida address. 

DOCUMFYT Nl’PBTR-BATE 
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6. Structure of organization 4 Check Appropriate box(es) 
( ) Individual 
(XX) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( ) Joint Venture 
( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 
( ) Foreign Limited Liability Company 

7. If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please give name, title 
and address of each legal entity. 

NIA. 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

NIA. 

9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

F98000001053 

Applicant is authorized to transact business in Florida as a foreign 
corporation. A copy of Applicant’s proof of authority is appended as 
Exhibit A. Appended as Exhibit B is a copy of Applicant’s Articles of 
Incorporation. 

I O .  If using a fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

NIA. 

11. If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in Florida: 

NIA. 

12. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the 
partnership agreement. 

NIA. 

2 
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13. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FC), if applicable. 

NIA. 

14. Provide F.E.I. Number (if applicable): 54-1672883 

15. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of 
any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. If so, 
please explain. 

None of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or 
found guilty of any felony or of any crime. 

(b) an officer or director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer 
associated with company, give reason why not. 

None of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been an officer or director, partner or stockholder in 
any other Florida certificated telephone company. 

16. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Anthony Hansel 
Counsel 
Net2000 Communications Service, Inc. 
2180 Fox Mill Rd., Herndon, VA 20171 
Telephone: (703) 654-2000 
Facsimile: (703) 654-2049 
thansel@net2000.com 
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(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company and 
complaints/inquiries from customers: 

Anthony Hansel 
Counsel 
Net2000 Communications Service, Inc. 
2180 Fox Mill Rd., Herndon, VA 20171 
Telephone: (703) 654-2000 
Facsimile: (703) 654-2049 
thansel@net2000.com 

List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) 

17. 

has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 

Net2000 is a rapidly growing, innovative provider of state-of-the-art 
broadband telecommunications services. As a competitive 
telecommunications provider, Net2000 offers cuttingedge, 
responsive solutions to customers located throughout the Mid- 
Atlantic and Northeastern regions. Currently, Net2000 has sales 
offices in Washington, DC, Maryland, Virginia, New York, New 
Jersey, Massachusetts, and Rhode Island. 

has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local (b) 
exchange company. 

Local exchange applications are pending in California, Georgia, 
Maine, and Texas. 

is certificated to operate as an alternative local exchange company. 

Net2000 is authorized to provide resale and facilities-based local 
exchange services in: Connecticut, Delaware, the District of 
Columbia, Illinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New 
Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, 
Virginia, and West Virginia. 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange 
company and the circumstances involved. 

Not Applicable 

(c) 
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(e) 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 

Net2000’s subsidiary, Net2000 Communications of Virginia, LLC, 
formerly known as Ntel Communications, LLC (“Ntel”), was 
authorized to provide local exchange services in Maryland on July 
22, 1998. Due to an administrative oversight Ntel did not file all 
necessary tax forms for the tax year 1998. Rather, Ntel made the 
appropriate tax filings under the name of its parent company, 
Net2000 Communications Services, Inc. Unfortunately, Ntel never 
received the appropriate notification of the delinquency from the 
State Department of Assessments and Taxation, which subsequently 
notified the Maryland Public Utilities Commission. As a result, Ntel’s 
certification was revoked. The matter was quickly resolved with the 
relevant taxing authorities, who verbally admitted to failing to 
provide proper notification. Subsequently, Net2000 reinstated its 
authority to provide local exchange services throughout the state of 
Maryland by expanding its existing interexchange authority to add 
local exchange authority. 

has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, (f) 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

Net2000, along with several other competitive local exchange 
carriers, filed a multi-party lawsuit in the US District Court for the 
Eastern District of Virginia against AT&T alleging that it owes 
Net2000 pastdue access charges. 

18. Submit the following: 

A. Financial capability 

The application should contain the applicant‘s audited financial statements 
for the most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited 
financial statements, it shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant‘s 
chief executive officer and chief financial officer affirminq that the financial 
statements are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet 
2. income statement: and 
3. statement of retained earnings. 

5 
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NOTE: this documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial 
statements, a projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit 
bureau reports, and descriptions of business relationships with financial 
institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should 
be provided: 

1. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to provide the requested service in the geographic area 
proposed to be served. 

2. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to maintain the requested service. 

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

See Exhibit C. Attached is a copy of the audited financial 
statements from Net2000’s recently issued Form S-I filing with 
the Securities & Exchange Commission, submitted in 
conjunction with the company’s initial public offering. Also 
included are financial statements for the period ending March 
31,2000. 

Managerial capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the B. 
company that would indicate sufficient management experiences of each. 

Please see Exhibit D appended hereto. 

C. Technical capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate 
what company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

Please see Exhibit D appended hereto. 
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** APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT ** 

1. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must 
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .15 of one oercent of gross 
operating reienue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross 
operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is 
required. 

2. GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a 
gross receipts tax of two and one-half oercent on all intra and interstate business. 

3. SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and 
interstate revenues. 

4. APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 
must be submitted with the application. 

. 
/ A- .&l~ 

UTILITY OFFIC&:, 

Signature Date 

Senior Vice President & General Counsel 703-654-2000 
Title Telephone No. 

Address: Net2000 Communications, I n c .  703-654-2049 
Fax No. 

2180 Fox Mill Road 

Herndon, Virginia 20171 

ATTACHMENTS : 

A - CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 
0 - INTRASTATE NETWORK 
C -AFFIDAVIT 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (11195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 
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** APPENDIX C ** 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the 
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to 
provide alternative local exchange company service in the State of Florida. I have 
read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of 
my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable 
Commission rules and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever 
knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public 
servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083." 

UTILITY 

Signature 

Senior Vice President & General Counsel 703-654-2000 
Title Telephone No. 

Address: Net2000 Communications, Inc. 703-654-2049 

2180 Fox Mill Road 
Fax No. 

Herndon, Virginia 21071 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810. and 25-24.815 
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EXHIBIT A 

PROOF OF AUTHORITY TO OPERATE IN FLORIDA 
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APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION TO FILE AMENDMENT TO 
APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN 

FLORIDA 
cb 

I-r w 

f-, - 
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F k  2 iq 
r-L* a 
_ _  SECTION I (1-3 must be completed) 

1. Net2000 G ~ O U P ,  Inc. ’r 

Name of corporation as it appears within the records of the Department of State. 

2. Incorporated under laws of: Delaware 

3. Date authorized to do business in Florida: February 24, 1998 

SECTION II (4-7 complete only the applicable changes) 

4. If the amendment changes the name of the corporation, when was the change 
effected under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation? 

El o Jsn-bcr 3, 1998 

5. Name of corporation after the amendment, adding suffix “corporation,“ “company,“ “in- 
corporated,“ or appropriate abbreviation, if not contained in new name of the corporation: - .  - 

- 

pet2000 Comnications Services. Inc. 

6. If the amendment changes the period of duration, indicate new period of duration. 

.No Chanue 

7. If the amendment changes the jurisdiction of incorporation, indicate new jurisdiction. 

October 30, 1998 
Date 

A &MA& 
Signature 

Name and Title 

( F L A -  2251 - 3/19/93] 



I certify from the records of this office that NET2000 GROUP, INC., is a 
corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, authorized to transact 
business in the State of Florida, qualified on February 24, 1998. 

The document number of this corporation is F98000001053. 

I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees and penalties due this office 
through December 31, 1998, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said corporation has not filed a Certificate of Withdrawal. 

CR2E022 (2-95) 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Twenty-eighth day of October, 1998 
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Sandra B. Mortham 
Secretary of State 

February 24,1998 

csc 

Qualification documents for NET2000 GROUP, INC. were filed on 
February 24,1998 and assigned document number F98000001053. Please refer 
to this number whenever corresponding with this office. 

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida 
as of the file date. 

A corporation annual report will be due this office between January 1 and May 1 
of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal Employer 
Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If you 
do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the Internal 
Revenue by calling 1-800-829-3676 and requesting form SS-4. 

Please be aware if the corporate address changes, it is the responsibility of the 
corporation to notify this office. 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone (850) 
487-6091, the Foreign Qualificatioflax Lien Section. 

Michael Ma s 

Division of Corporations 
Document !J pecialist 

Account number: 072100000032 

Letter Number: 298A00010398 

Account charged 70.00 

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
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J 
APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO 

TRANSACT BUSINESS IN FLORIDA 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 607. I503. FLORIDA STATUES, THE FOLLOWING IS 
SUBMITIID TO REGISlER A FOREIGN COFPORATTON TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE 
S T A E  OF FLORIDA: 

1. Net2000 Group, Inc. 
(Name of corporation: must include the word "INCORPORATED', "COMPANY", "CORPORATION" or words or 
abbreviations of like import in language as will clearly indicate that it is a corporation instead of a natural person 
or partnership if not so.containedin the name at present. 

2. Delaware 3 54-1672883 
(State or country under the law of which it is incorporated) IFEI number, if applicable) 

9/30/97 5. De-+nal 
(Durahn: Year corp. will cease t o  exist or "perpetual") 

4. 
(Date b f  Incorporation) 

6. n/A 
(Date first transacted business in Florida. (See seczions 607.1501, 607.1502, and 81 7.155, F.S& 2 

m -:m - 
7.1.7 
-7.3 8614 Westwood Center Drive. Suite 700 $? .I?J 7. 

N cg7 - -<?? 
(Current mailing address) 3: " -:o,o 

a 5% 

- 
Vienna, Virsinia 22182 

- 'Ln 
N :;+ 8.  

Telecommunications Service Provider 
(Purpose(s) of corporatlon authorized In home state or country to  be carried out in the State- i-locda) '> 

.9. Name and street address of Florida registered agent: (P.O. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT 
acceptable) Corporation Service Company Name: 

Office Address: 1201 Hays Street 

Tallahassee , Florida, 32301 
(Zip Codel 

10. Registered agent's acceptance: 
Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process for the above stated 
corporation a t  the place designated in this application, I hereby accept the appointment as 
registered agent and agree to act  in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the provisions 
of all statutes relative to the proper and complete performance of m y  duties, and I am familiar 
with and accept the ob1 

11 .  Attached is a han 90 days prior t o  
delivery of this application to the Department of State, by the Secretary of State or other 
official having custody of corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of which i t  is 
incorporated. 
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12. Names and addresses Of officers and/or duector,s: (Street address ONLY- P.O. Box 
NOT acceptable) 

A. DIRECTORS (Street address only- P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 

Chairman: 

Address: 

~~~~~ ~ 

Vice Chairman: 

Address: 

Director: C l y d e  E e i n t z e l n w n  

a n n  vi-- 
B e l t s v i l l e ,  MD 20705 

. .  Address: 

Director: m i c  reis 

Address: 1 2 3 9 3  Rue Cheaumont 

San D i e g o ,  CA 9 2 1 3 1  -3 - .- s 5, 

2 -m 
B. OFFICERS (Street address only- P.O. Box NOT acceptable) 

-rl zg 
I- -i 

- 
N -,P? 

811 w- -n :an 

President: P I  - - 
Address: s - ;; 

yv 2 3  Alexandria, VA 22317 

cn 22 B r u c e  B e d n a r s k i  0 -= Vice President: 
3507 Ridgemoor D r i v e  

L a u r e l .  MU 20*4 

Address: 

Secretary: 

Address: 

Treasurer: 

Address: 

NOTE: If m e s  
and/or directors. 

13. 

an addendum to the application ljsting additional officers 

Vice Chairman. or any officer listed in number 12 of the application.) 

14. C l a y t o n  Thmas, Jr., P r e s i d e n t  
(Typed or printed name and capacity of person signing application) 



State of Delaware 

PAGE 1 
Ofiice of the Secretary of State 

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY “NET2000 GROUP, INC.” IS DULY 

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN 

GOOD STANDING AND BAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE 

RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE NINTH DAY OF JANUARY, 

A.D. 1998. 

2801600 8300 

,.-. ...- .^^ 

Edward J. Fred, Secretary of State 

AUTHENTICATION 
8858581 

DATE: 
nq -no-aa 



I certify from the records of this office that NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES, INC., is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, 
authorized to transact business in the State of Florida, qualified on 
February 24, 1998. 

The document number of this corporation is F98000001053. 

I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees due this office through 
December31, 1999, that its most recent annual report was filed on 
June 9, 1999, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said corporation has not filed a Certificate of Withdrawal. 

CR2E022 (1-99) 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
First day of November, 1999 
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EXHIBIT B 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
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State of Delaware 

PAGE 1 
Office of the  Secretary of Stat€ 

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED ARE TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPIES OF ALL DOCUMENTS ON FILE OF "NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS 

SERVICES, INC." AS RECEIVED AND FILED IN THIS OFFICE 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN CERTIFIED: 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION, FILED THE FIRST DAY OF 

oci .IsEr<, A.D. 1997, AT 4:30 O'CLOCK P.M. 

CERTIFICATE OF MERGER, FILED THE TWENTY-THIRD DAY OF 

OCTOBER, A.D. 1997, AT 1 O'CLOCK P.M. 

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION, FILED THE THIRTIETH DAY OF 

OCTOBER, A.D 1997, AT 4:30 O'CLOCK P.M. 

RESTATED CERTIFICATE, FILED THE NINETEENTH DAY OF MAY, A.D. 

1998, AT 2:30 O'CLOCK P.M. 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT, CHANGING ITS NAME FROM "NET2000 

GROUP, INC. " TO "NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. 'I, FILED 

THE SECOND DAY OF NOVEMBER, A.D. 1998, AT 4:30 O'CLOCK P.M. 

Edward I .  Fred, Secretnry of Stnte 

AUTHENTICATION: 0181962 2801600 8100H 

001006259 DATE: 01-05-00 



STATE OF DELAWARE 
SEC.WTARY O F  STATE 

T O  DIVISION OF CORWRA?I&Soz 
F I L E 2  04 30 P# IO G: 199‘ 

971331382 - 280160C 
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
OF NJTT2000 GROUP, MC. 

THE UNDERSIGNED. Chnstian E. PI- whox mailing address is do Piper & 
Marbuy LLP. 1200 Nineteenth Street, N.W., Washrigton, D.C. 20036, king a! le& 18 years of 
age, acting as incorporator, does hercby form a corporation under and by virtue of the General 
Corporation Law of Delaware. 

FIRST: The name of the corporation (which is hereinafter called the 
“Corporation”) is: 

Net2000 Group. Inc 

SECOND: The registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 
Corporaiion Trust Center. 1209 Onage S m ,  in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, 
Delaware 19801. The name of its registered agent in the Srate of Delaware at such addrcss is 
The Corporation TNSt Company. 

THIRD The nahm of the business of the Corporarion 1s to engage in any lawful 
act or activity for which corporations may be organized mder the General Cwpomtion Law of 
Delaware and to possess and exercise all of the powen and privileges grand under such law 
and the other laws of the Sme of Delaware. 

FOURTH: The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation 
shall have authority to issue is 7,0W,OOO in the designated classes as follows: 

ms.5 - 
Common Stock, S.01 par vaiw per share s,ooo,o0o 

2,0W,000 Prcfcmd Stock, S.01 par value per share 
(“F’refd Stock“) 

A. t h w d k c k  

11) The voting, dividend and liquidation rights of holdus of shares of Common 
Stock are subjen to, and qualified by, the rights of the holden of the Preferred Stock of any 
&cs as may be designated by the Board of Directors. 

(2) Subject to the v o h g  rights of holders of sharer of the Preferred Stock, the 
holders of the Common Stock arc entitled w one vote for each share held at all meaings of 
stockholdem (and mitten d o n s  in lieu of meetings). There shall be no cumulative voting and 
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a1 any meeting held for the purpose of electing directors, the presence in pason or by proxy of 
the holdem or a majority of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding shall constitute a 
quo= d the Common Stock for the purpose of electing directors by holders of Commor. Stock. 

Dividends may be declared and paid on the Common Stock horn funds 
lawfully available themfor as, if and when determined by the Board of Direcmrs and subject to 
any preferential dividend rights of any then outstanding Refmed Stock. 

(3) 

(4) Upon voluntary or invofuntsry liquidation sale, merger, consolidation 
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, holden of shmes of Common Stock will be entitled 
to receive all assets of the Corporation available for distribution (0 its stockholders. subject to 
any preferential rights ofany then outstanding Prefmed Stock. 

( 5 )  The Common Stock is nomedeemable 

The powers, designation, numbers, preferences, privileges, restrjctions and righ!~ 
granted to or imposed on any class or series of any Prefcrrcd Stock shall be as set forth in the 
resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such Preferred Stock as adoptcd by the 
Board of Directors. 

FIFTH: Except as otherwise provided in rhis Certificate of Incorporation or n 
d f i c a t e  of designation relating to the rights of the holders of any class or scrics of Preferred 
Stock. voting separately by class or series. to elect additional directors under specified 
circumstances. the number of directors of the Corporation shall be as fixed from time to time by 
or pursuant to the By-laws of the Corporation (the “By-Laws”). No director of the Corporation 
need be a Stcckholder. 

SIXTH: The Corporation is to have perpetual emstence 

SEVEBTH: In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by staNte, 
the Board of D k l o r s  is expressly authorized: 

(a) 

(b) 

To make, alter or repeal By-Laws of the Corporation. 

To authorize and eaw to be cxecutcd morlgages and liens upon the real and 
personal p p c r t y  of chc Corporation. 

(c) To set apart out of any of the funds of the Corporation available for 
dividends a reserve or rcscrves for M y  propcr purpose and to abolish any such m e  in 
the manner in which it was created. 
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(d) To designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one or 
more of the directors of the Corporation. The Board may designate one or morc direaors 

~. as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or &isqualified 
member at any meeting of the committee. The By-Laws may provide. that, in the absence 
or disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or mernbcrs thercof present at 
any meting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or they constitute a 
quonun. may unanimously apjwint another member of the Board of D k t o r r  to act at the 
meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such cornmince, to 
the extent provlded in the resolution of the Board of Directors, or in the By-Laws of the 
Corporation, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of 
Directors in the management of the business and a f h i r s  of the Corporation. and may 
authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to ali papers which may require it; but 
no such committee shall have the power or nuthorily in reference IO amending the 
Certificate of Incorporation, adopting an agreement. of merger or consolidation. 
mmmendmg to the stockholder8 the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of 
the Corporation’s property and asscts, rmmmendkg to the stockholders a dissolution of 
the Corporation or a revocation of a dissolution, or amending the By-Laws of the 
Corporation; and. unless the resolution or By-Laws expressly so provide, no such 
committee shall have the power or authority Io declm a dividend or to authorize the 
issuance of stack. 

(e) When and as authorized by the stockholders in accordance with statute,  to 
sell ,  I-, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or subnantially all of the pm-y and 
assets of the COTporation, including its good will and its mrpomte franchises, upon such 
terms and conditions and for such consideration, which may consist in whole or ki part of 
money or property including shnres of stock in, and/or other securities of, any other 
corporation or corpora~tons, as its Board of Directors shall deem expedient and for the best 
inte.rests of the Corporation. 

( f )  To fix. determine and vary frurn time to time the amount to be maintained 
as surplus and the mount or amounts to be set apart as working capital. 

(g) To authorize the payment of Compensation to the directors for services io 
the Corporation. including fccs for attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors. of the 
Executive Committee, and of otbn mmmitfees. and to determine the amount of such 
wmpcmation and fees. 

(h) To authorize the issuance from timc to time of ShareJ of its StOcL of any 
class whetbcr now or hereafter authorized or securities convertible into shares of its stock 
of any class or classes. whethcr now or h d e r  authorized. for such considemtion as may 
be deemed advisable by the Board of Directors and without any action by tbe stockholders. 

- 3 -  
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EIGHTH: Meetings of stockholders may be held withu~ or without the State of 
Delaware, as the By-Laws may provide. The books of the Corporation may bc kept (subject to 
any provisions contained in the statutes) outside the Stnte of Delaware at such placc or placcs as 
may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors or in the By-Laws of the 
Corporation. Elections of directors need no1 be by written ballot unless the By-Laws of the 
Corpodon shall so provide. 

NINTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be pencntdly liable to the 
Corporation or its stockholders for m o n q  damages for breach of fiduciaw duty as E director, 
except for liability (i) for any brcach of the dirtctor's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its 
stockholders, (ii) for acts 01 omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional miscanduct 
or a knowing violaZion of law, (iii) undn Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, 
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an impper pcrsonal bcnefit. If the 
Delaware General Corporation Law is amended after approval of ihis article to authorize 
corporate action M e r  eliminating or limiting the personal liability of dirsctors. then the 
liability of a director of the corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent 
pcrmittd by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as so amended. 

Any rcpcal or modification of the foregoing paragraph by the stockholders of the 
corporation shall not advnxly affect any right or protection of a direcbr of the Corporation 
existing at the time of such repeal or modification. 

TENTH: The corporation shall, to the fbllcst extent permined by Section 145 of 
the General Corporation Law of Delaware, as amended horn time to time, indemnify each person 
who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened. pending or completed 
action. suit or proceeding, whether civil. criminal. adminishajive or investigative, by reason of 
the fact that he is or was, or has a p e d  to b o r n e .  a director or officer of the corporation, or is or 
was serving. or has agrccd fo serve, at the request of the corporation, as a director, officer or 
trustee of, or in a similar capacity with, another corporation, partnership. joint venture. trust or 
other enterprise (including any employee benefit plan), or by reuson of any action alleged to have 
been taken or o m i d  L, such capacity. against all expenws (including atlomys' fccr), 
judgments, fms and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or on 
his behalf in connection with such action, suit or proceeding and any appeal therefrom. 

Indemnification may include payment by the corporation of expenses in defkndkg 
an action or pmceectng - in advance of the final disposition of such action or proMeding upon 
receipt of RII undertalcing by the person indemnified to rqmy such payment if it is dtimately 
dUcrmincd that such peMn is not entitled to indemnification under this TENTH Article, which 
undcnalcing may be accepted without rtfmnce lo the financial ability of such pason 10 make 
such repayment. 
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The corporation shall not indemnifL any such person seeking indemnification in 
connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person unless the initialion 
thereof was approved by the Board of Directors of the corporation. 

The indemnification rights provided in this TENTH Article (i) shall not be deemed 
exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled unda any law, 
agreement or vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or othenvix. and (ii) shall inure to 
the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such persow. The corporation may. to 
the extent authorized &om time to time by its Board of Directors, grant indemnification righls to 
other employees or agents of the corporation or otbcr persons serving the corporation and such 
rights may be equivalent to. or greater or 1-s than. those xt forth in this TENTH h c l e .  

ELEVENTH: The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or re@ 
any provision contained in this Ccrtifcatc of Inwrporarion, in the manna ncw or hereaAcr 
prescribed by statute and the Certificate of Inwpratlon, and all rights conferred upon 
stockholders berein arc granted subject to this reservation. 

I,  THE UNDERSIGNED. being the incorporator hereinbefore named. for the 
purpose of forming a Corporation pursuant to the General Corporation Law of Delaware do make 
this Certificate hereby declaring and certifying, undcr @ties of perjury. that this is my act and 
deed and the facts henin stated are a, and accordingly heretofore sef my hand this 30th day of 
Septcmbcr. 1997. 
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CERTIFICATE OF MERGER 
MERGING 

NET2000 GROUP, INC. (A VIRCMM COivorUTIOW) 

1mo 
NET2000 GROUP, INC. (A DELAWARE CORPOUTION) 

Pursuant to Seetioo 252W of the 
Geoernl Corporation Law of the Slate of Dclnware 

The undersigned corporation DOES HEREBY CERTIFY: 

FIRST That N d O O O  Group, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Virginia (the 'Merging Corporation"). and Net2000 Group. Inc.. a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the "Surviving 
Corporation"), ngree that the Merging Corporation shall be merged with and into h e  Surviving 
Corporation. 

SECOND: That the terms and condit~ons of the merger (the "Merger") and the mode 
of carrying the w e  into effect are as set forth in that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger 
(the "Merger Agreemenl"), which was approved, adopted, certified, executed and acknowledged 
by both the Merging Corporation and the Surviving Corporation in accordance with, and 
pursuant to, the provisions of Section 252(c) of the State of Delaware General Corporation Law. 

THIRD: That the nme of the surviving corporation of the Merger is Net2009 
Group. a Delaware corporation, which shall continue to be named "Net2000 Group. Inc." after 
the date on which the Merger becurnes effective. 

FOURTH: 'Ihnt the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation shall be 
the certificate of incorporation of the corporatiun surviving the Merger. 

FIFTH: That the executed Merger Agrccment is on file at the principal place of 
business of the Stwiving Corporation, and the address of such principal place of business i s  
8614 Weshuood Center Drive, Suite 700, Vienna, Virgink 22182. 

SIXTH: That a copy of the Merger Agreement will be furnished by the Surviving 
Corporation. on request and ot no cost, to my stockholder of che Merging Corpora\ion or the 
Surviving Corporation. 

SEVENTH: The total number of shares of stock that the Merging Corporation has 
authority to issue is five thousand (5000) shares of common stock, par value one dollar ($1 .OO) 
per shm. 

WASHOIAlO&%Z.l 10RW7 
26966-2 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Net2000 Group, Inc.. a Delaware corporation, the surviving 
corporation to the Merger, has caused ths Certificate of Merger tu be signed in its corporate 
name and on its bchdf by its prcsident and attested by the corporate secretary all 85 of the 16th 
day of October, 1997. 

ATTFST: NET2000 GROUP. WC. 
A DELAWARE CORPORATION [ W E  SVRVlVmC COWOKATION) 

BY BY. 
BNC Be arskl ClaytonA ho a . J  
Secretary President 

THE UNDERSIGNED, President of Net2000 Group, Jnc.. a Delawan Corporation. who 
executed on Malf of said corporation the foregoing Cettificate of Merger, of which this 
certificate is made a part, hereby acknowledges, in the m e  and on bchelf of said corporation, 
thc foregoing Certificate of Merger to be the corporate act of said corporation and furlher 
certifies that, to the best of his knowledge, infurmation and belief, the matters and facts set forth 
thcrem with respect to the approval thereof 
perjury. 

true in all material respects, under the penalties of 

I President 
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION 
OF TEE 

NUMBER, VOTING POWERS, PREIWUCNCES AND RIGHTS 
AND QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS AND RESTIUCTIONS 

OF THE 
SERIES A CONVFJtTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 

OF 
NETZOOO GROUP, INC. 

Pursuant to Section lSl(e) of the 
Delaware General Corporntion Law 

The undersigned being duly elected President ofNet2.000 Group. Inc., a Delaware 
corporation (the "Corporation"), does hereby certi@ that: 

A. 

3. 

The  name of the corporation is NeQOOO Group. Inc. 

The Certifi- of Incorporation ofthe Corporation (the "Certificate of 
Incorporation") authorizes the issuancc of 2,OOO.OooO d w c s  of Preferred Stock of par value P.01 
and expressly vests in the Board of Directoa of the Corporation (the " B o d )  the authoriry to 
issue any and all shares of Preferred Stock in one or more classes or series and further authorizes 
the Board, by resolution or resolut~ons, lo establish the powers, designations, numbers, 
prefermces. rights and restrictions of each class or series to be issued. 

C. The Board, pursuant to authority expressly vested in it in the Certificate of 
Incosparation, and in ac~rdance With Sedion 141(f) of the Gennal Ccrporation Law of the State 
of Delaware, has adopted the following resolution mating a Series A Convatible Referred 
Stock of the Corporation: 

RESOLVED, tht the B o d  docs k b y  nnthoritc tbe issuance of 1,043,796 shares of 
sclits A Cowatible pnfensd Stock (&e "Suics A prcfartd Stock"). with the prcfcrenccs. 
privileges, W c t i o n s  and rights granted or imposed thereon as fbllom: 

1. DMdenhr. 

(a) The holders of shares of Smiw A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive. out 
of funds legally available therefor, when and if dslarcd by the Board of Dirmors: 

(i) annual dividends at the rate per anum of SO.274 pcr share of the Series A 
Preferred Stock as adjusted for stock splits. stock dividends. rocapitalizatim. raclassifications 
and similar events which affect the number of outsranding s b  of the Serici A Preferred Stock 



n 

(an such event, an "Adjrrstmwt"); such dividmds win accrue if not declared by the Board of 
Dinctors; , that if 8 Qualifying Event (as defined in -on I(c)) has been 
& prior to the third d v c ~ l y  of the Original Issue- D& (as dednsd btlow), f ~ ,  

such dividends, wbctkr auJued or unaccrued, will bc payable, and upon the 
Qualifying Evmt, dividcnds pursuant to this Section ](a#) will ccase to accrue; 

of the 

(ii) if ti dividend or other distribution is dslarai  or distributed on the 
Common Stock of the Corporation below, dividends or distributions in an amount at least equal 
to the amount that would have bwn paid on the Common Stock into which the Scrjes A 
Preferred Stock is then convertible if ail such Common Stock had been issued upon convmion 
and had ban ourstandiog on the m r d  date for such dividend or disrribution on Common Stock 
(or, if no record is taken. the date as of which the record holders entitled to such dividend or 
distribution arc determmed) and therefor entitled to such dividends or distributions; provided that 
any such dividcnds payable under this clause (ii) shall offset any dividends accruing thereafta 
p m w t  to clause (i); and 

(iii) such other dividends or distributions when and as declared by the Board of 
Directon of the Corporation, actlng in its sole discretion. 

@) Thc holders of the Smes A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid, in MI, the 
dividends and didbutions declared or accrued (regdlcss of whether payable) or payable in 
Bccordancc with clauses (i) and (ii) above, prior to thc payment of any dividends or distributions 
(including without limitation, in connection with any obligatioq rairement, purchasc or other 
acquisition but excluding repurchases or redemptions of the Common Stock made from 
cmployecs or consultants (other than Clayton A. Thomas. Jr.. Bruce W. Bcdnarsk. Peter B. 
Callowhill and Corlyn A, Marsan) in connection thc tamination of their cmploymcnt or 
consuiting smiozs, as the Q L E ~  may be) in rcspm of Common Stock of the Corpo~atiori, or in 
respwt of Preferred Stock of the Corporalion whose right to payment of dividends or 
distributions is junior to the Series A Preferred Stock. unless the holders of a maJon@ of the 
shares of series A Prefemd Stock agret othemise in witin& 

(c) A "Qualifying Event" shall mean (a) a Qualified Public 0- (8s defined in 
ScctiOn 5(a) hueof) or (b) an AquiSition Event (as defined in Section 2&) baeof). 

2. fiquid88h1, Dlsrolution or W b d h g  up 

(a) (i) In the event of any liquidation, dissoiution or winding up of thc Corporation, the 
holder$ of shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding shall bc entitled to be paid out of 
the auctt of tbe Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders. whahcr from capiml, 
surplus or earnings, before any payment shall bc madc to the holdas of any stock ranking on 
liqwdation junior to the Series A P n f e d  Stock. hn mount qual to the 53.425 per share 
(subject to Adjurtmsrr), plus all accrued and unpatd dividends thereon. The Series A Prcfcrred 
Stock shall be senior with respect to liquidation to the Common Stock and such othcr d e s  or 
classes of Prcfmcd Stock as are not, by thcir terms, expressly macle eithcr d o t  to, or on a 
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parity with. the k k ~  A F’refcnod Slock If upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of 
the CorporaticQ the essds of the corpcnation available for distribution to its stodrhplders shall 

h c h  thcy shall be wtiU4 the holdas of Series A R e f e d  Siodc and MY class or series of 
slack ranking on liquidmion on a parity with thc Scries A Prcfemd SWck shall s h e  ratably UI 

any disbibution of nsscts, in pmportion to the respective amounts which would othcrvnse be 
payable in respect of the shares held by tbem upon such distribution if all mounts payable on or 
withrcSpea to such shares were paid in full. 

be insdticient to pay the holders of S e r k  A PrCfuTetl Stock the kll prtfercntial amounts to 

(ii) In the event of any liquiaion, dissolution or winding up of the Corpomon in 
which the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders shall not excccd 
an amount which would be sufficient to pay to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock. on IUI BS- 

if-converted and fully-diluted basis, an amount equal to at !east all accrued and unpaid dividends 
plus 510.275 per sharc (subject to Adjustment), then in addition to the payment of the 
preferential amounts to the holders of the S c r i s  A Preferred Stock, the remainder of the assets of 
the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders shall be distributed on a pro rata 
basis to the holders of Common Stock and the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, with the 
amount distributable computed on the basis of the number of s h a m  of Common Stock which 
would bc held by such holders if immediately prior to the liquidation. dissolution or winding up 
of the Corporation all of the outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock had been 
converted into shares of Common Stock; 

( 3 )  In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation in 
wbich the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders e x d  an 
amount which is sufficient to pay to the bolders of Common Stock and Series A Preferred Stock, 
on an i s - i f - convd  and Illy-dilutsd basis, an amount per share greater lhan all accrued and 
unpaid dividends per shan on the outstandmg sharcs of SQies A Pdemed Stock plus 510.275 
without taking hto account any rights of the Series A Prefemd to preferential payment (subject 
10 Adjustmen!), tben the assets of the Coxporation available for dishibution to its stockholdm 
shall be distributed on a pro rata basis to tbe holders of the Common Stock and the holders of the 
Series A P- Stodc (Without taking into account any rights of the Series A Preferred Stock 
to prefuentid payment), with the amount distributable Eompulcd on the basis of the number of 
shares of Common Stock which would k held by such bidm if, immdntc . ly prior to the 
liquidatio~ dissolution or winding up of the Corporatiors all of the 
Series A F’mferred Stock have been mvei tcd  into sbartt of Common Stocf. 

Jharcs of thc 

@) Writla notice of such iiquidation, dissohtion or winding up, stating a payment 
date, the amount of the liquidation payments and the place whue said liquidation payment sball 
be payable, shall be delivmd in puson, miled by certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, or sent by telecopier or telex not less than 20 days prior to the payment date stated 
thcrein, to the holders of record of Series A P r e f d  Stock, such notice to be addressed to w h  
sucb holder at its addrns as shown by the records of the Corpontlon. 
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(c) Unless the bolden of bw-thkds of the then outstmdhg sham of Series A 
PRSfcmd Stock elect otknvise, the merga, mrgmization OT consolidation of the corparaton 
into or with anotbet uxprntion, or the &e of all or su-3 di of the assas of tbe 
Corporation, or other similar transaction or scries of relared transactions. in which more than 
50% of the voting power of the Corporatron is d i s p s d  of or in which the stockhoidcrs of the 
Corporation immcdiattly prior to such m q a ,  reorganization or consolidation, own less &an 
50% of the Corporation's voting power immcdiately after such merger, mrganjmion or 
consolidation, or the sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Corporation (any such event 
an "Acquisition Event"). shall be deemed to be a liquidation. dissolhon or winding up of tbe 
Corporation for purposes of this Section 2. 

(a) Except as provided in Sections 3(b) and (c) below and elsewhere in this Certificate 
of Designation, cach holder of outsianding sharrcr of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to 
the number of votes qual to the number of whole sfrares of Common Stock into which the shans 
of Series A Preferred Stock held by wch holder are convertible (as a d j d  horn time to time 
pursuant to Section 4 hereof), at each meeting of the s~ockholden of the Corporation (and written 
actions of stockholders in lieu of meetings) with mpt  to any and all matters presented to the 
stockholders of the Corporation for rhcir Bchon or consideration. Except as provided by law, by 
the provisions of Sations 3@) and (c) below or by the provisions establishing any other Scrim of 
Preferred Stock, holders of Series A Preferred Stock and of any other outstanding series of 
Preferred Stock shall vote together with the holden of Common Stock 85 a single class. 

(b) The holders of a majonty of the shares of the Series A Przfcrred St& voting 
together as a sepamte class. shall be entitled to (i) elect one d i r e r  to the Corpomtion's Board of 
Directors (the "Preferred Director"). (ii) to remove the Preferred Director, and (Si) to fill any 
v-cy occurring on the Board of Dircaors as a d t  of the death, resignation or removal of 
the Preferred Director. Any and all director positions in excess of the one dirrctor e l 4  by ihe 
holders of the Series A Rrfemd Stock pursuant to this Section 3@) shall be elected by the 
holders of the Common Stock and the Preferred Stock voting as 8 single class. The Corporation 
shall not expand the number of Directors without the written consent or a5maativc vote of thc 
holders of a majority of the thcn oumadhg shares of Series A PrefeJrCd Stock, given in Writing 
Br by vote at a meeting. mnsmting or voting (as the case may be) Ecparsdely as P class. 

(c) The COrpDration shall not, withou~ thc written consent OT aarmative vote of P 
majority of thc holders of the then outstanding shares of Series A Prefemd Stock given in 
miting or by vote at a meeting, umsenting or voting (as the case may be) together as a clw: 

(i) prior to D-ber 31,2000, engage in 8x1 Acquisition Event, unksp the value of 
tbe Corporation based on such umsaction is qual 10 or exceeds S30.000.000 and tbs proceeb 
received by thc Corporation are in cash or securities publicly traded on a remgnhd United 
states sauritics exchange; 
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(i) auhmize, M e  or isuc any shsres of stack, or &tics exchangeable for, 
convertible into or evidencing the righi ro p u r c b  any shares of stodc, having rights, 
prefmnccs or privileges (including withuut I;nik&u, reucmpnon rights or rights of anti- 
dilution protation) superior to OT on a @v with - of the Series A Rcf& Stock. including. 
wittrout IimiCation, auhr imion  or issuance of additional shares of Scrio A prefmad Swk; 

(iii) amend. alter, or repeal thc COTporation's Bylew (including, without limitativn, 
Article 2 kaf), Cutificatc of Incorporation. or thir Certificate of Designation so as to 
maredly affect the prefercnccs, spccial rights or other powers of the Series A Preferred Stock; 

(iv) declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock unless such dividend is paid 
in the form of sham of the Common Stock; or 

(v) repurchase or redeem any shares of the Common Srock or of the Series A 
Prrferred.Stock, including, without limitation, repurchases made horn Clayton A. Thomas, ir., 
BNW W. Bednuski, Peter 5. Callowhill and Corlyn A.  Marsan, but other than repurchases made 
from other employees or consultants in connection with their termination of employment or 
consulting services, BS the case may be, or in accordance with the terms of the Corporafion's 
Right of First Refusal ES set forth in the Investor Righfs Agreement between the Corporation and 
rhe holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, dated October 30, 1997. 

4. 
righls as follows (Ihe "Conversion Rights"): 

Optional Co~vwsion. The holdem of the SRies A Prefemd Stock shall have conversion 

(a) Eight to C m .  Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible, a! 
the option of the holder tbmof, at my time a d  h o r n  time to time, into such number of fully paid 
and nonaswssablc shares of Common Stock as i s  determined by dividing $3.425 (the "Original 
Purchase Price") by the Conversion Rice (as defined beIow) in effect a the time of conversion. 
The conversion price at which shares of Common Stock shall bc delivnabk upon conversion of 
Series A Prd& Stock without the paymmt of additional consideration by the holder thcrcof 
(b "Conversion Rice") shall initially be 53.425. Such initial conversion Price. and ihc ratc at 
which shares of Series A P r e f d  Stock may be converted into shares of Common Stock, shall 
be subject to edjusnnent (LS provided Wow. 

in the went of B not& of redsmption of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock pmuant to 
Scnion 6 hereof. tbc Conversion lZ&l~ts of the shares designated for redemption shall taminale 
at thc close of business on tbe fiftb full day &ing the date fixed for redemption, unless the 
icdunption price is not paid when due, in which case the Conversion Rights for such shares sball 
continue until such price is paid in full. In tht event of 8 liquidation of the Capodon .  the 
Conversion Rights shall terminate at the close of business on the first full day p-ng the date 
fixed for the payment of any mounts distributable on liquidation to the holdcrs of Series A 
Pdmed Stock. 



@) -. No frac~onal ShaRS of Common Stak shall be issued upon 
waversion of the S a k  A Preferred Stock. In lieu of any fraftlonal W to wbch th hoida 
would othmrc  be entitled, the Corp-ahon &dl pay &sh qual to such fractJon multiplied by 
thc thm eK&hve Conversion Pnce. 

(1) In order for a holder of Series A Preferred Stock to convert shares of Series 
A Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, such holder shall surrsndcr the certificate or 
ccrtificatcs for such shares of Series A Prefemd Stock at the office of the transfer agent for the 
Series A Preferred Stock (or at the principal office of the Corporation if the Corporation serves as 
its o w  transfer agent). together with Written notice that such bold= el- to convert all or any 
number of tbe shares ofthe Series A Preferred Stock represented by such certificate or 
cmlificates. Such notice shall state such holder's name or the names of the nominew in which 
such holder wishes the certificate or cdficates  for shares of Common Stock to be issued. If  
required by the Corporation, certificates smendcrrd for conversion shall be endorsed or 
accompanied by a wntten instrument or inshumcats of transfer. in form satisfacwq to rhc 
Corporation. duly executed by the registered holder or his or its attorney duly a u t h o d  in 
Writing. The date of receipt of such cerclficalcs and nohce by the transfer agent (or by the 
Corporation if the Corporation serves as iu own transfer agent) shall be the conversion date 
("Conversion Datc"). The Corporaton shall, as w o n  as practicable after the Conversion Datc, 
issue and deliver at such office to such holder of Series A Preferred Stock, or to his or its 
nomiweS, a Certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such 
holder shall be cotit14 together with cash in lieu of any fraction of a share. 

(Ii) T h  Corporation shall at all times when the Series A Preferred Stock shall 
be outstanding, reserve and k e p  available out of its authollzcd bur unissued stock. for &e 
purpose of effecting the conversion of the Series A P r c f d  Stock, such n u m b  of its duly 
authorivd shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the 
convmion of (111 outsranding shares of Series A Preferred Bock. Before taking any action which 
would cause M adjustment reducing the Conversion Price below th+ then par value of the shares 
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock, the Corporation will 
take any corporate action which may. in the opinion of its counsel. be ncussary in ordcr that the 
Corporation may vaiidly and legally issue fuUy paid and nona*iessable s h e s  of Common Stock 
at such adjusted Conversion Prica. 

~~ 

(iii) Upon any such mrrvarion. 110 adjustment to the convsrsioo Price shall be 
msdc for any auxucd and unpaid dividends on ths Series A Prefared Stodc o ~ m d a s d  for 
ConvCfsiQn provided that all acRued and unpaid dividends shall remain payable pursuant IO the 
terms of Section I above. 

(iv) All shares of S&cs A Prcfnrsd Stock which shall have becn s u r r d d  
for cowenion as b i n  provided Sh.11 no lonp~ be dkmcd to be outstanding and all righrs with 

to such shares. incIuding the nghu. if any. to Kceive nod- and to vote. shall 
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(9 w. For purposes of this Subseaion qd) .  the following 
definitions shall apply: 

(A) "O~IXJW" z k l l  mean nghts, opbons or warrants to subscnbc for. 
purchase or otherwre acquue Common Stodc or Convnbble S m t i u .  excludmg opuons 
granted tD empioyces or consultants of the Corporation pursuant to an optlon plan or olher 
m g e m e n t s  adopted by the Board of Directors, to acqwc up 10 8 -mum of 335.766 shares 
of Common Stock, (IS outstandmg on rbe date hercof (subject to apppnaie adjustment for any 
stock dividend, stock spht, combmanon or other SIUIIIEW reapltalmon aFfectmg such shares) 

(B) "Ongind Issue Datc" shaU mean the date on which a share of Series 
A Preferred Stock was fm i s s d .  

(C) "Convcrbblc Sccunhes" shall meat, any evidenm of mdcbiadness, 
sham or olher xcuntla dwctly or mdir&tly canvuiiblt into or exchangeable for Common 
Stock 

0) "Additional Shams of Common Stock" shall mean all of 
Common Stock issued (or, punuant to Subsection 4(dxiii) below, deemed IO be issued) by the 
Corporation after the Original Issue Date. other than shares of Common Stock issued or issuable: 

(I) upon conversion of shans of Series A Prefrrred Stock 
outstsnding on the Original Issue Date; 

(ID as a dividend or &&bution on Scries A h f d  Stodr; 

(IID by mson of a dividend, stock spIit, split-up or other 
di*tribution OB sbara of Commcn Stock wcludsd from t b ~  definition ofAddiliOPa 
Shares of Commoa Stock by the foregoiag clause0 (I) and 01) or this clause (111): or 

(JV) upon the exercise of the options excluded from the definitioa 
of "Option" in Subsection 4(d)(i)(A). 

(ii) . No adjustment in the number of shares 
of Common Stock into which me Sen- A Preferred Stock is wnvcrtibk shnll be madc, by  

-7- 
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adjustment in the applicable Conversion Rice thereof: (a) unless the coosidedon pa stme 
(dcltrminad purwmt to Subsection 4(d)(v)) for an Addit iod Share of Common Stock lrmed or 
deemed to be issucd by the Corp.arih L l a  h the applicable Convasion Price in effw on 
the date of, and immcdLatc . ly prior to, the lssuc of such Additional Share or (b) if prior to such 
issuance, the Carporation receives WT&UI notice from the holdm of at least two-thirds (u3) of 
the then outstanding shares of Smes A & f e d  Stock agreeing that IW such adjustment shall be 
made as the result of the issuance of Additional Sharcs of Common Stock. 

. .  . .  (iii) StQGk 

p. If the Corporation ax any time 
. .  

(A) 
or &on time to rimeafter the Original Issue Date shall issue any Options or Convertible 
Securities or shall fix a read date for thc d e d o n  of  holders of any class of securities 
entitled to receive any such Options or Convertible Securities, then the maximum number of 
rhhres of Common Stock (as set forth in the instnrmcnt r e l a w  thereto without regard to any 
provision contained thercin for a subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the 
exercise of such Options or, in the caw of Convertible Securities and Options therefor, the 
wnversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities, shall k dccmed to be Additional Shares 
of Common Stock issued as of the time of such issue or, in case such E record date shall have 
been fixed, as of the close of business on such record date. provided that Addnional Shares of 
Common Stock shall not be decmcd to have ban issued unless the consideration per share 
(determined pursuant LO Subsection 4(d)(v) hereof) of such Additional Shares of Common Stock 
would be less than the applicable Conversion fice in effect on the date of and immediately prior 
to such issue, or such m r d  date. as thc case m y  be, and provided M e r  that in any such case 
in which Additional Shares of Common Stock are dcemed to be issued: 

(I) M further adjustment in tbe Conversion Price shall be 
made upon the subsequent issue of Convertible Securities or shares of Common Stock 
upon the exercise of such Options or conversion or exchange of such Convertible 
sccuritics; 

(lI) if such Options or Convertible Securities by their 
t e r m  provide. with the passage of time OI otherwise. for MY inaease in the considnaaioa 
payable to tbe corporation, 0rdeuw.w in the number of tbsras of Common Stock 
isouabie. upon the exercise. Conversion or exchange thcreot thc Conversion Price 
computed upon tbe originai issue thereof (or upn the OCCMCCC of a record date with 
nspcct tbaeto). and any subsequent adjustments bwd thueos shall upon any such 
increase or de- bccoming effective. be rec~mpured to mflcct such incrcasc or 
decrease insofar BS it affects such Options or rbe rights of conversion or exchange under 
such Convertible Securities; 

@I) no rcadjrzstmMt punuant to clausc (Il) above MI 
have the c&a o f  increasing the Ccnvcrsion Ria to an amount which exceeds the lower 
of (i) the Conversion Price on the original adjustment date, or (i) thc Conversion Price 
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that would have mdml fiom any issuaMc of Additional S h a m  of Common Stock 
bmveen the original adjustment datc and such readjwtment date; and 

. .  
(IV) upon &e expiration or tRrmnab on of any unexacised 

Option, tbe Conversion Price shall not be readjusted, but the Additional S h  of 
Common Stock deemed issued BS the d t  of the original issue of such Option shall not 
be deemed issued for the purposes of any subsequent adjustment of Ihc Conversion Price. 

p. In the event that the Corporation 
. . .  . .  (B) 

at any rime or from time to time after the Original lssue Date shall declare or pay any dividend 
on the Common Stock payable in Common Stock, or effect a subdivision of the outstandmg 
shares of Common S m k  (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in 
Common Stock). then Additional S h e s  of Common Stock shall be deemed IO have been issued: 

(I) in the case of any such dividend, immediately after 
the close of business on the record date for the determination of holders or any claw of 
d t i e s  entiiled to receive such dividend, or 

01) in the c89c of any subdivision, at the close of business 
on the date immediately prior to the date upon which such c o p r a t e  action becomes 
effeztive. 

If such ncord date shall have been fixed and such l v l d e d  
shall not have bcen fully paid on the date fixed therefor, the adjustment previously made 
in the applicable Conversion Price which b e  effective on such record date shall be 
canceled as of the close of business on such record date. and theresftcr the Conversion 
Pnw sball be adjusted purmant to this Subsection 4(d)(iii) BS of the time of actual 
payment of such dividend. 

(iv) 9 

In the event the Corpodm shall issuc Additional Sharcs of Common S t d  

c&mm&Q& 

(incl~durg Additional Sham of Common Stock deemed to k issucd PUrJuMt to Subactioo 
qdxiii)), without umsideaation er for a Eonoiddon per &arc 1- than the applicuble 
Conversion Rice in effect on the date of and immaLate . ly prior to such issue. then and in such 
evcni, such Conversion Price shall be reduced, concrplently with such issue. to a price 
(calculated to the nearest cent) ddaminrd by multiplying such Conversion Price by a fraction, 
the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding 
immediately prior to such issue plus the number of sham of Common Stock which the aggregate 
consideration received by the Corporation for the totel number of Additional Shares of Cmatnon 
Stock so issued would purchase at such Conversion Price; and the denominator of which shall be 
thc number of shsrcs of Common Stack outstanding immediately prior to such issue plus the 
number of such Additional Shares of Common Stock so issucd; provided Lhat, for the purpose of 
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&IS S~bscctiMI qdxiv), all shares of common Stock issuable upon cwversion of s h e s  of 
Scris A Preftnad Stock or otbex Cnnva-tible Securities aDd upon WtTciSc of options or wanants 
outs can ding^ * ly pnor to %n Iuuc +hall bcdcemedto be outstanding, and immdmtc ’ l Y  
aRcr any Additional Sharcs of Common Stock are deemed id pursuant to Subsection 4(d)(iii) 
(whether or not excluded from the definition of “Additional Sham of Common Stock by nrtue 
of clauscs 01). VI) and OV) of Subsection 4(d)(j)(D)), such Additional Shafs of Common Stock 
shall be dcemad to be outstanding; provided further, thaf in the event the Corporation, without 
receiving any consideration. declaros a dividend on Common Stock payable in Common Stock or 
effects a subdivision of the outstanding rbaEes of Common Stock into e greater number of shares 
of Common Stock, the Conversion Price in effect h e d t a r e l y  pnor to such stock dividend or 
subdivision shall, on the date that Additional Shares of Common StDck are deemed issued 
pursuant to Subsection 4(d)(uiNB), be decreased proportionatdy, and provided furlher. that the 
applicable Canversion Price shall not be so reduced at such time if the amount of  such reduction 
would be an amount less than %.05, but any such amount shall bc d e d  forward and reduction 
with respect thereto made at the time of and together wirh any subsequenl reduction which, 
together with such amount and any other mount or amounts so carried forward, shall aggregate 
5.05 or m m .  

(4 . For purposes of this Subsection 4(d), the 
consideration received by the Corporation for the issue of any Additional Shares of Common 
Stock shall be computed as follows: 

(A) -: Such consideration shall: 

0) insofar as it consists of cash, be computed at the 
aggregate of cash reccivcd by the Corporation, excluding amounts paid or payable for 
accrued interest or accrued divideads; 

(II) insofar as it consists of propnty other rhan cash. be 
wmputed at the fair market value thereof at the time of such issue, determined at of the 
clox of business on the date of cornputation based on thc closing price for such p r o m  
on the principal mkct on which such property tradcs or, i f b e  is no established marlcct 
for such propaty, as determid in good faitb by the Board of DMOIS; md 

131) in the event Additional Shares of Common Stock arc 
issued togctha with other shares or rcuritics or other assea of the Corporation fa 
consideration which covers both, be the proportion of such consideration 80 received, 
wmputed as provided in clauses (1) and (11) above. as determined in good f&tb by the 
Board of Directors. 

(E) ~. T f i e  consideration pcr s h  
w i v e d  by thc Corporation for Additional Sham of C o m n  Stock decmcd to have bem issued 
pursuant to Subsection qdfdHiii)(A), mlating to Options ~d Convertible !jccurities. shall be 
detcrtnined by dividing 
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(I) the total amoun~ if any. ibetiv#l or receivable by the 
corporation as c o n s i b o n  for &e iuve of 
minimum m a t e  amount of additional cumideration [as set forth in the btnment8 relating 
thereto, without rtgard to any provision contaiatd therein for a subscqmnt adjustment of such 
consideration) payable to the Corporation upon the exucise of such Options or the conversion or 
exchange of such Convettible securitiw, or in tfie case of Options for Convertible SccUritics, lhe 
exercise of such Options for Convertible Securities and the conversion or exchange of such 
Convertible Securities. by 

Opnons or Convertible Securities, plus the 

(11) the maximum number of shares of CElmmon Stock 
(as set forth in the iastrummts relating k e t o ,  without regard to any provision contained therein 
for a subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such Options or the 
conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities. 

p. Any Additional Shares of 
Common Stock dcemed to have becn issued pursuant to Subsection 4(d)(iii)(B), relating ro stock 
dividends and stock subdivisions, shell bc dcemed to have been issued for no consideration. 

. .  . .  
(C) 

(vi) 

In the event the outnanding shares of Common Stock shall be combined or 
consolidated, by reclassification or othcrvrix, into a lesser number of shares of Common Srock, 
h e  applicable Conversion Pncc in effcst immediately prior to such combination or consolidation 
shall, concurrently witb the cffeaivcness of such c a m L i d o n  or consolidation, be increased 
proportionately . 

. .  (vii) p. 

In w e  of any Aquisition Event (other than .an Acgukition Event which is 
braid as a liquidation pursuant to Subsection 2(c)), each sharc of Suics A Preferred Stock shall 
t k c a f k  be convertible into the M and amount of shares of stock or other ssuritics or 
propmty to which a bolder of the number of shares of Common Stock of thc Corporation 
deliverable upon wnvdon of such =a A R e f d  Stock would b v o  bccn entitled upon 

by the Board of D m o n )  shall be made in the application of tht provisions in this sation 4 set 
forth With respect to the rights and intmsr t h d c r  of the holders of the Serb A Preferrtd 
Stock, to the end rhst the provisions set fwth in this Section 4 (bsluding provisions with nspcct 
to changes in and other adjustments of the Conversion Price) shall the.- be applicable, 8s 

nearly as rUmnably may be. in relation to any shans of stock or other properly t h e w  
delivcrablc upon the conversion of the Serics A Preferred Stock. 

such Acquisition E v e  and. in such case. epproPri& adjlptmcat (as daarmncd . ingoodfaith 

(el No, The Corporation will not. by amendment of its Catificatc of 
Incorpmtioa or through any reorganization, transfer of assets. cowlidation, merger. 

- 1 1  - 
W L W n 3 A - i m U 1 a . I - t M 7  



dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any othcr v o l w  action, avoid or ssdc to avoid the 
obsavanoeorpnformance of any ofthe terms to be obsnvcdorpcrformed - by the 
CorpORtion. but will at all times ingood faith anin in thecanying out of all theProvisions of 
this Section4 and in the taking oiall such action =may be necessary 01 approprde inorderto 
protect the Conversion Rights of the holders of the Scrim A Refcmd Stock against hpakmcnr 

0 v. Upon UK occurrence of each adjustment or 
readjustment of the Conversion Price pursuant to this M o n  4, Ihc Corporation at its cxpcnx 
shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the t ern  hereof a d  
furnish to each holder of Sen= A Preferred Stock a ced~ficate sdting forth such adjustment or 
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is 
based. The Corporation s M I ,  upon the witten request at any time of any holder of Series A 
Preferred Stock. finnish or cawe to be furnished to such holder a similar certificate setting forth 
(I) such adjustments and d jus tments ,  (ii) rhe Conversion Priw then in effect, and (iii) the 
number of shares of Common Stock and the amount. if any, of othcr propcty which then would 
be received upon the conversion of Series A hferrcd Stock. 

(i) thar the Corporation declares a dividend (or any othw &mibution) on its 
Common Stock payable in Cummon Stock or other securities of the Corporation. 

(ii) 
Common Stock; 

that the Corporation subdivides or combines its outstanding shnrm of 

(iii) of any reclassifisation of the Common Stock of the Corporation (other than 
a subdivision or combination of its outnanding s h e s  of Common Stock or a stock dividend or 
stock distribution ulexcon), or of any Acquisition Event; or 

(iv) of the involuntary or voluntary dissolution. liquidation or winding up of the 
Corporation: 

then the Corporation shall cause to be filed at its principal office or at the office of the bansfcr 
q a t  of  the Smcs A Prcfurcd Stock, and shall cause to be mailed to tho holdem of the Scriss A 
Prcfmed Stock at their M addrcssea 5 show on the records of the fhpc~xation or such wander 
agent, at lcart ten days prior to the TtEold date 8pcEifd in (A) below or twenry days before thc 
dac spccifcd m (FJ) blow. a notice statim 

(A) the record date of such dividend, distribution. 
subdivision or combination. or, ifa record is not to be taken, t& daic as of which the 
holdcn of Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend, distribution. 
subdivision or combination a m  to be determined. or 
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@) rhe date on which such r e c k i 6 d o s  cwsolidati04 
mager, sak. dissolution, liquidation or w d m g  up is "cpefted to bewmc e f f h e ,  and 
the dale as of ~ c h  it is a@ that holders of Common Stock of recDrd shall be 
e n b d  10 mchauge rheir shares of Common Stock for securities or 0th propcrty 
delivuabie upon such RclassifiEation, co~lidaijon, merger, sale, disPoiubon or windiag 
UP 

5. Mandotory Conversion. 

(a) All. and not less than all. ofthe holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock tim 
outstanding Will be r e q d  to convert their shares of Series A Preferred Stock into sham of 
Common Stock, at the then effective Convvsjon Pricc. in the went of a public offering pursuant 
to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, resulting in ai least $20,000,000 of 
gross proceeds to the Corporation (a "Qualified Public Offering"). 

(b) In addition to the mandatory conversion provisions of Section 5(a) benof, all and 
not less U m  all. of the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstandmg will h 
required to convert their sham of Smcs A Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock at the 
then effective Convcnion Price, at any time upon winen notice received from the holders ofat 
least two-thirds (Z3) of the then outstanding shiucs of S&es A Preferred Stock comting to the 
autornaric conversion of all of thc Series A Preferred Stock into sharcs of Common Stock 
pursuant to this Section 5@). 

(c) In the case of any R U ~ O U ~ C  conversion pursuant to this Section 5, the outstanding 
shares of Scr is  A Preferred Stock shall be convened automatically Without any funher action by 
thc holders of such shares and &k or not the cdficatcs  representing such shans cue. 
surrendered to tbe Corporation or its transfer agent; orovided. rhet the Corporation shall not be 
obligated to issue to any holder certificates evidencing the shares of Common Stock issuablc 
such convexsioo unless Certificata evidencing such sharcs of Series A Pnfcmd Stock B T ~  

delivered either to the Corporation or my transfer agent of the Corporatian. 

(d) All wtificates evidencing shares of seslcs A Pnfared Stock which ~e repuired to 
be surrendered for conversion in accdarw with tbc provisions hemof &nU, fmm und utter the 
date such d a e s  arc so required to k nmndncd be dceoudto bsve bcenretirsd and 
canceled aadtbosbucs of Saiw A prcfcmd Smk qraenmitbereby cowwed into Common 
Stock for all purposes. no- . the failwe of the holder 01 hofdus tberrof to surrmda 
such certificates on or prior to such data. The Corporation may thaeafta take such sppropsiatc 
wuon as may be nuxssary to roducc the authorized Suiet  A Prefarad Stock acwrdingiy. 

6. Mnndrtory Redemption. 

(a) If the Company has not consummated a Qualified Public Offering, then at any time 
following rhe carliu of (i) Deocmbcr 31,2001, or (ii) six months following the date on which thc 
Company's first public offning pursuant to a registration statement under rhe SCcWities Act of 
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1933. as mendal, that is not a Queliscd Public Offering has ban consummated, the holdaf of 
Said A Preferred Sbcksball havethenght to require the Corporationtoradbcm shaTsof 
%its A Prcfmed Stock as described in this section 6 (th “Redemption”) at thc Redemption 
Ihce (as defined in Section 6(f) below) by delivering writtea notice to the Corpomion (a 
”Redemption Election”). 

@) Upon the dclivcry of a Redemption E l a i o s  a disinterested appmisal firm which is 
a member of a mgnized professional sssociatica reasonably acceptable to the Corporation and 
the holden of a majority of the Series A Preferred Stock shall determine Market Value BS S C ~  

forth &low. If the parties are unable to agra on an appraisal tim within 10 days after the 
expiration of the delivery of a Redemphon Eldon,  a firm shall be ssltcted by lor from thc top 
tier inveslment banking firms, aftcr the C o p d o n  and the holders of the Series A P r e f e d  
Stock have each eliminated one such firm (the “Appraisal Firm”). The Appraisal Firm shall then 
make a determination of the Market Value, and, using such determination of Market Value, shall 
calculate the Redemption Price. The selbajon and dctemunation of the Appraisal Firm shall be 
final and binding upon all parties. The expcnsor of rhe Appraisal Firm shall be borne equally by 
the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, as a group and on a pro rata basis in accordance with 
the s h e s  of Series A Preferred Stock to be rrdix.med, and the Corporation. 

(c) Within 10 days after thc final determination of the Redemption Price pursuant to 
subparagraph (b) above, the Carpodon s$all notify pmmptly all holders of shares of Series A 
PEferred Stock in writing (the “Rcdrmption Notice”) of the delivery of the Redemption Election 
and of the determination of the Redemption Price. The holders of shes of Series A Prefmed 
Stock may elect to a l l  to the Corporation dl or a portion of their shares of Strics A F’rderrcd 
Stock by delivning mitten notice to the Corporation within 25 days after delivery of the 
Redemption Notice. Subject to the provisions hereof, within 40 days after delivery of the 
Redemption Notiw, thc Corporation shaU purcbaw, nnd all such electing holders of Sens A 
Prefared Stock shall sell. thc portion of such shares which the holders thcrcof have elected to 
sell to the Corporation at a h c  and pkcc mutually agruable to thc Corporation and the h o l b  
of the Series A Preferred Stock (the “Redemption Closing”). The Corpoxation shall notify all 
holders of Serics A Preferred Stock of thc date end place of the Redemptaon Closing at least 
seven days prior to the Redempiion Closing. 

(d) At thc Redemption Closing, the hoIdm of Snies A Prefurcd Stock shnll deliver to 
the Corporerion catifrssru rrprrsnting the shares of S& A Prcfnrcd SIock wbich they b v e  
eencd to sell to the Corporation. nnd tbc Corporation Jlpll dclivn to eafh such holda the 
Redemption Price for each share o€Serir~ A Refaed Stock to be sold to the CocporstiOn by 
cashier‘s or certified check, by wire transfer to immcdiatcly available funds to an account 
designated by such holder, by the delivery of a Redemption Note (as htreinafkr dcfincd). or by a 
combination thereof, at the sole e l d o n  of the Carporetion. A n y  portion owsd to such holders 
which is not paid in cash or cash equivalents at the Redemption Closing shall be paid for by the 
issuance at the Redemption Closing of promissory notes secured by ths Series A Preferrat Stock 
of the Corporation in form and substance reasonably saxisfactory to rhe holden of rhc Series A 
& f a d  Stock (the “Redemption Notes”). At any time that Redemption Notes M outsranding, 
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the Corporation may incur bank debt or third-party institutional non-equity financing in 
connection with the operation of its business which is senior to the Redemption Notes so long as 
such debt does not prohibit the timely payment of amounts due on the Redemption Notes unless 

. . . mcb senior deb 1s in default at such time. Norwithstanding the foregoing, the Redemption Notes 
shall remain senior to my obligations owed to Clayton A. Thomas, Jr., Bruce W. Bcdnarski, 
Peter B. Callowhill, Corlyn A. Marsan, or other holdm of Common Stock. 

(c) Thc Rcdmption Notes will b a r  interest per annum at the greater of (i) Pnme plus 
100 basis points, or (ii) 8.0%. "Rime" means a floating rate per annum equal to the prime 
interest rate pcr annum published from time to tune in the "Money Rates" section of the Wall 
Strcct Journal (and the 'nighest such rate if more than one is so published). Accrued interest on 
the Redemption Notes will be payeble monthly. The principal mount  of the Redemptm Notes 
will be payable in thtrty-six (36) equal monthly installments beginning within 30 days of thc 
Redemption Closing as set forth in Section 6(d) above. The Redemption Notcs will be 
prepayable at the Corporation's option at any time without penalty or premium. 

( f )  The "Redemption Price" of a share of Series A Preferred Stock means the amount 
qual to the amount which would be received per share of Serin A Preferred Stock if the assets 
of the Corporation were sold for cash equal to the Market Value, and the Corporation were 
liquidated immediately thereafter pwsuant to Section 2. 

"Market Value" means the fair market value of the Corporation as a going concern 
determined on the basis of the sale of 100% of the Corporation as betwccn a strategic buyer and a 
willing seller and laking into account all relevant factors determinative of valuc. 

[ s i g n m e  on following page] 
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RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF PICORPORATION 

OF NETtoOo GROUP, WC. 

Net3000 Group, inc (hereinafter called &e “Corpration”), o r g a u d  and existug undsl 
and bv vlme of the Gcncral Corporation Law, of the State of Dchwwe. does hereby c e r t ~ f y  .as 
IUllO\C> 

The date of incorporation of tbe CArpratron is Octobar I ,  1997. 

The &e Board of Dugtors of the Corporation by Utianim~u~ ~ & c a ~  cvoscnt Bs provided 
by Section 14 1(f) of rhe Cicncrsi Corporauon JAW of the Stat< of Delaware, adopted a resoludon, 
pursuant to Sectlon 242 of the Gcncrd Corporation Law of thc S a c  of Delawarc, sening fonh 
an amended and rtswed Certificare of Incorporation of the Corporation and declariag said 
luncndmcnl and restatement to be advisable. The stockholders of !he Corporat~on duly approved 
said proposed amadmeor and r e s t a i ~ e n t  by wine0 consem in acmrdance witb Sections 228 
212 and ?.A5 of the G W I ~  Corporation Law of the State of D c k m ,  and uobw of sucb 
c o m t  har been ~ v e n  to all nockholdcrs who have not consent& in wriung to said amsndmcnt 
and restatemen! The resohmon setting fonh the amcndmenr IS as follows. 

RESOLVED That the CerriGcarc of hcorporauoo oftbe Corpora~on bc 
and he:eb) IS yncnded and m a t e d  as follows 

FIRST Ths name oithe corparatlon (whch IS heremafter called the 
‘Corporanon”) IS 

NeC000 Group, inc 

SECOND. Tbe recsured office of the Corporadon in the Sate of Delaware IS 
Corporadon Trun Center, 1209 Oranye Street, in &e City of W i q  Cowry of New Cpstle, 
Delaware 1980 I .  Thz name of its rcgislnsd agem in the State of &la- at such address is 
Thc Corporation Tnut Company 

THIRD The mhlrr ofrhe business ofrho Corporation IS to “gage in any lawful 
acr or activity for which corporatioas may be organized d e r  the G e m  Corporation h w  of 
Delaware acid to posscss and excrcise dill of (bc purrs and privileges granted under sucb law 
and Ihe o k  laws of rk Starb of Delaware. 

FOURTH: Thc to& number of sham of ell cLrrcs of stock which the Corporatiion 
shall have aurhority to issue is 35.000.000 in the ded@ classes 1c follow: 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

D I V I S I O N  OF CORWRATIONS 
~1=02:30 PM 05/19/1995 

981L92573 - 28OL600 



7,000,000 

A. 

( 1 )  me voang, dividend a d  I~quidat~on nghts of holders of Ebnres of Common 
Stock are subject to. and quatficd by. the nghts of &e holders of the Preferred Stock of any 
sene5 as m a y  be deslgmted bv the Board of Ihrectors 

(2) Sublect lo 7he vo- righrs of holdas of shares of the Referred Srock, the 
holders of thc Common Suxk are entirled IO one vote for each share held at all meedngs of 
stockholders (and Written actions in lieu of meetings). Tbere Jhall be M CUmUlative v o w  and 
at any msetmg held for the purpose of electing directors, tbe presence in person or by proxy of 
the ho1dm or a majdnty of the shares of Common Stock rhcn ournanding shall consunite a 
quorum of the Comolon Stock for the purpose of electing dirrcu\rs by holders of Cornmoo Stock 

(3 Dividends may be &land aad paid on the Cornon Stock from funds 
kwfully available herefor K. if and when 
any prcfenntial &wdend nghts oi any then oursranding Prtfirred Stock. 

by the Board ofl)lrectors and subject to 

(1) Upon v o l u n w  or involunraty liqujdatioo. sale. merger, comolidauon, 
dissoluhon or uinding up of the Corporation, holders of shares of Common Stock will hc rnulfed 
to receive all sSet(i of the Corporauoa available for dimiburion to its stockholders. subjccr to 
any prefcrencial rights uf any h e n  ~ ~ u t a n d i ~ g  Preferred Stock. 

(5) The Common Stock is nonrede-emable 

B. thkd3wk 

One million twenty-one housand eight hundred and m c r y i i g h t  ( 1,021,898) s h x r ~  of 
prefmed SUVA sfrsll be designated as ”Series A C o n v d b k  F‘rcfcmd Stock” (the “Scrics A 
Prefencd Stock”). par value 5.01 vaiue. Fivs Million five hundrcd cen thousvld five huodrsd 
--five (5,510,535) shares of Preferred Stbck shall be designated as ”Series B Converribte 
Preferred Stock” (ths “Series B Fkfcrred Stock”), PH value S.01. As more fJ ly  described 
below, h e  Senes A Prefenrd Srock and the Series B Prrfmed Stock shell rank, as IO dwideda 
and upon a Liquidadon Event (as defined in Arricle FOURTH(B)(,2) hcrcof), senior and +or to 
thc Coinmon Stock and al l  other classes or series of ShKtS issued by the Corporation (tbe ”Junior 
Stock”j. As more fully described below. the S m c r  B P r e f e d  Stock shall r a a k  as to dividendr 
and upon a Liquidation Event. senior to the Series A Preferred Stock. The Series A Pnfsned 
Smck and the Saics B Preferred Stock stull be refezred to b i n  collcctivel~ as the ‘‘Preferred 
Stock.” 
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somumandjng m* comninod in tiis RC-U~ Certiftace of Incowmion to thc 
conrmry, in no evml any Atijusmmt (as &fin& klow) be made to any of tbe terus of the 
SeriesB Prch-red Stock as a res& of h e  stock split being rffectuatcd by the COrpoAon 
concwenti). with rhz filing ofcbis Rssrarad Certiiicate of Incorpomrion (&e *Stock Split"). The 
tzms of the Smes A Preferred Stock shall bs s u b j a  to Adjustmat as 3 result of the Stock Split 

The Prefened Stock shall b v e  tbe following nghll, preferences, powers, pnvllegm and 
resbicnons. qdiicarions and lmfarions: 

1. Dividendr. 

(a) The holders of shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled lo rcccivc, out 
of funds legally available therefor. when and if declad by the Board of Directors: 

(i) annual dividends at the xatc per anwm of S .309 per share of tbe Series B 
Preferred Stock as adjusted for mck splits, %k dividends. tuapitahzations, rbclassrfications 
d similar events which affKt the number of oWaandmg s h e s  oftbe Series B Fkfcrrcd Suxk 
(my such wen< an "Adjment").  such dividends wiU accrue if not declared by tbc Board of 
Directors; 
consummated prior to the third anniversary of the Series B Original Issue Date is defined 
tKIow), no such dividends. wbsther arsrucd or unaccrued. will be payable. md upon rhc 
Occurrtncc of the Qualifying Evenr. dkiidcnds pursuant to this Secuon 1 la)(i') U'IU ceax w 
=clue, 

' , thar if a Qualifying Event (ar defined in S e d ,  l(d)\ h s  been 

(ii) i fa dnidend or other &&bution is declared or dimibmed on t h ~  
Common Stock o i the  Corporatior! below. &\iden& or &saibunons in an amount at 1- equal 
lo the amount that would hnvc k n  paid on b e  Common Stock intn wbich the Series B Referred 
Stock IS rben convertible d all such Common Smck had been issued upon conversion md had 
heen ouutaadine on the rrcord dare for such dividend or &slribution on Common Stock (or, if no 
record is &en, the date as of wbich the record holdcrs endtied to such dividend ox distribution 
are delcrrmncd) and (hercfot entitled to suchdividcnb or distiibub'ons; provlded that any such 
dividends payable under rhis c!ause (11) shall o m  any dividends accruing thereafter purswnf to 
clause (1); and 

(iu) such other dividends or dislxibutions Men and as dednred by the Board of 
Dirwors of the Corporation, actmg in its soIe discretion. 

@) Tbe holders of shares of Series .A Prcfand Stock shall be entided to receive, out 
of funds legally available therefor. when and ifdeclarad by thc h d  of Directors: 

ti) annual didends a! the rate per annum of 50.274 per share of Ihz Series A 
Plrfened Stock subject u, Adiustmar; such dividends will accrue if not declared by &e Board 
of Lhronors; , that if a Qualifyii  Event (as defined in Section I (d)) has been 
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consummated prior tn che third anaiversry of the Scries A Origieal Issue Date (as dcfmed 
klow). no such divilknds. whethe sccrued or unaccrued, will br payable, and upon the 
occurrence of the Qualifyrng Event, dividends pllrruanr IO his Section 1@)(1) Hill C e a s e  to 
a c m e :  

(i i :~ if a dividend or o h r  dirtribution k declared or distributed OD the 
Common Stock of the C o ~ r a h o r ,  below. dividends or disoibutions in an amount at leaR q U d  

to the amount that u’ould have been paid on Iht Common Stock into whch the Setie.s A 
Pnfmed Stock IS then convmble if all such Common Stock had been issued U ~ C D  conversion 
and had been outctanding on the rccord diue for such dividend or hstribunon on Common Stock 
(or, if no record is h rhc date 9i of whicb the recard holders enntled to such &vidend or 
distribution are determinbdj and rhercfor entitled to such dividends or dismbutions: provided that 
any such dividends payable under this clause (ii) shall offset my dividends accnung lhcrcafter 
pursuant to clause (i): and 

(iii’l such other dividends or JiSOibUrions when and as declared by rhe Board of 
Directors ofthe Corpora~on. acnng m its sole dlscrerion. 

(cj The holdcn of che Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid, in full, the 
dwidends arul bhiburiom declared or Q C C N ~  (regardless of whether payable) 01 payable in 
accordarre WIII clauws (a)@) and (a)($ above, prior to the paymmt of any dividcnds or 
dimibutiom in respect of Common Stock of the Corparation, the Series A Rsfcrrrd Stock, 
mcludinp a!!y dividends or dismbutions payable UI accordance with clsux (bl above. or in 
respecr of any olher seties of Preferred Stock of the Corporarion whose righr to payment of 
dividends or disuibuiors is j u o r  to tbc S a i e s  B Prefened Stock. unless the holders of a 
mjoriw of the shares of Series B Pretend Stock a w e  orherwise in writing The holders of t h e  
Series A Prefcd Stock ihall be entided to be paid, in full, rhe dividends and M b u t i o n s  
deckued OT accrucd ~.~egaFdlcss of whether payable) or payable io accordance u~tb clauses @)(i) 
and tb)<u) abcvc, prior to thc paymcnt of any diiividsnds or distributions in re-t of Common 
Smck of the Corporation or in rwwct of any other scries of Preferred Stock of tbc Corporahon 
whose right t9 payment of dibidends or dimibutions is junior to the Series A Preferred Stock, 
unless the holders of a majority of Lhe shares of Series A Preferred Srock agree otbcrwisc in 
writing. 

(d) A “QuBLifYing E k e d  rhall man (a) a Qualified Puhlic 0tTe.ring (as defined in 
Semon S@) bereof) or (3) an Aquisidon Event (as defined in Section 2(d) hereof). 

L Liquidstion, Dissolution or Wbdiug Up. 

(a) In & event of any Liquidation, dissolution or winbag up of thr Corporation (a 
-‘Liquidanon Event”). tbe ~ J K S  of &e Corporation available for dimibdon IO its stockholdm, 
whcrhcr fiom capital, suplrr 01 e-gs (the ‘‘Colporate ASS~(S”)  shatl be dimiburod as follows: 
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(i) subject to Scction 2@), to the holders of Series B Pr+fcrrsd Stmk m 
mount sufljcicnt (0 pay the holders of shares of Series B Prefmed Stock t h e n  oU-- an 
amount equal to S 3.085 per share tvubjcer <o Adjustment) PIUS d Btcrued dnd unpaid diwdmds 
tbcreon to be shared on a pro rata bas!$; 

(L) subjecr U, Sechon 2@), 10 the holders of Scrics A & f e d  Stock 
mount sufficient 10 pay the h o l d m  of sharer of Scrics A F’referrtd Srock thm outstanding an 

m o w t  equal to S3.125 per share (subject to Adjusimcntj, plus dl a r d  and unpaid dividaLds 
&ereon to be shared on a pro tau basis, and 

(ih) to Ihc holders of Corn00 Stock &e holdm of Smcs A R e f 4  
Srock and the holders of Series B Preferred Srock, on e pro rata basis, wth the mount 
dmributable computec! oa rhe basis ofthe number of shares of Common Stock which would be 
held by such holden if immcdrJrrlv prior to the Liquidation Event aU of the ShaRS of the SenZs 
A P r e f e d  Stock and Scnes B Preferred Stock ha4 heen m n v d  into sharcs of Common 
Stock: PmyldEd b. &at in rhc event that the holden of the Smes B Prcfcmd Stock 
receive no diazibulion under Section 3(a)(i) as a rcsdt of the operation of Section 3@), in no 
went shall rht dismbutioo with respecr to the holders of the S e n e  B Prrferred Stock under tfus 
Sscrjon 2ja)jiii) be less &an the Smes B Dimibuuon Minimum (as defined below) and 
w, -, rhat in the erent that rhc holders of thc Series A Preferred Stock reeive. no 
dkwibuoon under Section 3(aNul s a result of the opetauon of Section I@) ,  in no event shall 
rht diswibuaon with respcct IO thc holders of the Series A h e f e d  Stock under this Section 
XaXiiij be less &an the Series A Disnibutioo h.iinimum (as defined klow). 

For purposes of this Section 2ia); h e  term “SUI& A Distribution Minioum” shall m a  thc 
amount which would be dimbuted IO the holders of the Series A Prefened Stock undcr this 
Secion 2(a) if the amounf IO be disoibutg! under th~s Section 2(a) equaled the hiba amount 
whch would not cause the first sentence of Section 2(b) to become effective. For purposes of  
rhs Secdon Z(aj, rhe term “Scrics B Di&bu?ion Minimum” shall nvm &e MOUP( uAicb would 
be distributed to the hold& of the Series B Prefcrrcd Stock under rhis Section 2(a) if the mount 
lo be dutnbured under this S m o n  2(a) equaled the highest amout which would not cause the 
second sentence of Section 3%) to become effrctivr. 

@’, Notuirhstsnding Secuon z<o)ci;i, in the event of any Lquiddon  Event ~n whch 
the Corpora Assets, after the dismbution, if any, to the boldus of lhc Series B Referred Stock 
required punuant to Sechon Ya)ji), exceed an amount which i s  sufficienI to pay to &be holders of 
Common Stock. Smes B Referred S m k  and Seties ARcfemd Stock OD an as-.if-convmed 
and fW-dilUted basis, an mount pcx s h u t  peatex rhan dl accrued ~d unpaid divideads pa 
share on tbe outstanding s b s  of Series A P r e f d  Stock plus $10.275 wirhoUr raldng into 
i*jcuunl any nghts of,frhe Sm’es A Referred to preferential payment (subjea to AdjuSancot~ then 
no Corporate Assets shall be dimbuud pursuant to Section Z(a)(ii) and therefore the Corporate 
Ass& should be distribute4 pursuanr to Seccion 2(aHi) and Z(nXiiij, subjecr to the 1 s t  w n t ~ c e  
of lhis Section 2(b). Nonvithstandrng Secrion 2(a)(i), in rhe event of any Liquidadon Event in 
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which the Corporate Assets exfeed an amoun~ which is suflicicnt fg pay to the holders of 
Ccmmon Stock, Smes B Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred S1w.k on an as-if-cmvatal 
m d  fully-diluted basts, an amount per share gream than dl accrue3 and unpaid dividends p a  
W e  on rhe outstadkg shares of Series B Preferred Stock plus S 4.628 uithout taking into 
sccount sny rights ofthe Series B Prefened Stock or the Sene H * f t d  S'<ock UI orefcrenhal 
payfnenr (subjea 10 Adjmenr) .  tben no Cdporate Assets shall be dismbured PUrSuant to 
Section 2(~a)(i) or 2(a)(ii) and rherefore the Corporale Assets should be &&but& in accordapce 
with l(a)(ill) bereof. 

(c) Written nouce of such IiquidaUon, b l u d o n  or WLO- up, sta% a payment 
date, the amount of*& Iiquidation payments and the place w k c  sard liqudation payment shall 
be payablc. $MI be deliver& in pason, mailed by c e d i e d  or regislered &I, wxm receipt 
requested. or scut by vlecopier or telex not less lhan 20 days pnm to rhc payniem date stated 
cherciq to b e  holders of record of P r e f d  Stock, such notice to bc addrtssed to each such 
holder at its address as shown by the recurds of the Corporation 

{cl) t'nless the holders of a majonty of the rben out-ding s h e s  of Series B 
Preferred Stock elect othemiw. the merger, reorganization or conroiidation of the Corporation 
into ox -5th another carpodon ar the sale of all or subsrarUialiy all of the assets of the 
Cotponuoa or other simila hansmion or sezies of rrlarcd txansactlons, in which marc rbao 
50% of the Yotrig power of the Cwpocuion is disposed of or in which the suxkholders of  the 
Corporation immediately prior to such merger, mrg-tion or consolidation. own less than 
50?% of the Corporation's voting power h m 4 a t c l y  after such merger, reorganizadon or 
consoli3arion. or the salc of all or substanGally all the arsceS of the Corporarion (my sucb event 
an "AcquislUon Event" t ,  shall k deemed to be a liquidation dissolurion or w n h g  up of the 
Corporarion for purposes of Section 2iaj. 

l,ei Unless rhc holders of at leasr rwo-thirds (X) of the then outsmdmg sharer of 
Series A hefemd Stock elect orherwise, any AcquWUon Event shall be d ~ m o j  to be a 
liquidanon, d.ksolurion or Wmdmg up of the Colporaoon for purposes of Section 2&). 

3. vo-g. 

(a) Except as provided in Sections 3(b) and (G) below and elsewbere in this Reslatsd 
Cdt icato  of Incorporation, e& holder of oursranding shares of Prcferred Stock shall be macled 
to the number of votes equal IO the number of whole shims of Common Stock into 
sham of Referred Smck held by such holdsr arc convmible (as adjusted kom time to rirnC 
pursuant to Seoion 4 hereon, at each meeting of the stocltholders of &e Corporation (and wrinen 
actions of stockholdns in lieu of mast+) with respect to any and d matters presented to the 
rwckboldcrs of thc Coporation for their action or c o n s i d d o n .  Ex- a$ provided by Lsw, by 
the provisions of  Sections 3(b) and fc) below or by the provisionz establishing any other wries of 
Preferred StocL. holders of Scries A Pteferred S t o c k  Series B Preferred Stock and of any orher 

the 
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~utsmndmg series of bfmd Stock sMl vote togetha with the boldm of Common Ytwk as a 
single class. 

(b) The holders of a majority of the sham of the .=es B P t d W  St~ck,  VO- 
together as a separate class shail be entitled to (i:) elat one  le. tLc ZoLpdon's Board of 
Direcron ( h e  "Smes B Prefemd Director"), (ii) to remove rbe SCries B hefwtd Director. and 
(tii; 10 fill xi? vacancy o c c m g  on rhe Board of Directors as a d r  of the dcath, resignation or 
removal of the Suies B Preferred Director. 

(c) The holders of a mqonty of the shrrcs of UE Series A Referred Stock, voting 
tog& as a separate class, shall be entitled 10 (I)  e lea one duector to the Corporadon's Board of 
Directors {he "Series A Preferred Dircctor'j, (1)) to removc rhe Scmcs A Preferrod &rector, and 
(i i ij  to fill any v m c y  occurring on the Board of DLators as a result uf the death. resignation or 
removal of the Series A Preferred Dlrecfor. 

(di A J I ~  and d dircctor posinons in aces5 of &e one director elecud by the holders 
of the Senes €3 Prcfcsred Stock pursuant to Ssctron 3(%) Md th one director elected by the 
holders of the Series .4 Prefemd Stock pursuant lo S-on 3(c) shall be elected by !he holders 
of the Common Srock and tbe Prefcnrd Stock voting a$ a single class. The Corporation shall not 
expand the number of Directors wirhout the witten coaxnt or affirmative vow of thc holders of 
8 majority of rhe rhcn outstanding shares of each of SVizs h F'wferrcd Stock and Series B 
Preferred Stock, given In wifing or by vote af a meeting. consen- or vodog (as che case may 
be); each voring separately as B class. 

(e > The Corponrnon shall no\ wirbout the wntten conscut or n 5 m a b x . c  vote of a 
aajonry 01 me holders of &e then ouacanding shares of S m c s  El hrfured Stock. given in 
wntmg or by vote at a r n e e w .  consenrmg or vohng (as the case may be) together as a class 

(i:) prior to May 18,2001. engage YI an Acquisition EvC~II, d c s s  &S w d u e  of 
the Corpurarion based on such transaction is equal lo or exceeds 51 30.000,000 and the procabds 
received by the Corporation are in carb ox securities publicly traded on a recognired Unitcd 
States securines exchange, 

(ii) audorize, creaw or issue m y  sbares of stock, or sacurities exchangeable 
for, convertible -to or evidencing the right to putchasc any sJ~harrs of stock having rights, 
preferences or privilcgcs (including without Limitation. redemption rights or rigbrs of anti- 
dilutaon promxion) supenor to or on a parity wirh that of the Scrics B PrefnTcd Stocq including, 
wirhour timiration, mhoriation or isuance of additional shares of Series B Prcfmd Stuck; 

(iii) amend. alter, or rrpeal the Corporaboo's Bylaws (mcluding, Witho~S 
imitation Arriclc 2 thereof) or thrs Ccnificac of Inccrporatxon so as LO materially affect the 
preferences, spceial rights o r  otber powers of& Series B Rcisnad S w k  
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prelkmect Stock or the Common Smck unless mcb dividend is paid ia the fom of shares of the 
Common Stocli; 01 

deciare or pay my divldcnd on rbe Series A Prcfcned Stock Series I? 

(v) repurchase or redeem any shares of the Common Stock or of &c Series A 
R e f 4  Stock mcludmg without Imitation repurchases made hcm Claymn A. Thomas. Jr.. 
Bmce W Bednarsh , Mark Mendss. Pew 3 Callowhill and Corlyn A. Marsaa but OW than 
repurshases made from other cmployces or c o u s u l ~ ~ ~ t s  ill conncction witb rhcir tcrmiaarion of 
emplovmcni or consulting smiccs, as the care rmy be. or in accordance with the t- of the 
Cotperanon’s &&I of First Refull as set fonh in the Amended and Restated InVCStbr Rightr 
Agreemar between the Corporation, the b l d m  of the Pref‘cmd Stock md cnZain holdcn bf 
Common Stock dated Mav 18, I998 

(f) The Colporation shall noc. withoutthe writtea consent or affvmadve vote of du 
holders of a majority thc then outsraoding s h e s  of Series .4 Preferred Stock, given in Writing or 
by vore at a meetin& consenting or voting (as rhc case may be) togcthcr as a cl- 

(i) prior KO December 31, 2000, mgage m an Acquisition EvcnI, unless the 
vduc of &e Corporation based on such mawaction is equal to or exceeds 530,000.OOO and t h e  
proceeds received by the Corporation are in cash or securitia publicly traded on B rrcogmzd 
United Srarps secwiaes escbaoge, 

(ii) &on=. create or issue any shares of stock or securities exchangeable 
foi. converrible into or evidencing &e right to purchase any hares of stock, ha%~;iOg rights, 
prefmmccs or privileges (includq without limitation. redempaon r ights  or rights of =ti- 
dilunon proWmon) supenor u) or on a parity with that of the Series A Prefer& Stock including, 
without Lunitahon. authorization or issuance ofrdditional  share^ of  Senes A F’refemed SUK.~; 

(iii) amer4 alter, or repeal the Corporation’s Bylaws (:including, w’lthout 
liolirauon Article 2 thereof) or ais Certificate of Incorporauon 50 BS to m a ~ c r i p l l y  &ea rbc 
prcfcmnc.m special rights or other powers ofthe S a i c s  A Frcfcrrd Smck; 

(iv’) 
Preferred Stock or rhe Common Stock unless such dividend is paid in the form of sha~cr of the 
Common S I O C ~ ;  or 

declare or pay any dwdend on &e Series A Referred Stock Smm B 

(v) repJrchase 01 redeem any sham of the Common Stock or of the Series A 
Preferred Swk, including, wirhout limitation, qurcharcs mads from Clayton A. Thomas, Jr., 
BIUW W. Bednar~ki, Peter B. Callowhill and Corlyn A. 
from other employees 01 c~a~uhanu in conneedon with tbir termina don of employment or 
copnulting scrvices. a5 rhs CPK may be, or in accordaxe-wirh the terns of the Corporsrion’s 
h e h i  of Fun Refusal as set fonh in the Amended and Restated Investor Righn Agreement 

but &et than r e p h  made 
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&men ue ~orporarion, b e  holders of thc Pnfared Stock a d  carrain holden of 
stock, dared May 18,1998 

ej Corporfion 3 ~ 1  mi, without the consent or affirmauve VOV- of a mjoriv of 
m d n p :  

iD- ~ ~ O K  md subordinattd indebtednerr that rn the awegate exceads 

& ~~~d of Directors, given in wTiting or by vofe 

the w m  of (x) four times the Cmpotation'r d g s  before interest. ws, deprrcktion and 
amortization and (yj S30.000.0W; or 

(ii) mnkc c a y i d  cxpcnd~turcs rhm exceed SI5,OOO.OOO pzt annum 

Optioml Conversion. The holders of thc Prefarod Stock sball bavc conversion 4. 
rights as iollows (the "Convemon 12lghts"j: 

(ai Each sharc of Preferred Stock shall bc convertible. at tlx opdon 
of rhc holder thcreof. at any bmc and fium b e  to time, into such number of fully pard and 
nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividmg the applicable h i g h d  
Purchase Rice (as defincd belcwj by the Conversion Price (as cletinrd below) in effect at the 
time of conversion. The Oriplaal Purchase Price of h e  Sene3 A Prefmed Stock shall Lx 4 
i 425. The Original Purchase Pncc of the Series E! prsfmed Stock shall he $3.085 Ihe 
conxersion p c e  at whch hares of Common Stock shall be deliverable y o n  conversion of h 
Prefmd Stock without the paymenr of additional cons ibdon  by h e  hold- thereof (the 
"Conversion Plice"! shall initially he $ j 425 for the Series A F'refened Slock and S3.085 for the 
Series B Prefmed Stock Each laitid Conversion price, and the catc at which shares of Pretend 
Stock may be convened into shares of Common Stoc.k, shall be ruhjea IO d j m e n t  as provided 
below. 

In tbe went of a notice of redemption of any shsrts of Preferred Stock pursuant to 
Section 6 hereof. the Conversion Rights of the s h a m  desigmd for redemption shall terminate 
at Ihc close of buciness o n  tbe fifth full day preceding &e dale fixed for redemption, tdcss the 
rutempaon price is not paid uhsn due. in which case rhe Converrjon hghrs for such slums shall 
continue until such pice i s  pad IP full. In h? event of a liquidation of the Corporatroh &e 
Cooversion Rights shall renninafe a1 rhe close of business on the first full day precedmg rhe date 
fixed for the payment Of M y  amounts distriburable on llquidahon to the holders of Preferred 
Stock 

-. No fractional sham of Common Stock zh.ll bc issued upon 
conversion of the Prefemed Stock. In lieu of any fractional shares IO which the bolder would 
otherwise he atitled. &Corporation shall pay cash qual to such fraction rnuItipLied by the rbao 
cffechve appliubb Cmve&on price. 

(C) 
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(i) order for a holder of R e f m d  Stock 10 Wx~Vefl 

Stock &m of Common Stock such bald& shall surrender the czrdficatc Or wrtificaWs for 
such s b s  of Prcfened stock at Ihe ofice Of rbc u?aSfcr agent for rbc hferrcd Stock tor st the 
principal office of thc C-rarion i f  the Corporation s e w =  as it3 own transfer agent). mgaIra 
uith vrrinm notice that Juch blder elects to c u ~ v m  all ore) .  of the shares O f  the 
hcfmed Stock rcprescnrd by such cemficate or cert i f ies .  Such notice zhall SI& Such 
holder's m e  of &e names of thc nununem 1n which such holdcr wishes chc CCrti f iCatC or 
certificates for s b e t  of Common Stuck io be issued. If rcquircd by the Corporaaoa. certificates 
s u n d e r e d  for conversion shall br endorsed or accorn&bd by a Wrj- instrument 01  

innsuments of &a, in form satisfaaory IO the Corpratioh duly exemred by the registered 
holder or I s  01 is attorney duly surhorizsd in wtiring. The date of recelpr of such certific*s 
a d  notice by the transfer agcnt (or by the Corporation if tbe Corporation sewes as lt5 0-n 
-fer agent) shall bs thc converuon datc ("Conversion Date") "he CarpOmtion shall. as Soon 
as pracricnble after the Convrrsion Date, issue and delivex at such ofice to such hoider of 
Preferred Stock. or 10 his or its nominees a certificate or certificatrs for rhe number Of Shares Of 
Common Stock to which such holder shall be entitled, rogethrr wirb cash in lieu of m y  &don 
3f a share. 

of Prefenad 

(ii) The Corp,r&on shall at all times when the Preferred Stock shall be 
outstanding. -e and keep available out of its authorized bur uuissued acxk, for the purpose 
of sffectlng the conversion of Preferred Suxk, such number of Its duly authorized shares of 
Common Stock as shall from m e  10 time be sufficient IO effect the conversion of 311 ouWimdi~  
shares of Preferred Stock. Before &g any action svbicb wodd cause en adjwment reducing 
rhe Conversion Pnw below the rhcn par value of the sharas of Common Sock issuable upon 
convxsion oi P r e f d  Smck the Corpombon wl1 take any corporate a c h u  u s c h  may, in thc 
opinion of 11s couascl, be nc~c55ar;r In ordcr that chc Corporation may vatidly and legatly issue 
fully pud and oonassessabl: sharcs of Common Stock at such adjusted Conversion Price. 

(i i l)  Lipon my such Convasion, no adjumnCnr IO U u  applicable ConveFsion 
Pncc shall be made for any aczmcd and unpaid dwidends on Preferred Stock surrendered for 
convtrsion provided tbat all accrued and unpaid dwidends shall ltmaul payable pursuant to the 
terms of Section 1 a h v e .  

(iv) All shares of Prcfcrrcd Stock which shall have  CUI sunendeted for 
convsrsion as her& proGded &ball no longer be deemed to be ourstaading and all rights with 
r v d  such h. including the rights, if any. to receive notices and t~ vote, sball 
immediately cease and rerminnic on the Conversion Dote, except only the right of L6c h o l m  
tbRmf to receive s h e s  of Common Stock in exchange therefor md payment of any accrued and 
upaid dlvrdendr on rhe shares of Prcfmed Stock exchgsd. h y  shares of Preferred stodc so 
convened shall be retired and caocdcd and shall 
-e. 10 rime tDkc such appropriats acuon as may be neussary to reduce rhc aho- Preferred 
Stwk accordingly. 

& corpo~on may 
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(4 
-. F O ~  purposes of zhts Subsecoon W). rhf fouowine, . .  

(1 ) 
definruons shall apply. ~~ . 

(A) "Optjon'' mean rights, options o r  U-IS to s u b s l i b  for, 
pwchsse or orhenvise acquire Common Stock or Converdble Securiiies, cXClubg opttons 
granted to employees or consullan~s of Ihc Corporation purnranr to UI opciuu pleu or other 
wpngements adopted by the Board of Duecum, to acquire up to a maximum of 2,411,698 
shwa of Common Stock, such number of shams giVmg effect to the Stock S p h  119 ournaOding 
on the date herwf (subject to appropriate adju-r for any stock dwidend. stock split. 
combination or orhcr similar tscapitaliidon af€-g such rharesj 

IB) "Original Issue Date" shall mean rbz date on which a share of 
Series A Preferred Stock or Senes B Prefertad Stock, as appticable. was f i r s  issued. 

( C )  "'ConveNble Securities" shall mcan any evidences oi indebtedness. 
shares or other securities directly or indirtnly converthle into 01 excbangeabie for Common 
Stock. 

(D) -Addinn& Shares oiCommon SrocY shaN mean all shares of 
Common Stock issued (or. pursuant KO SubSauio~ jcdxiii) below, deemed to be issued) by the 
Corporation after The Series B C h g d  Issue Dale, o h  rhan s h e s  of Common Srock issued or 
issuable: 

0) upon conversion or shares of Prefemd Stock 
on the Series B Original h u e  Date: 

(11 1 as a dwidend or distlibmion on Prefentd Stock; 

(TI1 > by ~ C B S O T ~  of a dividend, stnck split. split-up or other 
distribution on shares of Common Stock excluded horn the definition of Additional Sbarrs of 
Common Srock by tht foregomg clauses (Ij and (II) or this clause (ID); or 

upon h e  cxc.&e of the options sxcluded from the 
definition O f  "option" in Subwcbon 4(d)(i)(A). 

(a p ' . No adjusrmmt in rhe nrrmber of 
shares of Common Stock into which Preferred Stock is convertible shall be made. by a d j m t  
ia the appIicPble Conversion Price theroof: (a) unless the considerjlton per shart (de-ed 
Pursuant 10 Subseetion 4(dWvN for an AddnionaI Sham of Common Stock i s sud 01 deemcd to 
be i+sued by the Corporation IS less than the applicable Conversion priw in effect on h e  date of. 
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h h 

aod unmadiatdy pnor to, tbe  sue of such AddIdonal Sharef or (bJ If prior fo sucb IS~UPIIC~,  the 
Corporahon recejvts mmn notice from the holdm of a! kasr t ~ o - t h ~ ~ d s  (2'3) of the rhen 
o u d g  shares of cacb of rhc Smes A Refarad Stock aud The Senes B k f e d  Stock 
agreeing that 1l0 such adjustmen1 shall be made as rhe result of the issuance of AddrtIod Shares 
of Common Suxk 

(A! p. If the Corporation at any rime 
or €ram time to m e  after lilt applicable Otigtoal lsme Dots S h a l l  issue m y  +Dons or 
Convertible Sccuriues or shdl f i x  a rcsrd datc for thc dc-wo.on of holders of m y  class of 
~curities entitled IO receive m y  such Options or Convatible Securities, &en tbe maximum 
number of shares of Common Stcck (,as set forth in tbe insuumsnt relating thereto witbout reggard 
10 any' provision contained therein for a subsequent a d j m e n t  of such numbcr) issuable upon 
the e x e r c k  of such Opttoas or. in the case of Convertible Secunnes and Options therefor. thr 
~ n v r r ~ m  01 cxchangc or' such Convcmble Sccuntres. shall be dzemad to be Additional SharcS 
of Common Stock issued as of the hmc of such issue or, in case such a record daw shall bave 
been fixed, as of &e close of busmess on such record date. providtd h a t  AddrUonal Shares of 
Common Stock shall not be deemed IO have been issued unless he: considemtion per share 
(&mind pursuant 10 Subsccum 4(d)(v) hereof) of such Addino.d Shar- of Common Stock 
would bs less than th= applicable Conversion Price in effect on rbe dale of snd immejiarcly prior 
to such issuc, or such record &tc. as the case may be, and provided m e r  Wbar in any such case 
in which Addirional Shares of Common Stock are deemed lo be issued 

(1) no further adjusent  in rhe applicable Conversion Ptiic 
shall be mndc upon rhe subsequent issue of Convertible Secuities OT shares of Common Smck 
upon the exercise of snch Options or conversion or exchange of such Convertible Sccuritics, 

(11) if such Options er Convertible Securilie?i by thir termr 
provide, wirb the passage of rime or oth&e, for any incrcaw m thc consideration payable to 
the Corporation, or decrease in chc number of rhares of Common Stock issuable, upon h e  
e x m c ~ e ,  conversion or exchange thzroof, the applicable Conversion Price computed upon the 
onglnal issue &mof (or upon the  o c c u m ~ l ~  of a record date wirh respect rhzreto), and any 
subquent  adjusuncnts based thcrron. shall, upon any such increve. or decrease becoming 
effective. be recomputed to reflect such increase or decrease insofar as it affects such Opbons or 
the rights of conversion or excbaoge under such Convmiblc Sccuritics. 

011) ne rcadjuhtmenr pursuant to clause 00 h v e  sball have the 
effect of increasing rbt applicable Convetrim Price to au mount Waich emeels the low of (i) 
&e amliable Conversion Price oa rhe 0rigm.d adjustmat date, or (ii} che applicable Conversion 
Price ttU0 would haw resulted from any issuancc of Additional Shares of Common Stock 
between the original adJunolcnt datc nnd such readjustment dare; and 
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(I\') 'qon h c  expiration or temuasrion of m y  ~ n e ~ e r ~ l ~ d  

option, &e applJablc Conversion F%cc shall DO[ be readjusted, but 
colomon Stock deemed issued as the result of the on@ issue Of such @tion shsll not be 
dccmtd l~sued for the pufposx cf u! r u b w q w t  gjusanent of the applicable Conversion Pricc. 

Additional S-S Of 

srnrldludgndsands~hd. h the event rhat the 03) V 
. .  . . .  

Corporarim ar any timc or h r n  rime IO dme after tbc applicable Original Issue DSC shall 
declare or pay any d w i i h d  on the Common Stock payable in Common Stock or effect a 
,ut&vision of the oumarrdmg sharcs of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwse lhan by 
payment of a dwidend in Common Stock), tben Additional shares of Common %oCk Shall bc 
deemed IO have been i m d :  

(1) u1 tbe cast of any such &Vidmd. imrprhtcly after che 
close of busmess on the record date for thr dn&noo of holdtn or my class of seswbes 
cnbtled to receive such dividend. or 

@I) in the case of any subdivision, n1 the close of business an 
h c  ds.e immcdi&ly +or to the dae upoc which such corporate action becomes effective. 

If such record dsrc shaU have bxn fixed and such dividend shall 
QOT have been Wly paid on the dare fixed therafor, du adjustment prcvlously made m lhc 
applicable Convmion Rice which became effective on such record dare shall be canreled as of 
the close of busmess on such record date, and tbereaftcr &e applicable Conversion Pricc shall be 
adjutcd pursuant IO chis Subsection .l(d)(iii) s ofths time of achlal payment of such &ridend. 

. .  
(Iv) P of.4- 

Common-. 

(A) la rbe event the Corporation shall issue 
Additional sharrs of cbmmon Stock pnor 10 the applicable FuU Rachet Daw (ar defined bclow) 
(mcluding Additional S b s  of Comman Stock deemed to be issued pursuant to Subsection 
4(d:)(iii)), Uirhout considerallon or for a consideration per sharc less than the appiiuble 
Conversion Rice in effect on thz date of and immediately prior to such issue, thco nnd in such 
evenr. such Conversion Price shall be reduced, concurreatly with such issue, to a pncc equal IO 
the comdtration pcr share for such Addiuonal Shares of Common Stock effective p5 ofthe b 
of thc issuance of such Additional S h  of Common stock; provided that in tbe event h e  
Corpomnon, without receiviw MY considen$on. declares a drvidend on Common Stock payable 
in Common Stock or effects a s*vision of the 
pealer number of sham of Common stock, the Conversion Price io d e 1  immrdi.rely prior to 
such stock dividend or subdivision shall, on thz date thz4 Mditiond Shares of Common Stock 

d=md issued pununnt to Subsection C)(dXiii)(B), be decreased proportionately, and 
provided funbcr, rhal the applicable Conversion Price shnU not be so reduced ai such time if the 
amount of S u c h  reduction would bc &I amount less than S.05, but m y  such amom shall be 

shares of Common Stock into a 

- 17 - 

WASUOII: 12T373:2:Mne91 
2696hJ 



.n A 

c&cd fo-d and r e d d o n  with ~espect KhCRtO mads at tbc 
s & w u a t  &u&on *ch, togcrher with such Bm0-t aod anY Orhe1 amout Or - 0 e  

Of and 

forud, shall aggregarc s os mors. The ^Full Racber Daw'' for the .A preferred 
Stock shPI1 *a0 May I R, 1999. The "Full Rachet Date" for the Series B Preferred Stock shall 
meanKor+mbcr 14, 1999. .~ i .~ 

(W 5.  NO^^ i? 
conrainsd in Section i.4 j above IO the contrary, in the even1 the Corporation shall issuc 

A d l b o d  S h s  of Common Stock solely 10 my holdas of the Series A ifsfcrred Stock or the 
Scries B Preicd Stock prior to rbe applicable Full Rather Date [ixUhChg Addiuod Sharcs of 
Common Stock decmcd IO be issued purmar~ to Subsmion qdxni)), without consldcrauon or 
for a consideration pcr share lcss &an the applicable Conva%on Price in e f f d  on the h of dnd 
unmcdjerzly prior 1 0  mch issw. hen and in such event, such Conversion Pnce shall be reduced, 
concuncnrly with such issue, to a price equal to the pcater of (x) the cons~dennon pff share for 
such Addmod Shares of C o q o n  Srock eRe&ve BS of the date of Ihe is~uancc of such 
Addmood Shams of Common Stock or (y) rhc Share Fau Market Value (.a & f w d  klow); 
provided that the applicable Conversion Price shall no: be so reduced at such time if the amount 

forward and duction with respect hereto made at the time of and together with any subwuent 
reduction which, together with sucb amount and any other amout or amoun~s SO tamed 
forward. 5 M l  aggegatc $.OS or morc Tbc "Share Fair Market Value" shalt mean the Fair markd 
valur of share o€Common Stsck on the date of and immediately prior IO such issue 10 bc 
dctcrmined by d~smtnerred appraisal frrm which is a member of a recognized pofessiod 
associahon reasonably acccprable to the Coporahon and the holders of s majonw of &e 
Preferred Srock lr the p d e s  are unablc to rtgrcc on an appraieal tirm wirhin IO days after the 
issue of sock, a firm shalt h? wlccrerl hy lot from b e  -tier investmcnr banking firms, after the 
Corporarion and the holders of rbs Preferred Stock have each eliminated one such h. The 
selecred appraisal firm shall then make a determination of hz Sbare Fair hiarka Value. The 
sclcstion and dtxermkuioa o f  thc appraisal frm shall be ihrrl and b&&g upon di parties. 7ha 
cxpsnscs ofthe apprsid firm shall be born by the Corporation. 

of such reduction would be an WOUPI less thsn S.05, but any such m o r n 1  shall be camed 

(C) p. In rhe event the Corporation shall ssue 
Addidonal Shares of Common Stock on or aftcr the applicable Full &bet D a k  (including 
Additional Shares of Common Stock deemed m be issued pursuant LO Subsecuon 4(dKiii)), 
wrhout conridemion or for a consideration per shue less than the applicable Conversion Price 
10 effca on the date of and immc&atcly prior to such issue, then ~LUI in such cvcnt, such 
Conversion Price shall be reduced concurrhltly with such issue, to a price (calculated fo the 
n-1 cent) dncnniacd by multiplying such Convcnbn Rics by a kaction, thc nunmator of 
which shall be the number of ~harcs of Common Stock outstnnding immediately prior to such 
issue plus the number of shares of Common Stock whichthe aggregate wnsideration received by 
the Corpodon for the total number of Additional Sham of Common Stock SO i s d  would 
PWhare at such Convmnon Pnce; and rhe dcnominamr of which shall be rhe number of shares 
Of COrnmOn Stock outstaoding unmediataly prior to such issu+ pins Che  umber of such 
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Addriitioaal Sara of Co-on Stock so i d  provided rhat. f o r  tbc p”p0Ss of tbir Subsection 
4(d)(w). all shares of Common Stock issuable upon convenion of shares of E’refmed Stock or 
otber C o w m i l e  Securities ad upon exercise of options or wanants O U U - ~  tmmsdiately 
por  to such issue shall be deemed to be outstanding, and m & i a v l y -  d e r  any Addjfional 
Shares of Cornmoo S w k  are ?-+ itrucd purmantto Subsection I(d)(iiij (urhnho or not 
axcludcd from ihe defirution of “Additional Shares of Common SuxY by virtue of-clauws (11). 
cm) and ( W )  of Subsection I(dH.i)(D:)), such Additional S h c s  of Common Stock Shall be 
deemed w be outstnndmg; provided further, that in the event l he  Corporahon WithoUr K c C i w  
my consideration, declares a iiividmd on Common Stock pyablc in Common Stock or s f f e  a 
sub&vlsion of the ournandmg shares of Common Stock inm n w c r  number of shara of 
Common Stock h e  Convetsio~ F’rice in effect immediately prior to such s t x k  diGd-d 01 

subdivision zbalL on thc date b t  Additional Shares of Common Stock are deemed issued 
pursuant lo Substion 4(d)(ii11(5]. be d e c r c d  propxtioearely. and providzd *,that the 
applicable Convmion Price SUI not tx 90 rcducsd at such time if the amouni of such r e d d o n  
would be an amount less Than $ OS. but any such amount shall be w e d  forward and reduction 
with respec1 therm0 made at rhc Lime of aod logelha witb any subsequent reduction which, 
together -7th such amount a d  any other amount or amounls so carried toward. shall aggregate 
5.05 or more. 

Qs’ For purposes of this Subseaion qd),  thc . .  
fV) 

consideiat~on received by the Corporation for the issue of any Additlord Sharcs of Common 
Stock shall be computed as follows 

(A) C&u&pmbCm.: Such consideranon shall: 

(lj m s o h  as it consists of cash. be computed at the eggregare 
of cash received by rbe Corporation. excluding mounb plud or payable for accrued interest or 
accrued&vidends: 

(11) insofar as i t  wmsts of propmy other than cash, k 
computed at the fau marka valus thereof at the time of such issue, d u d c d  as of the close of 
business on the darr of computation based on the closing price for such property on tbe prinapal 
market on  which such p r o m  trades or, if there is no cstabtishcd markt for such property, s 
determined in good faith by W Board of Directon; and 

(m) in the event Additional Shares of Common Srock are issued 
together with ocher shares or sbcuntm or other asseu of the Corpomion for consideration which 
covers both, be the proportion of such consideration so receivd wmputd as provided in 
c l a w s  (I) and @I) abow. 05 dcGenninsd in good fiith by the Board of Directors. 

(B) p. V The considetation pcr share 
received by Corporation for Additional Shares of Common Stock deemed to have been issued 
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pursuant to S u b d o n  4(d)(iuXA). relating to Opdon~ and CmvaTible SecuridK shd be 
dererrmned by &Vi- 

a> &e total amounf if m y ,  rcceaved or receivable by thc 
Corporation as consideration for h e  issue of such Options or Convatlble Securities. plus the 

..minimum aggregate amount of ddi;iunal considedon (as sct forlh m Ihc insQumearS rela* 
therno, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent a d j m e n t  of such 
consideration) payable to the Corporation upon the exercisc of such Optios or the c o n d o n  01 
exchange of NEh Convertiblc Securities, or in the w e  of Oprionr for Convertible Securities. the 
rxacife of such Options for Convet%ble Securiria and the conversion or exchange of such 
Convenible Securities. by 

(11) rhc maximum numbex of s h e s  @f Common Stock (as se1 

forth in the mr;lnamenU relating thereto, withom regard to any pro\islon contaioed *rein for a 
subsequent adjunwnr of such number) issuable upon h e  e x e r c k  ofsuch Options or the 
conversion or exchange of such Cwwertible Sccuriues. 

. b y  Additional shares . .  . .  iC) 
of Common Stock deemed IO have been is& pursuant to Subsection -l(dfWm). relating to 
stock didends and stock subdivisions, shall be d e e m 4  to have ken issued for no 
consideratton 

. .  . .  (vi) -nSo rCo- 

In the event the outstanding shares of Common Sfock shall be combined 
or consolidated. by reclassi6canon or orhcrwise, into a 1- n u m b  of shares of Common 
Smk, the applicable Conversion Price UI effea immcdiately prior to such combination or 
consolidation shall, concumndy with the effectiveness of such combioation or consolidation. be 
increased proportionately. 

. .  (vii) p. 

In case of my Acqusition Event (other &an an Acquisition Event which is 
ueated as a Lquidation pwsuan~ IO Subsection 2(d) or 2(e)X each share of Refemd Stock shall 
rhcreafter be convertible inlo the kind and amount of shares of stmk or othcr securities or 
propmy to which a holder of &e number of shares of Common Stock of &e Colgorption 
del~verabls upon convmion of such Preferred Stock would have been entitled upon such 
Acquisition Evenc and, in such c s c ,  appropriate adjustment (as demuuned in good faith by the 
Board of Directors) shall bc madc in the appbfation of thc provisions in this Section 4 sct fonh 
wirh rerpct VI the rights and inlcrcst rhcrcaftcr of the holders of Prefcned St& to the ad that 
b e  protisions set forth in this Section 4 (including provis~ons with respecr IO changes in and 
otbor adjwtmenrs of cbe applicable Conversion Pnce) shall chewafter be applicable. as warly (IS 
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m n a h l y  may be. in relPrion to MY shares of stock or other property chereaflcr dzh'erable upon 
the conversion of the Prefened Stock. 

(e:) pjb. fhc Corporarion will not, by amcndmmt of its C R d 6 c a t e  of 
Imrporauon or though any reorganization. -fez oiassets, consolidation, merger. 
dissol~on issuc or sdlc of secw::~s or any OM voluntary actio& avoid or seek to avoid the 
obsm.axe ot petfonnance Of M y  of the Terms to be observed or performed hereunder by the 
Corpomuos but will at all h e s  in good faith assist in the carrying out of all the pmvlsions at 
ths Section 4 aud in thc &ng of aU such action e9 msy k necessary or appropnatc h ordm fC) 

pmtect the Conversion fights of the holders of Prsfmcd Stock ag-1 ImpcUrmat~ 

( f l  -. Upon the occurrence of each adjusrmcnr or 
readjusuncnr of B Convenion Pncc pusuant TO this Section 4, rbt Corponuou at its 
shall prompdy cnmpure such adjustmen1 or readJumnent in m r d a n c e  uirh the Mnrr heraof and 
furnish to each holder of Referred Stock a cdf i~are  s e t f h g  forth such adjumntnt or 
reajjusmeor and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjment  is 
based The Corporanon shall, upon the 
Stock. funush or cau58 to be furnished to such holder a similar d f i c a t e  s e w  forth (1) such 
adjusment, and readjurrments. (.ii'l the applicable Conversion Pncs then UI effea a d  ( iuj  the 
numbcr of s h e s  of Common Stock and Chc amounr. if any, of othw propzw which thcn would 
be received upon rhe conversion of W apphcable Prcfencd Stock. 

q u e s t  at any rune of any holder of Preferred 

ig:) -. Intheevent: 

(i) that the Corporation declares E dividend (or any other hsmbution) on its 
Common Stock payable in Common Stock or o h  xcuritics of the Corporation; 

(i) rbat rhe Corporation subdivides or combines its oursranding shares of 
Common Stock 

(iii) of any reclassification of the Common Swck of tbe Corporadon (other 
h n  a nibdivision 01 combination of ik ouwandhg sh-3 of Common Stock OT a stock 
diviknd or stock di95bution thereon), or of any Acquisinon Ewnt; or 

(iv) of the lavoluntary or voluntary dissolut~on, hqludation or w i n k  up of 
tbe Corporation: 

rhea the Corporation shall uusc to be 6lcd w in p h i p a l  offiisc or a thc oftice of the d e r  
agmt of R e f e d  Stak ,  and shall cause u) be mailed IO the holders of Prcfmcd Srock at their 
1- hddressw as shown on the records of the Corporation or such transfer ageah at lean ten days 
prior u) the record date spcc'~cd in (A) below or twenty days before the date specified in (B) 
below, a notice staring 
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(A) the record date of such &vldmd, diStribuaon, sutdivision or 
combinarioa or, if a record is not w be iakmn: the dare 8s of which thc kooldsm of Common Stock 
of record to be entitled to such &bide& dismbution, subdivision or combinw'on are to be 
determind SI 

. 
(B I thc dare on which such reclavsificauon comolrdarjou rncrgcr, d e ,  

dissolution. liquidation o r  winding up is expoxed 10 bcc~mc effectivr and thc date as of which ic 
is expected that holders of Common Stock of record shall bc entilled to exchange t k u  shares of 
Common Stock for securides or mher p r o m  deliverable upsa such reclassificaIioq 
consolidation, merger, d e ,  dis-solwion or winding up. 

5. Maadamor?/ Conversion. 

i a i  -. 

( 1 )  All, md not less than all, of the s h a ~ ~  o f  Series B Preferred Swck am 
outstmdmg shall be automatically converted, without any action on the ?an of the hold- thereof, 
into sh tas  of Common Stock, *t t h e  then effective applicable Coovenion Price. at the closing of 
a pubtic offering pursuant io an ctkctlvc r e g s m o n  statement under Secunues A- of 1933, 
15 amended, rcsultmg LU at Icm $20,000,000 of gross proceeds lo the Cotporaho~ and ai a price 
of at 1-1 5 6.1 7 per share of Common Stock (subject to Adjtmmenr, (such offering. a 
"Quahfied Public Offering"). 

(L) In addinon to the mandarary conversion provisions of Scchon S(aXi) 
bereof, all and not less rhan all, ofthe holders of shares of Series B Preferred Smck &en 
oullfandiDg 4 1  be roquLrd to convert their shares of S n i t s  B Preferred Srock into <hares of 
Common Stock, sl &e h e n  effective applicable Conversion Price, at any time upon wrinm 
notice received 6om the  holders of ai lean nvo-rhirds (2'3) of thc lhrn outzanding shams of 
Series B Preferred Stock conren&gio the automatic conversion of 111 oithhe Sen- E Pr&rred 
Stock mto shares of Common Suck pursuant to Lhis SWIIOII 5(aX1:i .  

rbi 

(i) AU, and not less tlua all, of the shares of Series A Prefmd Stock then 
outstanding shall bs aummticdly converted. widout any action on the pan of che holdv thereof, 
into s h a m  of Common Stock, at the then effective applicable Conversion Pnce, aK b c  closmg of 
a Quahficd Public Offering. 

(ii) In addition to the nundamy convusbn pronsiom of Seaion S(b)(i) 
hereof, all and nor less than all. of &e holbs of shares of Series A Referred Stock tbcn 
outrmnding will be required lo convert their rbues of Sm'es A Referred Stock into shares of 
Common Stock at the tbcn effectwe appircable Conversion Price. at any time upon wittcn 
nohce rccwed from the hoiders of ai least twethirds ( 3 3 )  of the rhen outamchg shares of 
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Scrics A Preferred Stock consenting 10 fhc w m a t ~ c  convmion of all of the Sznes A F'rcfer~ed 
Stock into shares of Common Smck pursuant to this Section j(b)(b) 

(c) In tbe case of any automatic conversion purs~aar to &is Section 5 ,  the ouutaodin g 
hams of h c f d  Stock to be automatically convaned shall he converted a u t o m r t u d y  Urirhorn 
MY t d c r  airiou by &'holders of such shares and whcchcr or not the cerzificates representing 
such s h s  are surrendered to the Corporation or its unnsfir agent: &, that rhr 
Corporation sha l l  not be ohligated to issue to any bOldsJ certificate3 cvidcnzmg the shans of 
Common Stock issuable such conversion unless ccnif~cates evidencing such shares ofPrefened 
Smck are delivered either to the Corporation or any kansfm agent of the Corpormaon. 

id) .4U d a t e s  evidencing duces of Prcfmed Stock which are required to be 
surrendered for c o n v e ~ i o n  in accmdance with rhe pmvisions bacof shaU. from and after the btc 
such c c ~ c a t e s  are 50 required IO bc surrendered, be decmcd to have been reWd and canceled 
and the shares of Preferred Stock represented thereby convened into Common Stock for all 
purposes, nonvitbsanding rbe failure of thc holder or holders thereof to surrender such 
cmficaws on or prior to such daw. The Corporation may chertafter Lakc such appropriate acbon 
as m a y  be ncccssary to icducc rhr authorized Prcf-ed Stock accordingly. 

6. Redemption. 

i a )  

ill If the Company has not oonsrmunatcd a w f i e d  Public Offering, then 81 

any time during rhc Series 0 Redemption Period (S &fined below) the holders of Series I3 
Preferred Stock shail have rbz right to rquirc the Corporalion to rcdccm shares of S a c s  B 
Prefened Stock 85 described in this S&on 6 at the Series 0 Redemption Pnce (as defined 
be low;^ by delivering when  notice to the Corporadon (a "Series E Redemption Election"). The 
? h i e s  B Redemption Period" sllall mean the later of (w) rhc 30 day M o d  commencing on the 
dare rhru is Ihe one y e a  anniversary o f a e  maturity dale of any high veld  deb1 i i w d  by rhe 
CorporAtionpnortoDecembm 31, 1998;or(y)M31.2003~ 

(ii) Upon the delivery of a Series B Redcmphon Election, thc Corpoxation 
shall notify promprly all holders of shares of Scnes B Prefened Stock io UrriUng (the "Series B 
Redemprton Nonce') of the delivery of the Redempon Elecuon, md a &sintcrcRcd appraisal 
6rm which is a member of a r e c o p z e d  professional asmciation rensonahly acceptable to the 
Corporation Md tbe boldm of a aajority of &e Series B P r c f d  Stock shall d&& Market 
Value 85 set forth below. I f  fhe parties are unable to agree on an appraisal finn within 10 days 
after the expiration of rhL &Livery of the Series B RcdemptionNotice. a fLm shall be selcctd by 
lot from the toptier invcsuxnt banking limns, after the Carpomtion and the holders of the Series 
B Prefcned Stock have each eliminlrcd o m  such firm (fhe "Apprairal Firm"). Tbe Appraisal 
Firm shall rben make a detgmination of rhe Market Value, and, using such determination of 
Mprkn Value, sball cdcularc the Series B Redemption Price The selection and determination of 
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the Xpprsisal Firm shall be finai and bmdmg upon all panics. The expenses of thc h p p m d  
F u m  hall be borne equally by the holden of the Series B Preferred Slack as a group and on a 
pro rata basis in accordaoa wth the share3 of Series B Preferred Stvck to be redeemed, and thc 
Corporabon. 

(iiij' The holders of shares of Series B M m d  S:wk may eica to sell IO thc 
Coiprmon a l l  or a portion of h e x  sharcs of Series B Preferred Stock by delivering wr~tcen 
nonce to &e Corporation uilhin 15 days afhr final dcurmm ' ation of the Series  R Redemption 
Rice S u b j a  to the p-srons hereof. wirhin 40 days d e r  final delvrminstlon of the Series B 
Redemption Pricc, the Corporation shal: purchrsc. and all such e l e h g  holders of Senes B 
Prcfemd Srock shall stl l .  h e  pordon of such shares which the holden thereof have elecwd to 
sell to the Corporalion at a tims and place mutually agreeable KO ths Corporation and rhe hold- 
of rhe Scrics B Prdened Stock (the "Scrisa B RcdfmpUoo Closing":). The Corporation shall 
notify all holders of Series B Prcierred Stock of the date and place of the Series B RdempQon 
Closing ar least seven davs prior 10 the Series B Rademphon Closing. 

(ivj At &e Senes B Redemption CLosing, thc holdcrs of Series B Prcfernd 
Stock shall deliver to the Corporation certifides representing the shares of Senes B Preferred 
Stock which they have elected IO sell IO the Corporation, and the Corporation shall deliver to 
each such holder the Senes B Redtmprion F'ricc for each share of Series B Prcfcned Stock to be 
sold 10 h e  Corporauon by cashjcr's or caufied check or by m e  -fer IO imcdiaxely 
a\railable fix& to an account dcsipnatcd by such holder. 

(v) The "Scnes 5 Redemption Price" of a share of Series B Referred Stock 
means rhc amount equal IO the amount which would be received per share of Series B Preferred 
Stock if the asrats of &e Corporation were sold for cash equal to rhc Market Value. and & 
Corporation u'ere liquidated i d a t r l y  thereafter pursuaar tn Section 2 "Marker Value" 
means the fau market valut oi thc Corporarion ns a going concern determined on rhc basls of the 
sale of 100°& of the Copration BS bzoueen a strategic buyer and a willing seller and lalcing into 
accOun1 all rClCVan1 facrors delerminaave of value.. 

(i) If the Company has not cousununaW a qualified Public O f f m g ,  then at 
any time following either (x) the Series B Redemption Closing rf any bold- of S m e s  B 
Preferred Srock shall have dcllvered a Series B Redemption Elbcaon IO the Corporation or (y) 
the md ofthe Series B Rcdtmption Period if no holders of Stries B Preferred Stock shall have 
delivercd a Series B Redemption Elcction to tbc Corporation. the holden of Series A Preferred 
Stock shall have &e right to r q t h  me Catporadon IO redeem shares urScxCes A Mmed Stock 
as described in this k u o n  6 at the Series A Redemption Rice (as defined below) by delivcFine 
wittcn notice to the Corporation (a "Series A Rsdemprion Elexion"). 
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(.u) Upon the delivery ofa Series A Redemption E l d o n ,  thc Corpodon 
shall notify promptly dI holderr of shares of Smcs A preferred Stock in mdnp (the “Series h 
Redempiion Notice”) of thc &tivery of the. S C n s  A Redemption Election, and a d i s i n k ~ ~ t e d  
Appraisal Ffrrm wbch is a member of a recognized professional associadon r e f ~ ~ n a b l y  
accepfahlc lo the Corpormion and the holders of a majority of the Sencs A Preferred Stock sball 
dcmmme Market Value as set fonh below. If rbe panies an unable to agree on an Appmhb 
Firm witLin 10 days a f k  the expiration of the d e l i v q  of thc Series .4 Redemption Kotica. a 
i%m shall b2 seleacd by lot €torn the toptier invesmem banking firms. after the Corporarion and 
the holders oflhe S u i c s  A Preferred Stodc have each e l i m i d  one such firm. The .4pprairal 
F u m  shall then make a dctenainanon of the Market Value. and, using such d e r s m ~ t I o e  of 
?&&et Value, shall calculaic tbr Scriss A Redemption F‘nce. The seiecrion md dztermiriabon of 
the Appliljsd Firm shall be final and binding upon all Partjcs. The cxpc~lses of the Appraisal 
Finn shall Ix borne equally by the holders of the Series A Preferred Sfock ar a group and on a 
pro rata basis in ascorhnce wth the shares of Series A kferred Stock to be r c d m e d .  and the 
Corporation. 

(iii) Wirhin IO days &m the final dcrerminaa’on of the Sen= A Redempdon 
Rice pursuvlt to subparagraph [%j abave, t h c  holden of shares of Senes A Preferred Stock may 
elect to sell to thc Corporation all or a portion of rhcir shares of Sencs A Prcferrcd Stock by 
delivering UTitten notice to the Corporation. Subject to U x  provisions h m f ,  wlthin 40 dfip 
&r the final determimaon of rbz Series A Rodcmption mu, the Corporation Shall purchnse, 
a d  dl swb el+ holders of Senes A Preferred Stock W sell. rhe pomon of such s b s  
which the holders rheieof b v c  elecled to sell to the Colporahon at a time and place mutuslly 
agreeable to the Corporauon and the holden of thc Sericr A Preferred Stock ( h e  “Senes A 
Redemption Closing”) The Colpntadon rhail notify all holders of Series A hefined Stock of 
the darc and place of the Series A Redemption Closing a1 lean seven days prior to rhe Smies A 
Redemption Closing. 

(iv) Ar the Scrtss A Redemption Closing, the holders of Series A Preferred 
Srock shall deliver to the Corporation certificates representing the s h a n s  of Series A P i e k e d  
Stock which they have elecred to wllm the Corporation, and the Corporanon shall deliver to 
each such holder the Seriiss A Redemption Rice for each share of Scxies A F’refemd Stock IO be 
sold 20 &e Corporaion by carh?cr’s or certified check, or by w u c  rr;iosIa of unmcdiauly 
available funds to an accoun~ designated by such bolder. 

(v) The ”sff lcs  A Redemption Price” of a ihlre of Series A preferred Stock 
means the amount equal U, rhe mount which would be zeccived p c ~  share of Scrics A Refund 
Stock if the assets of the Corporation were sold for cmsh equal to thc Marht Vdue. and the 
Corporatlo~ were liquidated media te ly  &ere& pursuant to Section 2 

(c\ N o h v i ~ i  mything to the contrary contained in this Section 6, if !he 
Corporation is unable IO rccfcein in full all sbarcs tmdcred for redemption because the 
Cotpoiation has insufficient legal capital available to effect such redemptions. tbe Corporanon 
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shall allocate its available legal capital as follows: (i) first, IO pa~7nc.n: of the agpegate Series B 
Redemption Price tn holdas of Series B Preferred Stock that have requcswd rhar the CoqxratIon 
redeem their shares of Series B F'refmed Smck in accordance With Section Ha) above; and (u) 
second to payment of thc aggregate Series A Redcmpnon Rice to holders of Series A Prefrned 
Stock that have requested that the Corporanon redeem rbeu shares of Series A Preferred Stock irx 
accordme with Section q b )  above Any portion payablz to holders of Preferred Stock p-t 
to h s  Section 6 rhat is not paid in cash or cash equivalcntr at thc respective Redemption Closing 
shall be paid for by the issuance at such Redemption Closing of promissory noks 10 form and 
substance reasonably satisfaaory to the holders of the F'refmed Smck rccciving such no- (he  
''Redcrnpoon Notes'). At any time tbar Redemption Notes an outstanding. the Corporation may 
incur bank debt or tlurd-prry insumtional non-equity financing in connection with the opzTaOon 
oiitr business which is senior to thz Redemption Nates so long as such debt does nor prohibit &e 
timely palment of amoun~s due on the Redempuon Notes unless such ccnim debt is in default at 
such rime. Notwithstanding the ioregoing, Lhe Redemption Notes &all remain senior to any 
obligations owed to Clayton .4 Thomas. ]I., Bruce W. BcdaarrLi. Perm 8. Callowhill. Corl'm A. 
Marsan or o h  holden of Common  stock^ 

The Redemption Notes will bear intcreg par annum at cbe gnat& of (1) Prime plus 100 basis 
points, or (u) 8.0%. "Prime" means a floating rate per annum qual to tbc prime interest rate ptr 
annum published from bmc to time in thc "Monty bus" section of h e  Wali S m t  Jou~nid (and 
rhe hghest such rate if more rhan one is so published). Accrued intcrcst on &e Redemption 
Notes will be payable monthly The pnncipal amount of the Redemption Kotes d l  be payable 
m thirIy-wC (36) equal monthly mslalhcnts begkning wthm 30 days of the applicable 
Redemption Closing as se~ forth above. The Redemption Notes vnll be prepayable at Ihe 
Corpomtion's op&n at MY timc without pendry or premium. 

FIFTH: Excepr as orhcnsiw: provided in chis Cediicate of hcorporenon or a 
cmificate ofdesigmtion relatiog IO the rights of the bolders of any class 01 senes of Preferred 
Stock, votlng sspaarely by class OK s m c s .  w elect addrtiod directors under specified 
circuuutances, the number of dixecrors of the Corporation shall be es fixed *om hme IO h m e  by 
01 pmuanr IO tbc By-lnws of rhr Corporatton (the "By-Laws"). No &rector ot the Corporation 
nccd bc a Stockholder. 

SIXTH: The Colporation IS fo have pe~pctual existence. 

S E V m :  In furtberaoce and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, 
the Board of Directors is expressly autholized: 

(a) 

@) 

To make. alter or repeal By - L a w  of the Corporation. 

To authorize and cause to be executed mortgages and liens upon &e real and 
personal property of the Corporation. 
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(c j  To set apan out of any of the funds of the Corporalion available for 
dividends a r e m e  or reserves for any proper purpose and to abolish any such i e m c  in 
the manner in which it WBJ created. 

(d) To designate one or more wmminees, e x h  comminec to consist of one or 
more of the directors of the CorporaUon The Board m y  designate one or more d~~ectorj  
as altemalc mcmbcrs of any comminae. Who may replave any absent or disqualified 
member at any maemg of h e  committee. The By-Laws may provide. that. in the absence 
or &squalfication of  a member of a commitlee, tbc member or members tbereof pmeot Bt 
any rn- and not d q u a l i f e d  from voting. whether or not he or &ey constitute a 
quorum, may Uaanimbulsly appoml anotber mwnber of &e Board of Dvccrors to act at the 
meeury in thc place of any such abswt or disquahfisd memtxr A n y  such commitlee. to 
rhe extent pronded in the resolmion of the Board of Direclors. or in the B y - 1 . a ~  ofrhc 
Corporauon, shall have and may exercise all the powers fad authority of the Board of 
Directors in the management of the business and a&airs of the Coqmmion, and may 
authorize the sed of &e Corporation IO be aftixed to all papers which may tequVe it: but 
no such committee stdl have the pow- or authority in refexence Io mending the 
Certjficate of Incorpomion. adopbng m agrement of mcrgcr or consolidation, 
recommending to the sockholden the sale, lease or exchange of all or subnanbaUy all of 
the Copranon's propen). and as-, recommending to the stockholders a disso[ution of 
tbc Corporation or o Icuecauon of a dxmlubion, or amen- the By-Laws of the 
Corporation; and. unlcss the resolution or By-Laws expressly so provlde, no such 
comrnintc shall have thc powcr or authority IO doclare a diridcnd or IO authorize tbe 
issuance o f  st& 

(e) When and as authorized by the stockholders in accordaxe wi& statute. to 
sell. le-, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantiall) all of the. p"pc'~y and 
assets of the Corporarjon inciubng its good will and its corporate franchises, upon such 
terms und conditions anc for such considcrarion, which may consin in whole or in p m  of 
money or p r o m  includmg shares of stock in, andlor other securities of, nny orhcr 
corporation or corporations, as in Board of Directors shall deem expedxnc and for rhc best 
interests of the Corporabon 

(0 To fu; Cttcrminc and vary b o r n  bme to time the amouut to be marauined 
as surplur and the amount or amounts to be set apan as working capital 

(g) To authorize t l ~ e  payment of oompenurdon m the directors for services to 
the Corporation, including fees for antndanfe at mcedogs of the Board of Directors. of rho 
Executive Committee. and of 0th c o m m i w ,  urd lo de&= Ihe amount of such 
comvcnsation and kes. 

(11) To a u h n r C  rhe issuance fiom ti- to dme oi shares of iu rrtosk of any 
class whether now or hcr&r autbonzed. or sscuritics wnvcrtiblc iOr0 shares of its stock 
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of any class or clnsses, whether now or hueafter a u l k m d .  for such conwdaarion as may 
be deemed adbwable by rhe Board of Directors and, except as otheruiw set forth rn t h ~  
Cemficare of Incorpomon, wthour any achon by rhc >tuckholders 

EIGHTH: M e q s  of stockholdns may be b?Id w h  or uibour.dw Sbte of 
Delaware, 89 the By-Laws may provide The books of rhe Corporation may be kept (subjed to 
any provlsions contained in thc stahlm) outside h Srate ofDe1aw.m ai such place or places as 
mv be &signnted horn m e  to rimc by the Board of  Dlrecion or in the By-taws of rhe 
Corpuraion. Elections of dimtors  need not be by wriRcn ballot unless the By-Laws of the 
Corporauon shall so provide. 

NINTH: A &rector of thc Corporation shall not bc personally liable 10 lhe 
Corporation or its stb~kholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a d k z t o r .  
except for Imbiliry (i) for any breach of thc director's duty of loyalty to tbc Corporation or 1ts  

stockholders. (1;) for acts or omissions not ;I good faith or which rOvolvz intentional misconduct 
or a knowing violanon of law, !iii, under Section 174 of the Dzlauve Geoeal Corpvranon Law,  
or (iv) for my tlDILsBcuon from which the dwctor doived an mproper personal benefit If the 
Delawm General Corporation I.aw is amended after approval o f k s  anicle to authorize 
c o p r a t e  action iunfvr eliminating, or lirmting the personal liabiliry of directors, then the 
hahiliry of a dmctor of the corporanc~n shall be el~minatcd or limiied IO tbc fullcst exem 
perrmttcd by thc Dclauarc O c d  Corporation Law, 85 so amended. 

.Sny repeal or modiiicadon of the foregoing paragraph by chc stockholders of the 
corporation shdl not sdversely &en any righr or protection of a dirxctor oithe Corparadon 
existing at the time of such repeal or m&cation. 

TENTH: The corporarion ~h.ll, to the fullesr mcnt pwrmaed by Secnon 1-85 of 
the General Corpolraon Law of Delaware, as amended from time to m e .  i n d e f y  each person 
who was or is a p-arty or is  h a t a c d  IO bc & a pany 10 any thrsatened, pending or completed 
acaon suit or prooadmg, whether civil, cnnunal, administrative or invmigative, by r a n  of 
the fact hi he is or was, or hac agreed to become. a director or ofticer oftbe corporation, or is or 
was scrz-ing, or has agreed to serve. at tbe request of the corporation. as a director, officer or 
uustcc of, or in a similar capacity with, another corporatios parmerstup. joint venture, tnm or 
other entrtprisc (includmg any employec h f i t  p h j .  or by nnwu of m y  action alleged to have 
becn t a k n  or omined in such capaciry. againn all expenses (includmg attorneys' fecs). 
judgments, h c s  and mounts p d  in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or on 
his behalf in connection with such act104 suit or proceeding and my appeal rherekom. 

Indemnification m a y  include payment by the coxprarion of e m s  in defending 
an d o n  or proceeding advance ofthe final disposition of such aaion or proceeding upon 
r w i p t  of an undertaking by the person indemnified to repay such payment if ii is ultimately 
determined that such p s o n  IS not entitled to indemnification undcr chis TENTH Arucle. h c h  



undertahng may be accepted uithout reference to the financial Ibiliq- of such peMn to make 
such repasma. 

E x  copmhon  shall no: i r d m u d y  . any such person ScJring inderrrmfication in 
tonnoctjon sith a proceedmg (or pan t k e o f )  ini~ud by such person unless me iniriarioa. 
tbereof was approved by the Board of Directon of Ihe corporation 

The mdemnitication righis provided in thrs TENTH Article ( I )  sbilll not bc deemed 
exclusive of any omer rigbts IO which those inclandied may be enhtled under any law. 
agreemar ur vote of zrakholders or disinterested dmcuvrs or orherwise, md 1.3) shall inure to 

the benefit of the heirs, exccutors and admuustnrtors of such persons The corporation may, to 
the extmt aurhonzcd from d m c  io dmc by its Board of Direaon. grant indmai&anon riphrs 10 
other employ- or agats of the corporation nr other pasonc serving the coorporadon and such 
rights may be equivalent 10, or p e a m  or less than, those set forrh in this TENTH ArUcle. 

ELEVENTH The Corporarion reserves rbe rig& following the receipt of the 
necessary approvats of its stockholders, to amend, alter, chaage or r c p l  any provsion c o n e d  
in rhis Cenificate of hcorporation. in rhe m m e r  now or here& prescribcd by s w t e  and the 
C e d c a e  of Incorporation. and all rights c o n f e d  upon stockholders herein are @anted subject 
w t h s  rewrvadon. 

[sipahue on following page] 
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IN m S S  WEREOF,  NctzOOO Group, Inc h a  csused this Restated C d c a t r  of 
lncorporauon to be executed m is name and on Its behalf by I& Prcsldenr on May I998 

NETZOOOGROVP WC 

BY 



CERTIFlCATE OF AMENDMENT 
TO 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
OF 

NET2000 GROUP, I?t’C. 

Pursuant to Sectton 242 
of the Central Corporabun Lam 

of h e  State of Delaware 

Net2000 Group. Inc , (heremafter called the Torporanon‘?. organtzed and existing unda 
and by nrtue of the General Corporatron Law of the State of Delaware, does hereby certify as 
follows 

F K T :  Transitional Provisions. 

A. Pre-Split Shares. Common Stock. Upon the filing of this Certificate of 
Amsndmeot to Cemficate of Incorporation (the “Effective Time”), each share of the 
Corporation’s Common Stock issued and outuanding immediately prior thereto (the 
“Re-Split Shares”) shall, ipso&cro and without any action on the pan of the holder of 
the Prc-Split Shares, be changed, convened and reclassified into 0.000003975 shsres of 
Common Stock (the “Reverse Split”j, and the par value of all shares of Common Stock 
shall continue to he. as of the Effective Time and hencefonh thereafter, $0.01 pcr share. 
The shares of Common Stock into which the Pre-Split Shares will be converted upon the 
Effective Time are refined to hereln as thc “Split Shares.’’ 

€3. No Fracnonal Shares. No fractional Split Shares will be issued as a result of 
the Reverse Split; m lieu of the holder of each Prc-Split Share otberwiw entitled to a 
frachod Spllt Share may k pad an amount in cash deremrncd at the rate of $10 00 per 
Splir Share. 

C. Deliveq of New Certrficates. 

(1) Exchange of Certificates. Each holder of certificates representing Re- 
Split Shares may deliver and swrder all of such certificates to the C o p d o n  for 
cancellation a h  Ihe Effective Time, and shall mcivc upon such delivery. surrender and 
cancellation, or as soon thereafter as is practicable, in place thereof a ccmficate or 
certificates for the number of Split S h a m  of Common Stock into which such holder’s 
Re-Split S h e s  were convmed upon the Effcctive Time. 

(2) InterimRightr. Until surrendered as provided in paragraph (cJ(1) 
above, as of &e Effective Time, certificates formerly representing Pre-Split Shares shall 
be deemed for all corporate purposes to represenr solely the right to receive the Split 
Sharer into which such Pre-Split Shares were convened at the Effective Time and he 
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ngh1 to be paid cash for fractional Splir Shares, if my. all upon SuXnder of such h e -  
Splir Share certihcales. 

SECOND By unanimous witten consent. the Board of Directors of the Corporation 
adopted resolutions punuant to Sections 141it) and 212 of tht &&id Corporatiun Law of thc 
Stare of Delaware setting fonh the following amendments to the Certificate of Incovrarion or 
rbe Corporation, including the Revmc Split. and declaring said a m e n h e n s  to be advisable. 
The stockholder of the Corporation duly approved said proposed amendmenu. including the 
Reverse Splir, by wriacn consen1 in accordance with Sections 228 and 213 of the General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. Accordingly. the Certificate of Incorporation of the 
Corporation is hereby amendad by deleting the entirs document and and insehng thc folloWng 
in lieu thcreof. 

FIRST: The name of the corporatlon (uhch  is h e r e i d r  called the 
"Corporation") is NetlOOO Communications Services. Inc. 

SECOND: The address of its registered ofice in the Srate of Delaware is 
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street. in rhe Ciry of Wilmingron, County 
of New Castle. The name of irs registered agent at such address is The 
Corporation Trust Company-. 

THIRD: The nature of rhe business of the Corporation to engage in my 
lawful act or activil) for whch coorporations may be organized under the 
Delaware General Corporation Law and to possess aud exercise all of the powers 
and privilegzs granted under such law and the other laws ofthe State of Delaware. 

FOURTH. Thc total number of shares of all classes of stock which the 
Corporation shall have authority IO issue is 100, all of which shall be Common 
Stock, $0~01 par value per share, with an aggregate par value of 161 l10. 

FIFTH The number of directors of the Corporation shall be as fixed from 
tunc to time by or pursuant to thc By-laws of the Corporation (the "By-Laws"). 
NO director of the Corporation need be a Stockholder. 

S I X I N  The Corporation is to have perped  existence. 

SEVENTH: No director of the Corporation shall be pasonally liable to 
the corpomtion or its stockholders for monemy damages for breach of fiduciary 
duty as a director. except for liability 6 )  for any breach of the director's duty of 
byaky to the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not 
good faith or which involve intentional misconducr or a knowing violation of law, 
(iii) under Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or (iv) for any 
transaclion from whch the director derived an improper personal benefit. If the 
Delaware General Corporation Law is amended after approd of this article to 
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authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting &e personal liabiliv of 
directors, then the IisbiliIy of8 direcror of the copxation shall be eliminated or 
limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Dclawue General Corporation La%,, 
as so amended. 

Any repeal or modification of the foregoing paragraph by the stockholders 
of the corporarion shall nor adverseiy affect any right or protection of a director of 
the Corporation exking at the t ime of such repeal or modification. 

EIGHTH: The corporadon shall, to the fullest extent permined by Section 
145 of h e  Delaware Gmeral Corporation Law. as amended from time to time. 
indemnify each person who was or is a party or is W e n &  to be made a p- 10 

any threatened: pending or completed action. suit or proceeding, whether Cix<I, 
criminal, adminimarive or investigative. by reason of the fact that he or WS, Or 

has agreed to become, a dirccro~ or officer of ~e corplration, or is or was serving, 
or has agreed to serve, at the requesr of the corporation. a a director, officer 01 
w t e e  of. or in a similar capacjry with. another sorporarion, pmership,joinl 
venture, trust or othcr enterprise (incluhng any emplovee benefit plan), or by 
reason of any action alleged to have been d e n  or ornincd in such capaciw. 
against all espcnses (including anomeys' fees), judgmenrs, fines and amonnts paid 
in settlmenr actually and reasonably incurred by him or on his behalf in 
connection with such action, suit or proceedmg and any appeal therefrom. 

Indemnificarion may include payment by thc corporation of expenses in 
dcfcnding an action or proceeding in advance of the fid disposition of such 
acuon or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by the person i n d d k l I 0  
repay such payment if it is ultimately determind thar such perwn is not cndrled 
ta indemnification under this EIGHTH Article. which unde&ng may bc 
acceptsd without reference 10 the financial abiliy of such person to make such 
repayment. 

The corporation shall not indemntfy any such p e m n  x e h g  
indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such 
person unless the initianon thereof was approved by the Board of Directors of rhe 
corporation 

The indemnification rights provided in chis EIGHTH Article (i) W not 
be deemed exclusive of any other righls IO which those indemnified may bc 
entilled under any law, agreement or vote of stockholders or disimterested 
direcrors or otherwise, and (ii) shall inure to rhe benefit of &e heirs, executors and 
administrators of such persons. The corporation may, to the extent a h o n z e d  
from tirnc to rime by its Board of Directors, grant indemnification rights to orher 
employees or agents of the corporanon or other persons serving the corporation 
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and such rights may be equivalent to. or grearsr or less than, Khose seT fonh in this 
EIGHTH Article. 

Nn;nr- The ~ r p a n h O n  reserves &< r.ght to mew, UT?! change or 
rep& my provision contamed In this Cemficate of Incorporation, in the m w a  
now OT hereafter presclibrd by stamtc and the Cemficate of Incorpodoa and 
nghu conferred upon stockboldm heran we granted subjeer to rhrs m a h e n .  

?JET2000 CROCT. INC. 
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EXHIBIT C 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Throughout our history, Net2000 has been very successful in raising capital in a very 
challenging financial environment, validating the strength of our product offerings and 
management team. Net2000 provides below information describing our strategic 
outside investments and vendor financing efforts to demonstrate our ability to raise, and 
continue to raise, the necessary capital to fund our telecommunications operations in 
the State of Florida. As a result of these efforts, Net2000 has sufficient cash on hand to 
meet our requirements and has funded our current business plan into the third quarter 
of 2002. 

In 1997. Net2000 received initial venture capital financing of $3.5 million from 
firms that include Blue Water Capital, Mid-Atlantic Venture Fund, and Societe 
Generale. 

In 1998, Net2000 closed our second round of venture capital financing, 
receiving $1 7 million in private equity investment with additional commitments of 
$5 million, bringing the total to $22 million in venture capital from firms that 
include The Carlyle Group, PNC Equity Management, Mid-Atlantic Venture Fund, 
Societe Generale, and Blue Water Capital. 

In November 1998, Northern Telecom (“Nortel”) made a $30 million equity 
investment in our company. This transaction was the first equity investment 
made by Nortel in a competitive local exchange carrier, demonstrating Nortel’s 
confidence in our business plan and operations. 

Also in November 1998, Net2000 entered into a $140 million credit agreement 
with Nortel to fund the construction of our network and provide working capital. 
In particular, Net2000 entered into a $120 million term loan facility and $20 
million revolving loan facility with Nortel. 

In late 1999, Net2000 amended and restated the November 1998 credit 
agreement with Nortel to provide for additional working capital availability. 
Specifically, Net2000 entered into a $75 million term loan facility with Nortel to 
finance the purchase of goods and services and a $75 million senior discount 
note to be used for working capital. Increased competition among equipment 
suppliers has made this type of vendor financing very common in the 
telecommunications industry. The term loan facility may be used by Net2000 as 
a line of credit to purchase Nortel equipment and is secured by a security interest 
in such equipment. In addition, for each $1 spent on equipment, Net2000 will 
receive another $0.50 for general corporate purposes. 

In March 2000, Net2000 benefited from an initial public offering of our shares 
which generated $212 million in available cash through equity investment. 
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In April 2000, Net2000 obtained a commitment from TD Securities, Inc. to 
underwrite and lead a $200 million senior secured credit facility. The facility 
consists of a $100 million revolving credit facility and a $100 million delayed draw 
facility, replacing the $75 million credit facility closed at the end of 1999. 
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PART I. -- FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

March 31,2000 and December 31,1999 
(Dollars in Thousands, except share amounts) 

ASSETS 
March 31. 

2000 
(Unaudited) 

Cash & cash equivalents ...................... $ 191,248 
Restricted cash .......................................... 3,644 
Accounts receivable e for doubtful 
accounts of approximately $2,120 and $1,919 at 
March 31,2000 and December 3 

Current assets: 

....... 

8,706 
Other current assets ..................... 888 

Total current assets ................................................................ 204,486 
Properly and equipment, net of accumulated 

91,157 
. .  depreciation .................................................................. 

Other noncurrent assets ... 4,150 
Unamortized debt discount ................................. 2,299 
Total assets ............................................. $ 302,092 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS (DEFICIT) EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable .................................... .......................... 2,558 
Accrued expenses and other current liab es ........................... 24,087 

Total current liabilities ........... .................................................... 26.645 
Related party noncurrent liab es ................................................ 24,534 
Other noncurrent liabilities ............................................................ 156 
Long-term debt .............................................................................. 52,966 
Redeemable convertible Series A, B and C preferred stock. 
$0.01 par value; 11,738,437 shares authorized, no shares 
and 11,738,437 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2000 

. . . .  

and December 31, 1999 respectively ........... - 

Stockholders' (deficit) equity: 
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 200,000.000 shares 
authorized, 37,680,502, and 10,189,562 shares issued 
and Outstanding March 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999, 
respectively ................... ...................... 377 

Additional capital ....................................... 317,301 
(8,975) 

(1 10,912) 
Deferred stock co 
Accumulated deficit ....................................................................... 

197,791 
es and stockholders' deficit .. $ 302,092 

....................................................... 

Total stockholders' (deficit) equity ........................................ 

December 31, 
1999 

$7 5,523 
3.517 

7,595 
1,528 

18,163 

72,592 
3,598 
7,315 

$ 101.668 

$ 792 
21,635 
22,427 
26,428 

215 
46,039 

80,940 

102 
16,707 
(7.002) 

(84.1 88) 
(74,381) 

$ 101,668 

Note: The balance sheet at December 31, 1999 has been derived from the audited financial 
statements at that date but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by 
generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(Dollars in Thousands, except share amounts) 

For the Three Months Endinq 
March 31, 

1999 
- 

2000 

Revenues ...................................................................................... $ 10,612 
Operating costs and expenses: 
Operating costs ........................................................................... 8.51 9 
Selling, general and administrative (exclusive of non-cash 

16,247 
Non-cash compensation expense ............................................... 660 
Depreciation and amortization .................................................... 2,440 

Loss from operations .................................................................... (17,254) 
Other income (expenses): 
Miscellaneous income ................................................................. 12 
Interest income ...................................................................... 1,084 
Interest expense (2,083) 

Loss before provi (18,241) 
Provision for inco - 

Loss before extraordinary item ..................................................... 
Extraordinary debt extinguishment loss ...................................... 

compensation expense shown below) ..................................... 

(1 8,241) 
(4.724) 

... (22,965) 
(3.759) 

Net loss 

Net loss available to common stockholders .................................. ~ $ (26,724) 

Pro forma net loss available to common shareholders ................. $ (22,965) 
Basic and diluted loss per shares: 
Available to common stockholders before extraordinary item.. $ (1.23) 

Preferred stock accretion ............................................................ 

Extraordinary loss ...................... ...... ............ (.26) 
Available to common stockholders ............................................. $ (1.49) 

Available to common stockholders before extraordinary item.. $ (54) 
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share: 

Extraordinary loss ....................................................................... (37) 
Available to common stockholders .. $ (.81) 

Shares used in calculation of loss per share: 
Basic and diluted ........................................................................... 17,910,673 
Pro forma basic and diluted .......................................................... 28,552,662 

$ 5,057 

4,393 

6,648 
71) 

2 
386 
(107) 

(6.170) 

- 

(6.170) . .  
(5,394i 

$ (1 1,564) 

$ (6,1701 

(1.14) 
- 

$ 

$ (1.14) 

$ (25) 

10,109,490 
24,782,535 



Operating activities 

NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Dollars in Thousands, except share amounts) 

For the three months ended 
March 31. 

2000 1999 

Net loss ......................................................................................... $ (22,965) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash 

used in operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization .................................................... 2,440 
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............................ ....... 289 
Deferred stock compensation ............... 660 
Amortization of debt discount ...................................................... 292 
Accretion of note payable ........................................................... 860 
Extraordinary debt extinguishment loss ...................................... 4,724 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable ...................................................... (1,400) 
Other current assets ................................................................ 640 
Other noncurrent assets (552) 
Accounts payable .................................... 1,766 
Accrued expenses and other current liab 2,673 
Other noncurrent liabilities ....................................................... (59) 

(10,632) 

.......................................................... 

Net cash used in operating activities ...................... 

Investing activities 
Acquisition of property and equipment (22,026) 
Restricted cash ............................................ (127) 
Net cash used in investing activities ............................................. (22.153) 

Proceeds from note payable ........................ ......... 48.567 
Repayments on note payable .... .............................................. (42.41 2) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ................................... 212.538 
Proceeds from notes payable to related party .............................. 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ...................................... 999 
Repayment of capital leases ......................................................... (1.182) 
Net cash provided by financing activities ...................................... 218.510 

Financing activities 

- 

$ (6,170) 

2,602 
(2,575) 
(8,942) 

(7,941) 

(624) 
9,219 

Net increase (decrease) in cash ................................................... 185.725 (7,665) 
Cash at the beginning of period .................................................... 5,523 33,439 
Cash at the end of period .............................................................. $ 191,248 $ 25,774 
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS 

Net2000 Communications, Inc. 

Report of Independent Auditors.. . .......................................... F-2 
Consolidated Financial Statements: 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31.1998 and 1999, and unaudited 

Consolidated Statements of.Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 1997, 

Consolidated Statement 
1998 and 1999 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Y 
1998 and 1999 . .: ..................... 

Notes to Consolidated- Financial Statements 

.~ 

pro forma Balance Sheet~as of December 31, 1999.. ............................... . . .  F-3 

1998 and 1999 ... F-4 ...... .................................................... 
Stockholders' Deficit for the Years Ended December 31. 1997. 

.............................. ........ ......... 
Ended December 31,1997. 

............ i..., ........ .. 
:_ :. .. :. .. ......... 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS -I 

Board of Directors 
Net2000 Communications. Inc. 

We have' audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Net2000 Communica- 
tions, Inc. as of December 31. 1998 and 1999 and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, stockholders' deficit and cash flows for each of the three'vears in the period ended 
December 31, 1999. These financial statements 'are the. responsibility o f  the Company~s 
management. Our'responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accoraance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also. includes ass.essing the accounting principles ,used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We b$Q our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

lidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Net2000 Communications, Inc. at December 31, 1998 
and 1999 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended in December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States. 

~ 

In our opinion, the c 

l s l  Ernst & Young LLP 

McLean. VA 
January 26, 2000 

F-2 



n 
h 

NET2000'COMMtfNIGATIONS, INC 
. . . . .  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

Pro fonna 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

1999 1999 1998- ._--I (Unaudited) 

Current assets: . . .  
Cash & cash equivalents ............................ $ 33,439,030 $ 5,522,935 
Restricted cash ................... 948.7Q7 3;516.629 
Accounts receivable, net of allow 

accounts of approximately $229,000 and $1,919,OOO at 
December 31.1998 and 1999, res ively ............ 3,618,646 

'Other current assets.. ................. 

Property and equipment,.net of accumuiaied depreciation . . 11.528.518 "! 72,592;117 
Other noncurrent assets 504,657 3,597,590 

- 7,315,870 Unamortized debt discou .............................. 
........................ _ .  . $ 50.090.508 !$101,668.141 Total assets. 

............ 
i .  

Total current assets ................................. 3a,o5i,$j3 , i8;1&;064 

............................... 

. . , .  . I . 
i LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS (DEFICIT) EQUITY 

Accounts payable . . ............................. $ 1,402,010 $ 791.646 
Accrued expenses a current liabilities ........... 3.670.907 i7.612,436 
'Current maturity of note payable fo bank.. - 41,667 
Current maturities of capital lease obligation' 2,422,597 3,981,133 

7,495,514 22.426.882 
2,000,155 4;572,791 

."4.811.361 ' .26.427.946. 

.............. 

Total current liabilities .................... ......... 
Capital lease obligation, less 
Reiated party noncurrent liab 
Other noncurrent liabilities ....... .............. 
Notes payable ......... 
Note payable to bank .......... 
Redeemable convertible Ser~ie5.A. B and C 

........................ 

.~ 
preferred stock, $0.01 par'value; 
11;738.437 shares authorized. 11.738,437 
and 11,738.437 issued and 

. outstanding at December 31, 1998 and~.i : 
. ,1999, respectively ..................................... 
Stockholders' (deficit) equity: 

~ . .- Common stock, $0.01 par value; 200,00~,,~0 shares 
authorized. 10,109,490 and 10,189,562 shares 
issued and outstanding December 31.1998 and 
1999, respectively .................. ......... 

Additional capital ....................... 
Deferred stock compensation ............................ 
Accumulated deficit. ........................ 

. , ,. 

$ .5,$22,935 
'1 3,516,629 

7i595.418 
. ' 1,528,082 

18.1 &,064 

3597,590 
7815,370 

$1 01,668,141 

72,592,117 

$ 791,646 
17.61 2,1136 

41,667 
3,981,133 

22.426.882 
4,572,791 

26,427,946 
.. 215,531 215,531 

- 41,389,549 41,389,549 - 76.389 76.389 
. . .  . . . .  

. . .  . .  !.. : 

. -  59,403,297 ' : 80,940,295 ., i 

101,095 101 396 248,626 
299,061 16,706.946 97,500.51 1 

(162.102) (7,002,437) (7,002,437) 
(23357,893) (84.1 87,647) (84,187,647) 

Total stockholders' (deficit) equity ............... (23,619,839) (74,381.242) 6,559,053 
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit ........... $ 50.090.508 $101,668,141 $101,668,141 

See accompanying notes. 
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NET2000 .COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATCMENTS OF. , ,OPERATIONS ,. :1 . . . .  ..: ... I 

i 

. . . . . .  .... Year Ending December 31, . ~. , 

1998 1999 - - - 1997 

i 
Telecommunications ........ !,. ::: ................. $ 89,!!1 S 6,465,903 $ 27,692,992 t 
Agency commissions and other. ................. 3,456,i 18 2,952,999 - 

Revenues: .. . . . . .  

............................... . . .  3,544,229 9,418,902 :,~::.. >,  -, ., ' 27,692,992 , ' . nd expenses':, ' ' . .  . .  

.......... .............. 7,868,478 22,375261 
j .  . 
. . . . . .  ., , !  

Selling, general and administrative 
(exclusive of.non-cash compensation . . ~. 
expense shown below) . ................ 

-Depreciation and amortization :. .. .. ............. !.. . . .  

Gain ~n sale:ot ulting divisicm. :. i.. ......... 875,000 . . . . . . .  

~ . .  
. .  ...... .................. - 

~ . . . ,  . .  
.Mon-cash compensation ex 

322,437, .~ . . I  . . . .  . .  , .  

Loss.from operations.. ......... I..:. ................... .( 1,318.178) 
Other income (expenses): . ~ 

( 

. .  .~ - 
-SettlemGnt of's r dispute 1. .... .:. ........... - - 3,500,000 
Miscellaneous income ........ .: ..... 
Interest income.. ........ ;;. :. :. ........ 
Interest expense .............................. (84.666) 

7,830 
'',' .igJ517. 

. .  

.; ::, 1 

LOSS before provis for incdme .taxes :_ .......... . . . .  
- 

: . , r i  Provision for income'taxes ......................... . . .  ., -. 

I j ,, . .  - ) ''1 -2i;536;998) Preferred stock accretion ... :...:.I. ................ 
. ,  

.~ 
.. I Net loss :; ................................. ... $''.:(501,489.)~-$(13,767,112)~ $(38,T92,756) 

Net . . .  lois available . .  to common :$tockhoJders ......... $ (501,489 ):$160;329,754) 

....................... .I.. ... $( 38,792,756) 

.. -, 
ilable to common 

. .  . I  

asic and diluted loss per share.. ................. $ :' i(O.05) 

Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share ......... 
Shares used in calculation of loss per share: 
Basic and diluted.. ............................... 10,000,000~ 
Pro forma basic and.tliluted . j.. . :: : :.:. ............ 

. .  ..>,;., . . . .  . . -  f;: . . . . . .  . . . .  See accompanying "3.. . I .  
' 8 . :  : . , .  . ........ ~. 

. . . .  . .  ,: . (  . .  .:, 
.I. ., 

. . .  . .r  

. .  
. .  

. . .  
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT 

Deferred Total 

- Shares 9 Capital Compensation Deficit Deficit 
Common Stock Additional Stock Accumulated Stockholders’ 

~~~~ 

Balance at December 31, 
1996.. ..................... 10.000,OOO 
Net loss. .............. - 
S Corp. distribution - 
Issuance of compensatory 

stock options - 

1997.. ..................... 10,000,000 

Exercise of stock options ... 109.490 
Issuance of compensatory 

............ 
Balance at December 31, 

- 

- 
- 

Balance at December 31, 
1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10,109,490 
Net loss.. - 
Exercise of stock options . . .  80,072 
Issuance of compensatory 

stock Options . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
Amortization of deferred 

stock compensation ...... - 
Issuance of Warrants . . . . . . .  - 
Accretion of Preferred 

Balance at December 31, 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- 

1999.. ..................... 10.189.562 

$100,000 
- 
- 

$ 159,004 
(501.489) 
(845.000) 

$ 259,004 
(501,489) 
(845.000) 

- 

(1.087.485) 
(13,767,112) 

75.000 

- 

63.054 

(8,903,296) 

(23.61 9,839) 
(38,792.756) 

20.204 

- 

1.645.480 
7.902.667 

(21.536.998) 

$(74,381,242) 

87.216 (87,216) - ___ 

100,000 

1,095 
- 

- 

(I .I 87.485) 
(13.767.112) 

- 
(87.216) 

- 
87,216 

73,905 

137,940 

- 

(137.940) 

63.054 

(8,903,296) __ 

101,095 

801 
- 

(23,857,893) 
(38,792,756) 

- 

299,061 

19.403 

8,485,815 

- 

- 
7,902,667 

(162,102) 
- 
- 

(8,485.81 5) 

1,645,480 
- 

(21,536,998) 

$(84.187.647) $101,896 
~ 

~ 

$( 7.002.437) $16,706,946 

See accompanying notes. 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Operating activities 
Net loss ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used 

in operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Allowance for doubtful accounts.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Deferred stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Amortization of debt discount . . 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other noncurrent lia ................... 

Net cash used in operating activities.. . . . . . . . . , . .. 
Investing activities 
Acquisition of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Restricted cash .......................... 
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . _ _ .  . . . . . 
Financing activities 
Proceeds from line of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Repayments on line of credi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Proceeds from notes payable to shareholders’ . . . . 
Repayments of notes payable from shareholders’ . . 
Proceeds from note payable to bank 
Repayments on note payable to bank 
Proceeds from issuance of common 
Proceeds from notes payable to related party . . . . . 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options.. . . . . . . . . 
Proceeds from sale of redeemable convertible 

preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
S corporation distributions to shareholders’ . . . . . . . 
Repayment of capital leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . 
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . 
Net increase (decrease) in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cash at the beginning of period 
Cash at the end of period.. . . . . . . . . . . . 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

1999 - - - 1997 1998 

$ ;E!X.X9) $(13,767,112) $(38,792,756) 

122,437 686,670 3,865,360 
10,000 21 8,776 1,690,000 
- 63,054 1,645,480 

587,298 

(636,255) (2,790,822) (5,666,774) 
(32,783) 6,893 (1,477,132) 
(70,316) (426,473) (3,092,933) 
312,870 1,036,086 (610,364) 

319,236 3,255,798 13,941,529 
215,531 

(476,300) (11,717,130) (27,694.761) 

(87,746) (2,031,058) (36,147,477) 
- (948,707) (2,567,922) 

(87,746) (2,979,765) (38,715,399) 

560,176 75,000 - 
(120,000) (515,176) - 
952,143 - - 

(1,052,143) - - 
125,000 

(6,944) 
- - 
- 41,389,549 

75,000 20.204 

3,500,000 47,000,001 - 
(845,000) - - 
(86,018) (846,703) (3,033,744) 

2,909,158 45,788,122 36,494,065 
2,345.1 12 31,091,227 (27,916,095) 

2,691 2,347,803 33,439,030 
$ 2,347,803 $ 33,439,030 $ 5,522,935 

See accompanying notes. 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1.  Organization 

Net2000 Group, Inc. was formed on June 18, 1993 under the laws of the State of Virginia 
and on October 23, 1997, was reincorporated in the state of Delaware. On November 1, 1998, 
Net2000 Group, Inc. entered into a recapitalization tranSc.::i-r~ whereby it exchanged all of its 
stock with Net2000 Communications, Inc. As a result of the exchange, Net2000 Group Inc. 
became a wholly owned subsidiary of Net2000 Communications, Inc. and accordingly, the 
financial statements of Net2000 Communications, Inc. include the financial position’ and results of 
operations of Net2000 Group, Inc. for all periods prior to the transaction as the successor to 
Net2000 Group, Inc. Subsequent to the transaction, the ownership interest of Net2000 
Communications, Inc. is identical to that of Net2000 Group, Inc. prior to the exchange of stock. 
References to ”the Company” represent Net2000 Group, Inc. for periods prior to the exchange 
and Net2000 Communications, Inc. for all subsequent periods. 

Subseqn!,tla,the transaction, seven wholly-owned subsidiaries were created to address 
specific organizational functions, including Net2000 Communications Holdings, Inc., Net2000 
Investments. Inc., Net2000 Communications Group, Inc., Net2000 Communications Capital 
Equipment, Inc., Net2000 Communications Real Estate, Inc., and Net2000 Communications of 
Virginia, LLC. In addition, Net2000 Group, Inc. changed its name to Net2000 Communications 
Services, Inc. 

During 1998. the Company changed its primary business activity from the selling of network 
services of Bell Atlantic on a commission basis to the resale of local, long-distance, and data 
services. In 1999, the Company began constructing and operating a packet- and circuit- switched 
network. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash 
equivalents. On December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999, the Company had investments of 
$2,335,626, $32,870,179 and $5,992,560. respectively, in securities with maturities of less than 
three months which are included in cash and cash equivalents. 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Stock Compensation 

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation in accordance with APB No. 25, 
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) using the intrinsic value method. 
Stock-based coypensation related to stock optiox granted to non-employees is accounted for 
using the fair value method in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 
No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS No. 123). The Company has made 
pro forma disclosures required by SFAS No. 123. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes telecommunications revenues over the period in which the services 
are provided. Monthly recurring charges include fees paid by customers for lines in service and 
additional features on those lines. Usage charges are billed in arrears and are fully earned as 
usage is accrued 
for new c u s t d i r  
excess deferred and amortized to income over the remaining contract term. Commission 
revenues on agency sales are recognized when the product has been installed or accepted for 
installation. Consulting revenue is recognized when earned. 

he provider’s network. Non-recurring revenue, typically for installation fees 
s, is recognized to the extent of direct selling costs incurred, with any 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company considers the recorded value of its financial assets and liabilities, consisting 
primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses 
and debt, to approximate the fair value of the respective assets and liabilities at December 31, 
1997, 1998 and 1999 

Advertising Costs 

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 

Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31,1997,1998 and 1999 the Company’s net income reflects 
comprehensive income, accordingly, no additional disclosure is presented. 

Valuation Accounts 

A summary of the Company’s’allowance for bad debts is as follows: 

Balance at December 31, 1997 
Additions charged to expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  219,000 
Accounts receivable written-off ... - 

Balance at December 31, 1998 
Additions charged to expens 
Additions from settlement ( s  
Accounts receivabk’written-off. ....................... (51 1,000) 

Balance at December 31,1999. ............. ........... $1,919,000 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
and for Loug-Lived Assets to I + disoosed of ( 3FAS 121”). SFAS 121 requires impairment 
losses to be recognized for long-lived assets when indicators of impairment are present and the 
undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the assets’ carrying amount. The 
impairment loss of these assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to 
its fair value, with any excess of carrying value over fair value written off. Fair value is based on 
market prices where available, an estimate of market value, or determined by various valuation 
techniques including discounted cash flow. 

3. Net Loss per Common Share 

Basic apBdilukd net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss. by the 
weighted average &nber of common shares outstanding. Pro forma net loss per share is 
computed using the weighted average number of shares used for basic and diluted per share 
amounts and the weighted average redeemable convertible preferred stock outstanding as if 
such shares were converted to common stock at the time of issuance. 

For the Year Ending December 31, 
__ 1997 __ 1998 ~ 1999 

................................... $ (501,489) $(13,767.112) $(38,792,756) 

Preferred stock accretion ....................... - (8,903,296) (21,536,996) 
Net loss available to common stockholders.. . . . . .  $ (501,489) $( 22,670,408) $( 60,329,754) 
Pro forma net loss available to common 

Weighted average of common shares, 

Effect of dilutive securities: 

(38,792,756) - - shareholders.. . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

denominator for basic loss per share .......... 10,000,000 10,079,793 10.1 13,042 

Stock options .................................. - - - 

Denominator for diluted loss per share ....... 10,000,000 10,079,793 10,113,042 

- - - ........................ 
Convertible stock. - - - 
Warrants 

....... 

Pro forma adjustment for redeemable preferred 

Pro forma denominator for basic and diiuted loss 
stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - 14,673;045 

- - 24,786,087 ................................ 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are recorded at cost. Deprecia- 
tion is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life ranging between 
three and eight years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the related 
lease term or the useful life. Interest capitalized and included in the cost of switch equipment 
totaled $790,257 for the year ended December 31, 1999. 
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NET2OOO COMMUNICRTIONS, INC. 

ES TO CONSOLlDATED'Flt4ANCNAL:STATEMENTS - (ContinUed). 

The Company capitalizes certain software purchases and implementation.costs mkaccor- 

. . .  .. . ,  
dance with FAS 86. 

. Construction iq 
complete. as- of,the; 
of the assets are transf 
Company's'policy. . 1 . .~ 

. -  .~ . ,  ,~ 
sts  for^ switches which are~not . : 

tdtiidn,'of a swjtch is complete the balance. 
and depreciated in accordance with:the 

. . . . . .  . .  . .~ 

.... .pece 
. . . . .  ' 1998 . .  

Software ............................................... $ 1,039,789 $11,977,579 
Computer equipment ............................... . . .  5,241,808 .. '9.005,331. 
Office furniture and equipment ...................... 301,213 4,950,963 
Leasehold improvements :i; i.. ..... _. .. . . 1487,292 . 7,972,454 
Vehicles.;. ........ .:. _':.: .. :.. ... - .  ,295,014 
Switch equipment' . ..: :...:: ....... .:. ......... .-. .? .:;. .: ,i .. 21,958,325 

5,290,872 ' '  .21,129,988 
.. 1 .  , '  '. . : * ~ .  , 12;360,974 .77,289,654 

$11,528,518 $72,592,117 

. .  Construction in process .................. .:. .. : . : ....... 

umulated depreciation and amortization .......... (832,456) (4,697,537) 
. ,  , . .  

.~ 

. . .  ~. ~. 
. .  . .  

. . . .  . .  , .  . .  
,. , , 

.~ 
Secured Credit Facilities 

On'November' 2, 1998. Net2000 Communications G , a subsidiary of the Company 
(see Note 1, Organization) entered into credit facilities tiern Teieciim, Inc. ("Nortel"), 
the Series C Preferred shareholder.Csee Note 7). in the aggregate principal amount of 
$140 million. The agreement consisted of a Term Loan Facility in an aggregate principal amount 
Of $120 million and a. Revolving Loan:Facility with availability crf $2Q million.( togetHer;,the "Credit 

On July 30, 1999, the Company amended the Credit Agreement to restiucturelhe existing 

. .  ., ~ Agreement"). . . ,  

$140 million  senior^ secured facility to provide for additional working capital availability. .The 
revised agreement provides for a Seni m Loan Facility in the aggregate principaf amount of 
$75 millich. and a..S.eniot::Discount mot a face amountof $irS"?mitlion.. The Sesor'Term Loan 
Facility may only be used to purchase Nortel goods.and services.~Tk Senior Discount Note may 
be used for general corporate purposes. The Senior Term Loan Facility is secured by a first 
pflority perfected sec%riG interest in or'first priority,liq oq al l  .present.and future assets of the , 

pany..The Senior Discount Note is unsecured. Interest on'the Senior Term Loan' Facility will 
acciue ai  a Prime-Rate Loan Rate plus..3:5%-or Eurodollar Loan Rate plus 4.5% as'defined-'in the 
terms of the amended Credit Agreement (12% at December 31, 1999). The Senior Discount Note 
will bear interest at the Treasury rate plus 8% per annum (14.45% at Decembp 31,:1:999).: - .i 

Repayment of accrued interest on the Prime Rate Loan Rate is on each quarterly due date. 
Repayment oLaccrued interest on a Eurodollar ioan.is-0wth.e last day of the interest period, 'and 
in theeasemf int.erest;periods greater 'than three months;-aP;thrxre month in@rvals.afteK the first 
day of such4nterest period. Nortel-is rewre.d to provide-access to Ihe .credit facilitiesthrough ,.. 

November 2,~2001~:(commitment .termination  date) . Bf!giiining the.quarter afte::theicommitment 
termination date, the Company is requiredWbegifl repaymeritiof the Senior .Term'Loan in twenty 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, 'INCi 

NOTES TO CONSQLID&TED ~FlNANClAL. STATEMENT's;t-.jContinued) 

quarterly installments: The Senior Discount,Note will accrue interest semilannually in arrears until 
the fifth anniversary of the issuance date, after which interest will be due semi-annually in 
arrears, with the principal due on July 30, 2009. The Senior Term Loan Facility has certain' 
mandatory prepayment options as.c!efineci in the agreement. The Senior Discount Note has I 

certain prepayment penalties, call limitations and mandatory redemption features as defined in 
the agreement. I f  borrowings have not exceeded approximately $44 million prior to either: the'sale 
of the'.NOte'to a third party or July 31, 2000. the loan will automatically increase to that level; and 
any additional borrowings will be prohibited. The amended Credit Agreement contains covenants 
which'require . the Company to meet certain financial measures in .addition to other non financial 

. .  ~. covenants . .  ..,: . j: I . .  
~. . . 

In connection with the Credit. Agreement, the Company issued to Nortel detachable warrants 
to acquire' 1,119,930 s 
$7.9 million,'ii treked discount on the Company's debt and amoitized as additional interest 
expense over the lives of the respective debt instruments. The Company used the Black:Scholes: 
pricing model to estimate the fair value of the warrants with the following assumptions: estimated 
fair value of the common stock of $7.06 per share; dividend yield of 0% risk free interest rateof 
6.5%; volatility of 25% and,expected life ,of. five years, consistent, with the assumptions use9 ;for 
the stock option disclosures requiry$under SFAS 123 and included in Note 7 to the financial . . ~ 

statements ... . . 

ember 23,1999;the'Coriipany's $75 million' Senior T e h  b a n  Facility was 
and assumed fiom Nortel by Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L:P. and.Toronto~Dominion,- . .  : 
(Texas), Inc. The First Amendment contains terms which are substantially the same as thos 
the Amended .and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of .July'30, 1999.' In 'addition; the 
Company has access to incremental borrowing capacity Up to $50 million, which will;carry 
identical terms and covenants as applicable un$er the First 'Amendment and will be'available. , 

. 

subject to certain restrictions, after $60 million has been drawn under the original loans. No 
b'ormwing under the incremental tranchecan cause there to.exist a n'a bro forma basis. 

As an additional; covenant to  the: First Amendment, theLCompan 
aggregate..of $75 miUion in principal amount at the stated maturity of the Senior -Discount Note.on 
or prior to January.7, 2000. On January 7, 2000, the Company:sold an aggregate of $75 million:in 
principal amount. of.1he Senior .Discount,flote and proceeds of $41.5 million were.received. As a 
result of this transaetio.n,:both the Senior Term Loan Facility.and Senior-.Discount Na 
recorded as a liability by Net2000 Communications Group, Inc., a subsidiary of the C 

As of December 31, 1999, the Company paid all accrued interest and commitme 
amounts outstanding Term Loan Facility. 

' ~ t  December 31 
respectively,' of Nortel, 
these putchases i e r  
Company had $41.4 million^&td $O"outs&nding under the SeniorTerm' Loan'Fa 
Discount Note, respectively. 

s of ,c6mmon.xtock'at $0.008 per share. The Taiivalue 'of;! 

. .  , . . I .  
. .  - . .  ~ > .  . . ,  

tsell .to Nortel an  . 

. 
he-Company had purchased $4.8 mi 
ces which have been clasSifi 
anced'under the credit facili 

Other Debt 

On September 20, 1999, the Company entered into a term loan agreement with a bank for a 
principal amount of $125.000 for the purchase of Company vehicles. The agreement calls for 
repayment over 36 months at an annual interest rate of 8.75%. Availability of the loan to the 
Company occurred on October 6, 1999. 
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Maturities of notes payable outstanding as of December 31, 1999 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

2000 ................................................................. $ 41,667 
. . . . . . .  ...................................... 1393,775 

....................................................... 6,243,154 
2003. ........................... 
2004. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
Thereafter. .................... . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total notes payable ........... ....... $41,507,605 

The Company paid interest of $52.410, $173,058, and $2,089,079 related to the notes 
payable and capital leases in the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998, and 1999, 
respectively. 

<* '::. 
Letters of Credit 

The Company maintains irrevocable letters of credit with four separate vendors, which are 
disclosed as restricted cash on the balance sheet. The first letter of credit, in the amount of 
$900,000, has a two year term expiring on September 30, 2000 and serves as an advanced 
security deposit in connection with the financing of certain billing system equipment under capital 
lease. This letter of credit was amended on October 6, 1999 for an additional amount of 
$984,289, which represents an advanced security deposit in connection with the financing of 
financial and operational support system hardware, software and services under capital lease. 
The additional amount has a three year term expiring on October 31, 2002. The term of the 
original $900,000 amount was extended to February 28, 2002. The second letter of credit for 
$730,969 has a seven year term expiring on June 10.2006, and represents a deposit in support 
Of the Company's obligations under an oftice space lease agreement. The third letter of credit for 
$598.304 has a ten year term expiring on November 02, 2009, and represents a deposit in 
support of the Company's obligations under a lease agreement for its New York switch facility. 
The fourth letter of credit for $291,477 has a ten year term expiring on December 27, 2009, and 
represents a deposit in support of the Company's obligations under a lease agreement for its 
Boston switch facility. The letters of credit are fully collateralized by certificates of deposits 
maintained with a bank, with maturities ranging from 90 days to one year, and with stated 
interest rates ranging from 3.19% to 5.51%. 

Capital Leases 

The Company currently leases office furniture and equipment under non-cancelable capital 
leases. The Company had $5,366,972 and $12,552,402 of assets held under capital leases at 
December 31, 1998 and 1999. respectively. Amortization and depreciation related to capital 
leased equipment is included in depreciation and amortization expense. 
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. NET2000 ~XXMMUNICATIONS, INC: 

NOTES TO. CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL .STATE.MENTS-..( Continued) 

The future minimum lease payments undernontcancelable capital leases at December 31, 

Fiscal Year 

2000 ................................................................... $4,803,974 

1999 are as follo 
. I  

.... ................................. ...... .., , '3.127.522 

............................................ . . . . . . .  1,977,757 

................................................... : .... 15,851 
Total minimum' lease payments ........................................... $9,955,104 
Less amount representing interest. ................. 
Present value.of minimum lease'payments .......... ................... 8,553,924 
Less current portion of capital lease obligation.. ............. _:. ... I. :.I,. ........ -3,981,133 
Long term port 

I. ... . . . . .  . . . . .  

. . . . . . .  

apital lease obligation . : .............. : .. :. : .?: 

. .  . . .  . . ~. 
. I i  ,. . : ,. . 

, The Gompany accounts .for taxes under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards , 

No. 1109, Accounting for Income Taxes ("SFAS 109'). Under SFAS 109, deferred .. ~ taK .,,. liabilities 
and assets- are 
of, assets and li 
differences reverse! 

lders were taxed as an 
S Coip6ration under the Internal Revenue Cede. Urlder- the-provkions.-of-the'tax'code: the 
Company's stockholders include their pro rata share of the Conipany:s income i n  tMir personal 

Federal or state income taxes 
mable Convertible Series A 

November 1, 1997 forward. 

ned based on the difference between the' financial statement and tax basis 
using enacted rates ex 

For periods prior to October 31, 1997, the 

to be in effect during the ye 
. .  : . ~ .  . ~. 

. :  i. .'.~1 ..i ' '  . . . . .  

the Company has been taxed as a C corporation. 

At December 31. 1999, the Company had net operating losses of approximately $51.5 mil- 
og and.manner in wmch.the operating loss .carryforward may be.'utdized in any year 
any will be limited to .tKe"Company's abiliv io generate future earnings and may. be 

xpiring 
2Ql8. As the Come has not generated, rnings and no assura be 
earnings needed 'to 

limited upon a change in ownership. Current net operating loss carryforwards Nil! 

ze these net opera 
as been recorded. The valuation allowance 
to December 31, :l.$! 

... 1.) Ti 

losses, a valuation aJl,pwance in the 
the:net deferred tax 
l ~ f r o m  December 31 ., 

~ , .  . . . .  
. .  .-- 

. . . . . . . . .  
~~ 

~. 

. .  .. , c ,:..- 
. ,  
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NET2000 COMMUNICATIONS,',INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED'FINANCIAl5iSTATEMENTS - (Continued) 

At December 31 ,. 1998 and 1999,.deferred taxes consist of: 
. .  . . .  

December 31, 
1998 - . .  

Tax .Liability . .  

Cash to accrual adjustment.. .......................... $ (85.461) $ (56,974) 
. Depreciation.. ........... ;. . :. .................. :. ..... 
 capital lease .......................... :. :. ............ 

..'Net operating loss carryforward.. ........... ;. ......... 5,613,532 19,572,412 
."Reserves. .............................................. . . . . . . .  ., . . - . . .  204,528 
.'Allwance for bad debts.. ............ ..,.. . i . .  ........ .: . 86.843 728,452 
Deferred revenue ............................ > ,  .............. 178,843 81,647 
Stock.options. ........................................ . 49,348 86,222 
Other ................................................ 6.350 19,097, 

5,267,435 19,321,686 

(488.267) (1,219,953) 
(93,745) 

I 

. .  

Tak Assets . ,. . 
~ . .  

. . . . . .  

i .  . Valuation allowance.. .?. ... :':. ... , , .. . .  , ............ . . . _ I  . .(5,267.435) ,(19,321,686) 
. . .  - ... . .......... .............. Nef deferred tax asset Z'; ~ .1 

, .  . 
$ . .  ' .  .j. ~ 

, :. . ' ~ L '  . .  .~ 
~. , :  . .  . .  , .  

The Company paid no inco 

A summary:,of the items which cause. 

taxes for the years ended December 31,1996.1997, and 1998 
or for the nine months ended September 30, 1999. . .  

. .., . . .  . . ,  

ecorded income taxes to differ from the. statutory 
Federal income tax .rate is as follows: . .... 

,,': YearEnde Year. Ended , '' 
December 31,1997' ':December,31; , .  

j , ,  1998 
Tax expense i ' ~ . ~  . , ,  

(benefit) at 
statutory Federal'" . . .  
rate ............. ;; 

'State incprne , , . 
net. .;. 

... .. 
.Stock option 

compensation. 
Other ............ 

.$( l70;506) . . i .  . - . . . . .  
. .  

, .. .' Effect of: 
;I . ...... .... . . . .  . .  .. ~. 

Increase in 
v a I u a t i o n 
allowance ...... 

Income tax expense 

7. Equity 
Equity Transactions 

134,105 
- $ 

5,133,333 
- $ 

Year Ended 
December 31,1999 

$ (13,189,537) 

' ( 1,466;1'44 ) ' , ' . .  . .  . . . . .  

544,972 
' 56,458 

14,054,251 
s - 

On October 23, 1997, the Company reincorporated in Delaware pursuant to a statutory 
merger of the Virginia corporation into a newly formed Delaware corporation. On the merger 
date, each share of the prior Company's $1 par value wmmon stock was exchanged for 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANClALr.STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

500 shares of $0.01 par value common stock of the new Company. This transaction was 
accounted.for as a stock split and the accompanying financial statements have been restated to 

. I  reflect this transaction for.all periods presented. . 
.. 

On bctober 31, 1997, the'company sold 4,087,592 shares of Redeemable. 
Ser-ies A Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred Stock or Share".) for $0.656 per s 
May 19. 1998 the Company sold 5,510,535 shares of Redeemable Convertible Se 
Stock ("Series .B Preferred Stock or Share") for $3.085 per share. Both Series A and B 
Preferred Shares-are convertible into shares of common stock atla rate of-1:1.25.: 80th Preferred 
issues have mandatory conversion in the.event of an initial public .pffering. The Series.A and,B ~. 
Preferred Stock accrue a dividend of $0.069 and $0.309 per annum; respectively, payable if.and 
when declared, and are subject to certain adjustments and limitations as defined in the purchase 
agreement. Should a qualifying event (initial public offering or acquisition) be. consumm-ated. prior 
to the third anniversary of the Series A and B original issue dates, no dividendi, whether or not 
accrued, will be payable. At December 31, 1997,1998 and ,1999, dividevds in_arrears were , : 
$46,667, $1,374,868 and'$3,359,667, respectively. Voting fights of b0th.P 
an as if converted basis: The Series A and B Preferred Shares have , . , rede .. ., 
respective fair values subject to certain limitations, and certain antidilutive 
rights a&. defined in the purchase agreement.and other agreements. The S e  
Stock ranks senior .and prior to . .  the Series A ,Preferred stock as.,to, diuidends'and upon a 

, , .  IiqGdation event as defined. .. ~. . -  

On May.19. 1998, the.Board-of Directors and stockholders of~the Company approved a 4 for 
1 stock split of the Company's $0.01 par value voting common stock. 'All references in the 
accompanying financial statements to the number of shares'of common stock have been restated 

On November 1 ,  1998 and pursuant to the recapitalization of the Company discussed in 
Note 1 -Organization. Net2000 Group. Inc. exchanged com,mon shares with the sSockholders of 
t b .  new parent company, Net2000 Communications, Inc.. in a one-for-one. transfer. In .?ddition, 
the 'number.of authorized shares of common, stock was increased from 28 ~ . ,  million to 30 .million. . .  

Series C Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred Stock or Share") for $14.017 per share. Certain 
terms and condigions of!th.e,,S,eries A. and B. agreements were amended and restated 
of the &ries.k"Preferred,,.Stock issuance and:are'reflected herein. Each Series 9 .Pr 
Share is convertible into shares of common stock at a rate of f.il.25. The Series . .  . .  .C, 
Stock has a mandatory conversion in the evenfbi an initial public offering which has gross 
proceeds of at least $50 million and at.an IPO price of at least.$6.40 per share of.common'stock. 
The Series C Preferred Stock accrues a dividend of $1.121 per annum, payable.if and when 
dwlared. and Subject to certain.adjustments and limitations as defined in fhe.,purchase 
agreement; At December 31, 1998 and 1999. .dividends in arrears. were $399,881 and $2,799,167, 
respectively; Voting rights of the8erie.s C Preferred Shares are. on.an as if.converted basis:The 
Series C Preferred Shares:have redemption .rights at:fheir fair va1ues;beginning on the later of .: 

one year aflep the maturity-of any high yield:debt issued by the Company.prior to December-?I-; .. 
1999,or November.2,2004;.or in the case of an acquisition event, the 30 day period commencing 
upon the receipt of notice of the acquisition event. The Series C Preferred Shares have certain 
antidilutive and, future registratiomrights as defined in the agreement:zThe .Series C PFeferred- 
Stock-ranks  senior^ and,prior-to the Series B Stock as to dividends and upon a liquidation event j 

to reflect . .  . the split:' .~ 

ber 2; 1998, the Company sold 2, 0,310 skaresof Redeemable Converli,bJe, ~ [ 

., 

.. . as defined in the Company's certificate of incorporation, as amended. . . . ' . . .  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

On November, 10:1999, the number of authorized shares of common stock was increased 
from 30 million to 200 million, and the number of authorized shares of preferred stock was 
reduced from 12,000,000 to 11,738,437. In addition, the- Board of Directors authorized the 
designation and issiuance of up to 60 million shares of Undesignated Capital Stock, in one or 
more series, et $.Or par value per share. The. Board of Directors can establish the preferences, 
rights, and privileges of each series, which may be superior'to the rights of the commoh stock. 

EffectiveJanuary 12, 2000,the Board Of Directors and stockholders of the Company . i  . : 
approved a stock dividend of 0:25 shares for each outstanding share of common.stock. All . . . 

references .in the accompanying financial statements to the number of shares of common stock : 

. ,. . .~ 

. .  
. .. . amounts have been restated to reflect the I 

. . . .  . .  . .  
. . . . .  

. .  
Stock 0l;tiOn Pian ; $' 

, ~ 

During 1997. the. Company 'adopted a stock option plan  the^ "Option Plan") which allows 
the Company to grant up to  1,678,830' common Stock'options to employees, board members 
and others who bontribuib materially to the success of the Company.' Individual grants generally 

b.le ratably over a period of four years'from the.grantclate. The contractual term 
of the options is 10 yea~rs from the date of grant. In November 1998, the number of stock options 
reserved under the Optiori'Plan'was increased to 3,379,436. In September 1999; the number of: 
stock options reserved under the Option Plan was increased to 4,373,388. 

On November 10, 1999, the~company adopted a stock incentive plan (the "Incentive Plan") 
which authorizes the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, phantom 
stock, and performance awards. As of December 31, 1999, there were 4,375;OOO shares reserved 
under the Incentive Plan, of which 343,750 options to purchase common stock were issued and 
outstanding. 

Also on November 10, 1999, the Company adopted an employee stock purchase plan (the' 
"ESPP") which provides'for the issuance of up to 1,875,000 shargs of common stock:The ESPP 
is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Infernal Revenue Code and provides the .'' 

I .  . .  . .  . .  . 

Company's .employees with an opportunity to purchase shares of common stock through payroll 
~. . .  . , . > ~ , , ~  , .  

~. . . i deductions: .. . 

' '  The Campany deteimines the fair value of 'its common stock usedin its accothting 'fUi stock 
option grantgbased on both arms length equity transaction's and independent Valuatibns'6btained .~ , 
during the period 

In December~l997. the'company issued .1,282,595 options to certain employees at an.' ' '  

exercise p'rice of:$0.1'4 which was below the fair market value at the,tim'e of the option.grant. 
During 1998, the Company issued 1,689,188 options.to certain employees at a weighted awrage 
exercise price of $0;62. The exercise price for a portion of these .option grants was below the .fair 
market value'of 'the kommon.stock at the' grant date. During 1999,. the Company,issued 2,349,369 
options'to cenain empldyee's'at a weighted average exercisbprice of $4.38, which was'below the 
fair market.value at the'tirhe'of the 'option grant: Accordingly, the Company recorded 
stock compensation of $87.21 137,940 and-$8.485,815 in.1997, 1998~ and 1999,,ie 

, .  ... , . .  , 
m theplan's inception to December 31.1999. 

I j .  . .  . .  . .  . .  

. .  ~ : , ,  -: 

and 1999:amortization expense for stock based compensation was $63,054 and 
ectively, and re la t s to  employees whose:salaries are included.in selling, general. 

~. . .  and administrative expense. ' . '  . 
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Additional.information with respect to the Option Plan is summarized as follows: 
. . . . .  . . . . . . . .  ' ... 

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- 
Average A"erage . < ::.I . :..y:, .' Average 

Exercise Exercise 
Shares '~ Prke ' . Shares . Price ' Shares __ . ." 

Outstanding at beginning of period ..... - 1 $0.42 
..... . _ _ _  1,282,595 0.14 1.689,i88 0.62 2,349,369 4.38 Options granted 

- - (303.182) 0.2 (530,488) . 2,59 
> '. .: ., .. Options exercised. ... -. . - '. (i09,490).. 0.69. . &,072) 0.25 

2.559,iii' :.$0.4 
838;$92 , $0.3?. 

. .  . . .  , .  . . ,  
. .  

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at Decem- 
, ,  .. ber 31,1999: 

Range of Exercise Price 

Less than $0.80.. ............. 

$3.21 to $5.60 ................... 
$0.81 to $3.20 .:. ................ 

December 31,1999 
Options Outstanding 

Weighted- 
Average 

Remaining 

.'.Oytstanding (In. Years) 
Number Contractual Life 

. .  2,159,328' 8.16 

-2,106,876 1 .'-9.65 
31.7i6 7.79 . ' 

4,297.920 8:& 

becember~31; 1999 
Options Exercisable 

,, 

Weighted- 

Number Exercise 
'Average 

Exercisable, ' Price 

.'1',3i7,816 $0.36 
' ' ,. 27,751 ' ~' ' ' 1.58 ' 

213,804 3.53 $. 
1,559.371 . .  ' ' '$0.82 ' 

~. 
. . . .  , ~. 

Had compensation exbense related to the sto option :plans been determined based on  the . 
fair value at the option grant.dates consistent with.the .pro.visions .Ot SEAS. No:I23,, the 
Company's pro forma . .  net loss and earnings per share would have been.as.follows: 

. .  . .  

? . Y.997; .; ~1998 - <..I, ,<;E -. ~~ , .. . , .  .~ . >..' . ,  I '  . . .  . I  . .  - 
Net loss available to common shareholders - orma ...... $(504,453) $(22.805,690J" $(6%,%4:928) 
Pro forma net loss per share.. .............. ........... $ (0.05) $ . (2.263,. $ (6.07) 

The effect'of applying SFAS 123 on the years ended Deeember 31, 1997. I998 and 1999 pro 
forma net loss as stated above is not necessarily representative of the effects on reported net 
loss for future years due to, among other things, the vesting period of .the stock options and the 
fair value of additional stock options granted in future years. 

option-pricing fair 
grants: volatility of 
rate of 6.5%. The weighted average fair values of the options granted in 1997 with a stock price 
equal to the exercise price is,$0.21. The.weighted average fair values of..the Optionsg 
1998 with a stock.:price equal to'lthekxercise price,with a stock price less thawthe ex 
price and with a stock price greater than the exercise price are $3.40, $0.51 ani3 $0.59per shatij.: 

F-17 

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on  the date of grant us@%lhe'Black-Scholes 
ode1 with the following weighted-average assuml)tions used for all 
vidend yield of W/O; expected life.of five years'; and risk-free interest 

Weighted- 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$0 37 
1.58 
4.35 
$2.33' 
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respectively. The weighted.average fair values:of the options granted in 1999 with.a;.stocl( :price 
ter than the exercise price are $3.40 and 

. . . . . . . . .  . . .  

.... 

oved and paid an S Corporation 
distribution to shareholders i,n th . .  - ;  

. . . . . .  
nd C Preferred Stock 

effective ihtCresi:method.'The C~~~an~.recorded~~accre~on'totaling~$8;903.~6'and $21 ;536,998:'.' 
for the years ended December 3i-i i998 and 1999, respectively. 

8. Commitments 
. . .  .............. . . . . .  > 1 .  

urrently leases o 
leases ...@ ent expense for the! 

3, and $2,804,250;re 

ay, 28, 1999; the 
rters. office. space 

..,.- I 

consists of 126, 

on the space or the date the 

$3,422,281 for.pear 
n expenses as defined in the lease agreement. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ................ 

. I,. ...... -.. . i, .-;_ ... .._* :r - I .. ... 3 ,  . . . . . . .  

... :-. :.,,., 

;;The.Gompany has.exe.cuted -emplo 
which.the COmpany4s. required. 
Qeeembep31: 2800+~ f ~ :  ~. :. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -,[Continued) 

. ~. 9. Sale of Consulting Division .~ 

7, the Company.sold its consulting b 
in cash and a 2@h equity interest in t 
s merged. The Com'pany recorded its consilting business 

nominal value and accounts for it using the cost method. The Company'and~the purchaser 
entered into an agreement, whereby either party can require the sale of the remaining 20% of the 
business to the other entity at any dateafter December 31, !998..On July:,29,;1199 
purchaser exercised its option to acquire :the remaining ,209/0 of the, busin@s for 

. .  . .. . . ~. .:, . . > I 

. ,  .:: .~ ~ . . .. 10. Related Party Transactions : . .  . 

'The 'Conipany maintains .key-man liffiinsurance polici 
aggregate coverage of $34,000~000. The 'kompany paid $13,672 
premiums related to these policies during the year ended Dece 
respectively. 

11. Significant Custome 

The Company derived a significant portion of its sal.es from two. major customergduring, 
1997 and 1998, and 1999. For the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1998 and 1999. the 
Company recorded sa@ of approximately $2,795,000, $2,861,000, and $0 respectively, from 
these customers. As of December 31; 1998 and 1999 the Company had no accounts receivable 

On July 30, 1999,;the Company .and a major supplier of local telecommunications resale 
services settled'a dispute over claims that certain acts and omissions by the supplier had an . . . 
adverse impact on the Company's ability to resell and earn revenue from the resale of local - .  

telecommunication.sepices. Net settlement proceeds to the Company totaled $5 million, of which 
$1.5 million was uti$zed to offset impaired accounts receivable due to the dispute and 3.5 million 
.was recorded as a gain:, In addition, the Company will.be entitled to compensation for future lost 
usage, which is recognized as earned'as the usage is accrued on the supplier's network, and,is 
calculated in accordance with the:terms of the agreement, subject to audit by the supplier, an 
for'a ~petiod commencing subsequ,ent to the settlement date and for as long as the Company and- , .  

.: . . I  
. . .  

resulting from sales to these major customers. .~ 

:Supplier'aie . .  engaged in .the resale of local telecommunication . .  services. , ... 

12. Defined Contribution Plan 

The Company maintains a defined contribution plan (401 (k)  plan) covering all employees 
who meet certain eligibility requirements. Participants may make contributions to the plan up to 
15% of their compensation (as defined) up to the maximum established by law. The Company 
may make a matching contribution of an amount to be determined by the Board of Directors, but 
subject to a maximum of 6% of compensation contributed by each participant. Company 
contributions vest ratably over four years. Company contributions to the plan as of December 31, 
1998 and 1999 were $74,943 and $171,380, respectively. 

13. Pro Forma Adjustments (Unaudited) 

The pro forma balance sheet as of December 31,1999 reflects the conversion of all classes 
of the Company's preferred stock into common stock as of that date. The pro forma net loss per 
share reflects the conversion of all classes of the Company's preferred stock as of the 
respective date of issuance. 
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14. Events Subsequent to Auditors Report (Unaudited) 

On February 14; 2600, ...... [he Company entered into 
Inc. The Company subseqgently.deiermined .:,. . ~ , .  'that . .  i t ' i s '  e.that . . .   definitive .agreemen? . .  ~ wiil 
i-esuit 'from' the 'letter'of 'intent. ' 

ing .letter.:of. intent with Williams 
Communications'; Inc.!.'tWilliams).utider whi6h 'the Comp&ny@roposes to purchase a'.minirhh'of 
$128 milli6n Of tdec6minuniCatioris-SerWes over a'2O.year' per6d: The& servkes include 
services on the Williams fiber optic lines within cities and between cities, advanced data services, 
and collocation services that will be made available on the Williams fitier.optic netwoik. This 

. . . . . . . . .  .. 
ing letter of intent with. PSlNet, 

. . .  . .  
... . . .  . . .  

. 

, .,x- ~. . .  

?'On February.l4,200@, the C6mpahy.entered int 

ur company at the 

.~ . . .  . . .  
. .  . . .  

ck options for $444,441. . .  ,.. In February 2000, an officer of the Company exercise 
.~ 

' . I /  . . :  , .  
. . .  , .1.: . _. . .  

15. Selected'.Quarterly ldformation VUnaudited) ' * '  

1 .. 
i .  ~. . . ., ~, 

. . .  . . .  .... 
4th.Quarter 

1997 , .  

Revenues ..................... $ 697.691 $ '  714,i7 $ 1,175,580 
Operating toss . :: .?. . ': (18,057) . ' ~  (243,826 (207,462) ' ' (848,833) 

367 Net (loss) income .. 

2,048,232 $ ' ~3,500,944 
1998 
ReGenues ~ . :':. . r . $  1.,652.033. $ 2,2.17.693 
Operating 103s . . : . . . . . .  . , 1 ~  (994,529) . .  (2,479,882) (4 ,832126) '  (5,988,224) 

:. . (985,860) '{2,39 . . .  3 ' . (5.7W208) 
1999 
Revenues .... ; ... .. . . .  .$ 5,056.729 $ 6;031.126.~ $ 9;023,156 

rathQ.loss .:..il.!'...:....:..:. . . .  -(61451;190) . (8j647.418). 10;373;846j (15,'882;145) 
Net toss .................. ;';:..;: (6,i69,939) , .(8,544,731)-'  . ~7,31'8,718)  (16,759,368) 

- r,: ., . . .  ' . -  1 st&arter . I >  2nd . . '  Quaker 
. .  

.. .i ~, ..~ 

. I ,  .~ 
(a4 7;980), 

. . . . . .  . . .  
(27;226')-' (256;650) 

. .  .~ r , '~ 

I 

.. ... - . .  , I 

. , . .  

- <  . r 

.. 
. . . . . .  . . .  . . . . .  . .  

, ~ . .  :~ ;, 

. . . . . .  
~ . ,. ., : . . .. . . ,  ~ .~ 

. . . .  
. .~ . .  . . . . .  . .  

~ .. 

. .. . . .  . . . . . .  
: :.. :.>.., . , : .  _.,. l.:: _..,,~ , i  .. :. 1 ,~ ..,. .- .' . i  ~ . _ .  ~ ),' 

. . . . . . .  : ' ., , . .  .. . . . . .  ,. 
I ~ .  
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EXHIBIT D 

MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS 

Net2000 began operations in 1993 as a sales agent for Bell Atlantic. Affer quickly 
establishing a reputation for superior service and an expert sales staff, Net2000 became 
Bell Atlantic's No. 1 authorized distributor from 1995 through 1998. In June 1998, 
Net2000 became an independent competitive local exchange carrier and integrated 
communications provider offering a full complement of both local and long-distance 
services. 

Charlie Thomas, Chief Executive Officer 

Charlie Thomas has over 15 years of telecommunications industry experience. He 
spent most of his career in sales and marketing positions with IBM and Bell Atlantic. At 
Bell Atlantic, Thomas progressed through the ranks and was the # I  salesperson in the 
company each year between 1989 and 1992. He has worked in various capacities with 
a variety of markets and products-most recently having directed a team in Bell Atlantic's 
National Accounts Group. Thomas also co-founded, grew and sold N2N 
Communications (an Internet services provider). 

Thomas is the founder and CEO of Net2000 Communications. He is a graduate of the 
University of Virginia, with a B.A. and B.S. in Computer Science. He serves on the 
Board of Directors for the Northern Virginia Technology Council (NVTC) and was a 
finalist for the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year in 1997, 1998, and 1999. 

Clyde A. Heintzelman, President 

Clyde Heintzelman has the day to day responsibility of building Net2000 to ensure 
success in the competitive marketplace. Clyde has been Net2000's president since 
November 1999 and a director since March 1997. He is recognized as a 
telecommunications and Internet leader with over 25 years of experience in 
management, marketing and sales. Prior to joining Net2000, Clyde served as president 
and chief executive officer of SAWIS Communications Corporation, a national Tier I 
Internet service provider. Before SAWIS, Clyde served as chief operating officer and 
president of DIGEX, another Tier I national ISP that was acquired by lntermedia 
Communications in July 1996. Under Clyde's management, DIGEX expanded its 
Internet access services into over 150 markets nationwide and increased revenues from 
$1.5 million to $52 million in just three years. Prior to DIGEX, Clyde served as general 
manager of sales and marketing, for Bell Atlantic Directory Services, where he directed 
the marketing and sales programs for a division of the company with 2,300 employees 
and annual revenues of $1.2 billion. His experience with Bell Atlantic also included vice 
president of sales and marketing of the C&P Telephone Companies, president and CEO 
of Bell Atlanticom, and general manager of Bell Atlantic Federal Systems. Clyde earned 
a BA in Marketing at the University of Delaware, and attended graduate school at 
Wharton. University of Pittsburgh, and University of Michigan. 
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Mark Mendes, Chief Operating Officer and Secretary 

Mark Mendes has 14 solid years of telecommunications operating experience. Prior to 
joining Net2000 Communications, he was the chief operating officer for US Watts-a 
public long distance carrier. From 1995 to 1997, Mendes was the vice president of 
services and technology at Access Teleconferencing International-which has since 
become Vialog-a conferencing company based in Reston, Virginia. He served as the 
vice president of InterNet Communication Services, a prepaid long distance carrier 
based in Rochester, New York, from 1993 to 1995. He has also been the director of 
network development and engineering at FiberNet (1 992-1 993), a competitive access 
provider in western New York, which was sold to MFS. From 1985 to 1992, Mendes 
worked for Rochester Telephone (now Frontier) in various management positions, with 
broad responsibility for all aspects of operations. He received both a B.S. in Industrial 
Engineering and an MBA in Finance and MIS from Syracuse University. 

Don Clarke, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer 

Don Clarke brings over 18 years of executive financial experience to Net2000 
Communications. Prior to joining Net2000, he was the president and chief financial 
officer of Plexsys International-a provider of wireless infrastructure equipment, primarily 
to developing countries. At Plexsys, Clarke was responsible for all financial functions, as 
well as overseeing the day to day operations of engineering, manufacturing, 
development, program management, customer service and field engineering. Clarke 
also served as vice president and chief financial officer to lntelicom Solutions-which has 
since become CSC Intelicom, a subsidiary of Computer Sciences Corporation-a 
worldwide provider of specialized software solutions, primarily to local 
telecommunication providers. He was a key player in the successful creation and 
execution of Intelicom's business strategy-which yielded a tripling of revenues in three 
years. He was also instrumental in the sale of lntelicom to Computer Sciences 
Corporation. Clarke began his career at Price Waterhouse, where he worked on their 
largest telecommunications client-MCI Communications. He is a CPA and holds a B.S. 
degree in Accounting from Virginia Tech. 

Christine Ramsey, Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing 
Communications 

Christine is focused on revenue growth, expansion and development of the sales force 
and building brand and market awareness of Net2000. Christine brings over 15 years of 
sales and marketing experience in fast growth and technology industries. Prior to joining 
Net2000 she was SVP SaledMarketing at Statoil Energy, an energy solution provider in 
a highly competitive, deregulating environment. Under Christine's management Statoil 
developed a consultative sales force, introduced innovative products and increased 
customer focus resulting in a 300% increase in profitability from the direct sales 
organization. Before Statoil, Christine was the Director of Market Management for 
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SkyTel Corporation, directing the development and implementation of market strategy 
and new product launch for competitive positioning in the Fortune 1000 marketplace. 
During this time Skytel launched the first two-way narrowband PCS network, more than 
doubled the subscriber base representing 25 million in revenue growth and established 
solid brand awareness in the targeted market. 

Christine's career spans from top producing sales rep to branch and operations 
manager to senior positions in business and market development. She attended 
Brockport State University where she studied Business Administration. She also holds a 
Masters degree in Business Administration from George Mason University. 

Lee Weiner, General Counsel 

As chief legal officer, Lee Weiner is responsible for guiding Net2000's legal policy, 
assuring compliance with legal requirements and supervising Net2000's regulatory 
activities. 

Lee Weiner has been Net2000's senior vice president and general counsel since 
October 1999. From June 1998 to June 1999, Lee served as vice president and acting 
general counsel, and senior associate general counsel and assistant secretary for 
Qwest Communications International Inc., after its merger with LCI International, Inc. in 
June 1998. From September 1994 to June 1998, he served as vice president and 
general counsel at LCI International, Inc. Lee has also held several managerial 
positions at MCI Telecommunications Corporation, including director of legal affairs for 
MCI Business Services Division. 

Peter B. Callowhill, Senior Vice President of Sales 

Peter Callowhill brings more than 22 years of telecommunications and information 
systems experience to Net2000 Communications. Before he co-founded both Net2000 
and N2N Communications, Callowhill had spent 12 years in sales and marketing with 
Nortel Communications. As a national account manager with Nortel, he consistently 
achieved the top ranking nationwide-having lead teams that produced annual sales in 
excess of $10 million. Callowhill managed the top commercial clients for Nortel, 
including Marriott and Westinghouse. He then joined Bell Atlantic after it acquired 
Nortel's mid-Atlantic sales and operations groups. 

At Bell Atlantic, Callowhill quickly became ranked among the top three sales producers, 
and managed a team which served Bell Atlantic's largest commercial clients. 
Throughout his career, Callowhill has consistently built effective teams, developed 
customer loyalty, and negotiated outstanding business deals. He earned his B.S. 
degree for the College of William and Mary in Williamsburg, Virginia. 

Jeff Campbell, Vice President of Network Implementation 

Jeff Campbell has 20 years of telecommunications experience. The majority of his 
career has been in operations & engineering positions. From December 1996 to July 
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1998, Jeff was regional director of operations at Frontier Cellular, a wireless carrier 
company. From February 1991 to September 1996, Jeff held several positions at MFS 
Communications Company, including vice president of upstate New York, vice president 
of sales and regional director of operation. He has constructed and implemented 
several network operations centers and has been responsible for operations groups in 
the cellular, long distance, and Sonet fiber optic network arenas. Campbell was 
instrumental in the development of the first competitive access provider in Upstate New 
York (which was later sold to MFS Communications). He received his initial training in 
the United States Air Force as a telecommunications specialist. Campbell studied 
telecommunications systems management at the College of St. Mary's in Omaha, 
Nebraska and computer science and psychology at Brockport State University in New 
York. 

Kathy Dickerson, Vice President of Human Resources and Administration 

Kathy Dickerson comes to Net2000 with twelve years of progressive executive level 
experience in Organizational Effectiveness, Human Resources, Facilities, and Training 
and Development. Kathy joined Net2000 from MA BioServices, where she served as 
the Vice President of Administration. From 1995 to 1997, she held the title of VP of 
administration for IGEN International, Inc. In 1986 through 1995 she served Marriott 
International in several capacities, including director of training and development. 
Dickerson guided these organizations through culture change, reengineering and into 
team environments. She earned her B.S. and M.A. degrees in Education from Ball State 
University in Muncie, Indiana. 
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Net1000 Communlcstlolu 
2 I80 Fox Mill Road 
Herndon.VA 
20171 

703-654-2000 
fax 703-654-2525 
www ne12000.com D p x ~  I-800-825~2000 

Ms. Blanca S. Bay0 
Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: Application of Net2000 Communications Services, Inc. for Certificate to Become a 
Telecommunications Carrier 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

On behalf of Net2000 Communications Services, Inc. ("Net2000"), enclosed for filing 
are an original and six (6) copies of Net2000's application for a certificate of authority to 
provide local exchange services in the State of Florida. Also enclosed is a check in'the 
amount of $250 for the requisite application fee. 

Please date-stamp the enclosed extra copy of this filing and return it in the self-addressed 
postage paid envelope provided. Should you have questions regarding this filing, please 

* 

do not hesitate to contact me at (703) 654-2028. I 

Very truly yours, 


